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Financial Summary

B35 8 2

HE12 B31 HIEEE
For the Year Ended December 31

20214 20204 20194 20184 20174
ARETRT ARB®TT ARETT AREFTR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue WA 295,776 379,555 297,907 263,820 241,659
Gross profit e 70,553 116,906 101,188 89,905 83,552
Gross profit margin EVES 23.9% 30.8% 34.0% 34.1% 34.6%
Profit before tax BRI AR T 8,937 63,255 51,917 32,856 43,820
Profit attributable to equity NEREDKRER
shareholders of the Company  FE{5i& A 7,329 50,874 44,822 28,016 35,055
Listing expenses R - - 4,005 12,447 9,937
®12831H
As at December 31

20214 20204 20194 20185 20174
AREFTRT AEBETT ARKETT ARETRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Total assets BEMTE 572,316 625,908 522,552 338,993 311,920
Total liabilities BB 305,644 355,836 291,833 223,546 275,336
Total equity R iazE 266,672 270,072 230,719 115,447 36,584

Notes: sk :

The summary of the consolidated results and financial position
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 is extracted
from the Company’s prospectus dated 31 December 2018 (the

“Prospectus”).

HovEkE=R (MBRER) -

ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2021

FEBARE2017E12B31HIEEENGSEXE R
BRAEELEREANABHEES 2018 &£ 12 B 31

5

<



Chairman’s Statement

FEHRSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors of China
Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

In 2021, the Group experienced the record high of the
national monthly production of heavy trucks of 175,000
units in the first half of the Year, and the record low of
less than 37,000 units in the second half of the Year. Our
team quickly adapted to the ever changing market and
made adjustments to strategies accordingly. In 2021, the
single vehicle sales of the Group amounted to RMB2,025,
slightly higher than that in 2020, and we will continue to
consolidate our leading position in the largest heavy truck
market in northwest China. The Group recorded revenue of
about RMB295.8 million in 2021, representing a decrease
of 22.1% year on year (2020: RMB379.6 million); and the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was approximately RMB7.3 million (2020: approximately
RMB50.9 million). The Company did not recommend
declaring a final dividend for 2021 to shareholders.

2021 is the first year for the Group to fully implement
informatization. Looking back on this year, the Group
has established the basis of standardized production,
completed a number of automation transformations,
commenced production of new production lines, and
promoted system informatization orderly, delivering
initial results in the reform of the Company. During the
year, the Group has won a number of honored titles
from government authorities and customers, such as
“Specialized and New’” Enterprise (“EfE4F#H " 1%)in
Shaanxi Province, “Industrial Masterpiece” Enterprise (‘I
¥K R %) in Shaanxi Province, Selected Enterprise for
Hidden Champions (‘BEX B E” A E AE R ) in Shaanxi
Province, Municipal Pilot Unit of Standardization and
Integration Management System (F#kMICRHEEERE A
EZH BB ), Civil and Military Joint Venture (BER &
2£), Municipal Technological Innovation Demonstration
Enterprise (M 4R iTBIFT & 2E), Municipal Advanced
Manufacturing Demonstration Enterprise (4Rt S5 %
TRES ), Advanced Local Trade Union in the Economic
Development Zone (RRF&STEEE T F)and Excellent
Supplier (BF 7). These achievements were impossible
without the efforts of our team and staff, as well as the
trust and support from our customers and suppliers.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

NEHMIURR :

AANEBRRPAXRGEAERNAEERQ S
(AR EEE (EEg) EE2EXA B ME
MEBAT (NEE) #1E2021F12831H Lk
FE (XFEE)ZER-

2021F " AEBERKET ¥ FEBRKREFA
EB175BHNESRaE HWE&ET T
YEEATEBI.7TEWMNE P REE - B M
MERAEZLOBAN TSP RREREE RS
BEOo021FAEFEEBHFEERH20257c @
EE2020FE LA RMBHEZEE T+
BALRANER FEHIBPIEILMA-
REBR2021FEFHBWAHNARKK295.8
BB BETME22.1% (20204 : AR
379.6EHT) BN AL HZRERE
HHERAMHUARKE7 SEET (2020 : A
RI50. 9887w - ARBIFAEZARES
k2021 FEREARR B o

2021RAEBA2EHTEELCNREBZ
FoOBEE— T AEEBRYTEELEE
ER 2 EAHLRERTEBRE &
THRHEERAEEL ARESEMERY ;
E—F O AERNTESTHAL EHBEH
Tt -PRAS I TEBRI X TBELTE]
HEEEAECE THAMLHESSEERS
EAMBU - EREMELE THREMAH
TEHLE TRt ENSERDLE KM
BERXEEBIT e EFEHAIEBNEE
PHSEEE FLERENRE  BEAMER
IR BF B TS 7 F1 (T H o B R BE 3 19
NERNHESBEHEATRMANGEEES
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Looking forward to 2022, China’s economy will continue
to recover steadily, and the fundamentals of the long-
term sound macro-economy will not change. Heavy truck
market is facing industry adjustment and has changed
from incremental competition to stock competition. Thanks
to policy supports, passenger vehicle market has huge
potential, contributing to an increase in the market share
and sales of self-branded passenger vehicle market. We
will make solid efforts to promote dual wheel drive for
passenger vehicles and commercial vehicles, and retain
the existing market and expand the external market. We
will continue to improve and adhere to the promotion of
the Tianrui Excellent Management System Project (“TES”),
making Tianrui basic approaches the standard model
for management of the Group. We will complete the
company’s system and credit system construction and
develop the incentive mechanism of key employees through
conforming to and establishing of standards, thus achieving
a win-win situation for Tianrui people.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to our honorable
shareholders. Under the accelerated reshuffle of the
industry, the Group will respond to it with the strategy
of “breakthrough for reconstruction, system support and
win-win cooperation (R EE > B2 E HLAHER)”,
and take priority in promoting sustainable development
and constantly improving business management.
By implementing the TES and further increasing its
competitiveness, the Group is committed to promoting its
long-term and sound development, so as to create greater
value to reward the support of the shareholders.

Hou Jianli
Chairman

Xi’an, China, 29 March 2022

Chairman’s Statement

FEHRSE

RE2022F - RBEIKERFEREME &
BRERMAENEFIEFAEXE -E~H
CHBRTEFAZ BEREERFERTER
FORAETSEBNBRXF BHEKX
BWHEETRETEAETSNERABEER -
RARREBHEREELEEREERED
BWEFETERERIIBHHERE ; HM
WA TETRFHEEITES ) (RIFE-E
BER EXGRELRZAAEEREENR
ZERL, AARBBHBILR  THAF
WEREELCER THEHE THHBK
fl BRERXIBANHAHER -

REBE AABAREFTTREMHIRRRINU
RREOHNHFR -ETEMRABRIERT
FEBRRBIRREB BERXE HaH
mINKRBRENE RUKBEBERMNT
BTN ENCELEERBATFEN 2EE
MU BRTREEUEERRZ E—TRAS
FHBRAREEEERBRRES R UAE
BEARRENGEE ARRAEEKRER-

wER

E

FEAL2022F3H29H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BBk h

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

For 2022, under the background of routinized epidemic
prevention and control, China will face a complicated
economic situation and changing market pressure. Due
to the impact of full switch to new emission standards
in July 2021, it is expected that the sales of heavy
trucks may show an upward trend throughout the year
of 2022. With the alleviation of chip supply shortage and
a concentrated release of consumer demand, the sales
curve of the passenger vehicle market is also expected
to show an upward trend in 2022. Despite significant
uncertainties, China’s automobile industry, as a pillar
industry, will play its role in stabilizing the fundamentals
of economic development. Therefore, adjustments to
the macroeconomic policy will continue to benefit the
automobile industry.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are the largest heavy trucks’ interior decorative
components and parts manufacturer in North West China
with a market-leading position. Our products primarily
comprise a wide array of automotive interior decorative
components and parts and to a lesser extent exterior
decorative components and parts, which are designed to
be installed on heavy trucks or passenger vehicles. We
offer design and development solutions tailored to meet
our customers’ specific requirements of automotive interior
decorative products including functional specifications and
appearance.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

TEHE

2022F AR BEHERBREER T REE
MEEENCETLBNZENTHEE - H
RZ2021F7TR MR REEZE BN E
Z > Ast2022F 2 FEFHETREZ R
B -FAETHSBEESREEEENNE
EEFROEDER > B5t2022F 2
BMTREFEREBEZ -BEFETEESTM®
ERE ETEAEERFERAITEE R
EEEFEACKEEREABNOFER RHER
RIEREEN R ABETE

7% [o] B8
RMPEERAASTEHALREANERLFE
MEFZ A REB  EEHBRLMA T
PMNERTEERERFERRABERER
ARNERAERNMZTEHMGF HREEINGHET
B -HARRELAFHAEAHERNIE
RMERINGEESAEBERREEH RN
FEMRL R



Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of automotive interior and exterior decorative
components and parts. Set forth below is the breakdown
of our revenue by product category for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020:

EIEE st kD th

REBTERBAERINEHRS R HFE RS
FSHE o FTREHEHE2021F K2020F 12
B31ELELEERERENI D ZHMHIIUK
A

Year ended 31 December

HE12A1HLEE
2021 2020
20214 20205
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARBTT % ARETT %
Heavy trucks’ decorative BN RHEMDTE M
components and parts 269,196 91.01 332,448 87.6
Passenger vehicles’ decorative 3 BB 4 #f T 2B 1
components and parts 26,580 8.99 47,107 12.4
Total A5t 295,776 100.0 379,555 100.0

Revenue from sales of heavy trucks’ decorative
components and parts

Revenue generated from sales of heavy trucks’ decorative
components and parts decreased from approximately
RMB332.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB269.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, representing a decrease of approximately
19.0%, mainly due to the decline of the sales volume of
heavy truck nationwide in 2021. The overall impact on the
heavy truck industry has led to a decrease in the revenue of
the Group.

BERFERHETHHHEEEZRA

HEEBEM FEEHSHHELENRAH
HZE2020F12B31HLEEFEMNY AR
332 4B B TRV EEHE2021FE12H31H
FEENHARIE269.2H8 T BIBN A
19.0% TEHMR2021E2FEHEERNE +
MHEHEETE STEEREE - WATEA
FrT~iBe
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BBk h

Revenue from sales of passenger vehicles’ decorative
components and parts

Revenue generated from sales of passenger vehicles’
decorative components and parts decreased from
approximately RMB47.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB26.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, representing a decrease of
approximately 43.6%. The decrease was mainly due to our
reduction in the supply of low-margin products to multi-tier
suppliers, while expanding products supply to automobile
plants as the first-tier supplier.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Qur revenue decreased from approximately RMB379.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB295.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, representing a decrease of approximately
22.1%. The decrease was primarily due to the drop in sales
of our heavy trucks’ decorative components and parts and
passenger vehicles’ decorative components and parts.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit decreased from approximately RMB116.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB70.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, representing a decrease of approximately
39.6%. For the year ended 31 December 2021, our overall
gross profit margin decreased by approximately 6.9% as
compared with that in 2020, mainly due to the lower selling
price for products, higher purchase price for some raw
materials and higher fixed costs such as depreciation.

Other income

Our other income decreased from approximately
RMB6.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB3.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, representing a decrease of approximately
39.7%, which was mainly due to the decrease of RMB2.7
million in net gain from the sales of medical goggles and
scrap materials in 2021 compared with that of 2020.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

BRAEEMTHGHEELEZNRA

HERBEEMTBHEEENKRABREER
2020 12B31HIEFENNARKLIT1E
BETRLEHZE2021FE12831HIEEEN
WARM26.6E BT MRIBENA43.6% ° %
BRLOETERHREMARDTEREMNESZD
ZHRMEBNMHEE BFEBEAXTEAE —RMH
FEAmEEmE R ERMNMEE-

Bt 7% [o] B

KA
WAREZE2020FE12831HIEEEMNH A
REIE379.6BE8 TRV ERHE2021F128
STHIEFENNARME205.8F&F T [RIg
WAE22A1% ZBLVFERHRBEMUEDR
FTEEMEX G R TRBEENSHEHE

b o

EMREFE

ENREE2020F12H31BLEEEND
ARB116.9BB TR L EHE2021F12
BS1BEFENMOARE70.6BE T [&
B4 A39.6% 8 E2021F12H31H 1k
FEE CHMANEREBEANEXK2020F /4
6.9% TERHNRERER TR EBDE
MEEEER NESEEEMA LRME -

Hihug A
HMKWAREE2020F12831HLEEEDN
WARBeSEETTRDE#IE2021F12A
SITHEFENNARKIOBEE T BIELN
B9 T% ZEBHMFERHN2021FHE
BREEREEBENZFWEK2020F /D
ARKE2 7TEHE T



Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution expenses

Qur selling and distribution expenses decreased from
approximately RMB9.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB9.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, representing a decrease of
approximately 7.5%. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in transportation costs as a result of the decrease
in our sales volume.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased from approximately
RMB41.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB47.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, representing an increase of 14.2%,
which was mainly due to the increase in the research and
development expenses and employee benefit costs in
2021. The local government has granted the exemption
of payment of defined contribution retirement plans to
our subsidiaries established in the PRC due to the impact
from COVID-19 during the period from February 2020 to
December 2020, but there was no such favourable policy in
2021.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased from approximately
RMB9.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB9.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, representing a decrease of approximately
4.0%. The decrease was mainly due the decrease in capital
needed for daily operating activities such as purchases
arising from the decrease in the sales revenue in 2021.

Income tax

Our income tax expense decreased from approximately
RMB12.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB1.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. Such decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in profit before taxation during the period.

EIEE st kD th

HEMX
HERINEE2020F12831HLEEEDN
WARBO7TEBTRDE#E20215F12H
STHEFEENHNARKIOEE T BIEX
BT 5% ZBALEERHRHEMNEZ R
BB E R AS R D o

THMAX
THEXHEE2020F12831HLEEERN
WARB41.3EETBEHRE2021F12H
STHIEFENOARKE47. 18 BT B8
HNAEH14.2% ZEETEHNKR2021FEH &
ERREERAMAEIMATE - AHK2020
FoRBE2020F12AFENMEETKRES
fiXwE AR ERE M EFHIEAR
YW FRABEHTCTEHERBRARFENHZRZE
BEH R 2021 FRXETZBEEERE -

B ¥ R s

M EE2020F12831HLEFEDN
WARBOCEEB TRV E#ME2021F12A
STHEFEMNHNARBI4BE T BIBL
B4 0% ZRALEERHNR2021FHMB
HEWARL FBEXNEBSIAELES
BENESH D

FRigiip
FriEMBEXNEE2020FE12831HLEEE
HOARBEI24ABBTH L E#HE20214F
12B31HLEEENNARKI6EE T %
O EEHRBEARRANEFR B
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BBk h

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year
decreased from approximately RMB50.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB7.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL

STRUCTURE

The operating capital of the Group was mainly from cash
from operating activities and bank and other loans. As at
31 December 2021 and 2020, cash and cash equivalents
of the Group were approximately RMB62.5 million and
RMB56.6 million, respectively.

The Group monitors the cash flows and cash balance on a
regular basis and seek to maintain optimal level of liquidity
that can meet the working capital needs while supporting a
healthy level of business and its various growth strategies.

Bank and Other Loans

Bank and other loans increased from approximately
RMB96.0 million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB1383.8 million as at 31 December 2021. Among them,
the bank and other loans in the amounts of approximately
RMB93.8 million (2020: RMB58.0 million) were secured
by trade receivables and bills receivables, property, plant
and equipment of the Group, and the credit loans and the
loans guaranteed by third party amounted to approximately
RMB40.0 million (2020: RMB38.0 million).

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2020 and 2021 were
at 35.6% and 50.2%, respectively.

Gearing ratio equals total debts divided by total equity as

at the end of the respective year. Total debts include all
interest-bearing bank and other loans.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

FREF
HREMER > EFR&EMNTEEE2020F12
B31HILEFENNARMS50.98 8 TR D
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R RRE o
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BT REMERN2020FE12831HMNHA A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Inventories

Our inventories decreased from approximately RMB78.5
million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB60.2
million as at 31 December 2021, representing a decrease
of approximately 23.2%. The decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in the volume of inventories as a result of the
decrease in the sales order in the second half of 2021.

Prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment

Qur prepayment for acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment decreased from approximately RMB9.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB6.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing a decrease of approximately 36.8%. The
decrease was mainly due to the fact that the prepayments
made in 2020 have been reclassified to the property, plant
and equipment in 2021.

Secured Assets
Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by
the following assets of the Group:

EIEE st kD th

78
FENWR2020FE12B31HMHY AR KKT78.5
BB TRV E2021FE12B31HNH AR
60.2B BT BIBHNA23.2% ZBLEE
EHR2021FETHEFETERL FTHEDN
FEERESRL-

BEVME -BERRBEZEMRE

BEYE BMEERRBEZAMNHEN2020
F12A3THHNNAREBKI.OBETHE
2021F12B31HHNY AR ®6.3E B T’ [&
B4 %436.8% cZmA/ EFEZHMN20204F
FrfadzRIEENDIEAE2021EMN Y E K
EREE-

BHEFEE
AEEBNETROAREMERBLEERN
UTEEFER:

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T AREFT

Property, plant and equipment MEBERRE 112,144 84,576
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWHIE & EWEE 25,090 30,625
137,234 115,201
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BBk h

Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2021, the capital expenditures were
approximately RMB49.9 million (2020: approximately
RMB36.9 million). The capital expenditures incurred for
the year ended 31 December 2021 primarily related to the
purchase of new machinery and equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the capital commitments in
respect of property, plant and equipment contracted for
approximately RMB16.0 million (2020: approximately
RMB26.5 million).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities (2020: RMB Nil).

FLUCTUATION OF RMB EXCHANGE RATE AND

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The majority of the Group’s business and all bank
borrowings are denominated and accounted for in RMB.
Therefore, the Group does not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuation.

The Board does not expect the fluctuation of RMB
exchange rate and other foreign exchange fluctuations
will have material impact on the business operations
or financial results of the Group. The Group will closely
monitor the foreign exchange market and take appropriate
and effective measures from time to time to reduce any
negative impact from exchange-rate risk to the furthest
extent.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no significant investments held or material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the average
number of employees of the Group was 540 (2020: 663).
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred
total staff costs of approximately RMB50.7 million (2020:
approximately RMB50.1 million), representing an increase
of approximately 1% as compared with those in 2020.
The increase was mainly due to (i) an increment of staff
salaries as our Group actively expanding new projects,
increasing R&D investments and introducing high-level
talent teams; and (ii) the absence of exemption of payment
of defined contribution retirement plans granted by the
local government to our subsidiaries established in the PRC
due to COVID-19 during the period in the current year as
compared with the corresponding period in 2020.

The remuneration policy of our Group to reward its
employees and executives is based on their performance,
qualifications, competence displayed and market
comparable. Remuneration package typically comprises
salaries, other benefits, discretionary bonuses and
retirement benefits scheme contributions.

In order to retain and develop the knowledge, skill level
and quality of our employees, the Group places a strong
emphasis on training our employees. In addition, the Group
offers a competitive remuneration package to retain elite
employees, and reviews the package annually according
to industry benchmark and financial results as well as the
individual performance of employees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BBk h

MAJOR SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

By the end of 31 December 2021, the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic and the outbreaks in some provinces in the
PRC has brought uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and has certainly impacted the Group’s
operations and financial position. The Group has been
closely monitoring the impact of the developments on
the Group’s business and has put in place contingency
measures. In view of the epidemic-driven economic
downturn, the Group assessed the situation and adhered to
the principles of reducing costs and enhancing operational
efficiency.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this report, neither our Company nor its subsidiaries
have purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2022, in response to the increasingly
fierce market competition, the Group will take the initiative
to expand new customers, continue to strengthen new
product development with existing customers and
continuously diversify product mix, so as to enhance core
competitiveness. With the experience, technical expertise
and knowledge accumulated over years, we analyzed
the latest technology trends and launched new products.
Currently, we have obtained new projects such as rearview
mirror and bumper assembly, and have completed
the Standard Operating Procedure. We will focus on
standardization, automation, informatization and systematic
construction in future, so as to boost the growth of sales
revenue and continuous improvement of the management
system.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Hou Jianli E#)), aged 58, is one of the founders
of our Group, our Executive Director, the chairman of our
Board, the chief executive officer and the general manager
of our Group. Mr. Hou is mainly responsible for the overall
management, operations, strategic development and
business planning of our Group. Mr. Hou joined our Group
in May 2009 and has been acting as executive director
and general manager of Xi’an Tianrui since then. He was
appointed as our Director on 27 April 2017 and was
redesignated as our Executive Director on 9 May 2018.
Mr. Hou is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Hou is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company.

Mr. Hou also possesses over 30 years of experience in
the manufacturing industry. From August 1985 to January
2000, Mr. Hou successively served as technician, workshop
deputy director, branch manager, chief engineer and head
of the composite packaging materials research institute of
B PE & S 824 Mk (Shaanxi Province Pioneer Machinery
Factory®). Since January 2000, Mr. Hou served as legal
representative and director of B#H M REBEEEHBFERA
&) (Baoji Tianxiang Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd.*).

Mr. Hou graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Technology (F&
78 T2 5%) (now known as Shaanxi University of Technology
(BRPAAE T AE)) in the PRC with a bachelor’'s degree in
industrial electronic automation in July 1985.

Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen, who is our Controlling
Shareholder.

Ms. Hou Yuxi (R /&), aged 33, is our Executive Director
and the assistant to the chairman of the Group. She is
mainly responsible for strategic planning, team evaluation,
and performance assessment. Ms. Hou joined our Group
in March 2020. She was appointed as our Executive
Director on 12 June 2020. Ms. Hou is also a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFRERERERE

Ms. Hou has over 6 years of experience in the banking
industry. From July 2013 to March 2020, Ms. Hou served
as a cash teller, counter teller, business appraisal post,
product manager, and wealth consultant for China
Minsheng Bank Co., Ltd. Xi’an Branch. During this period,
she obtained various certifications such as Certified
Financial Planner and International Certificate in Banking
Risk and Regulation (ICBRR).

Ms. Hou graduated from Fudan University in July 2013 with
a master’s degree in economics.

Ms. Hou is the daughter of Mr. Hou Jianli, who is our
Controlling Shareholder, Executive Director, the chairman
of our Board, the chief executive officer and the general
manager of our Group. Ms. Hou is also the daughter of Ms.
Chen, who is our Controlling Shareholder.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Honggiang (%415%), aged 52, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December
2018 and is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhu has over 20 years of
experience in legal practice in the PRC. He joined Shaanxi
Yongjia Law Firm (BR P X EREEMEFFT) in October 2001 as
a lawyer and the deputy director and is currently a partner
of the law firm.

Mr. Zhu obtained a diploma in law from Northwest College
of Political Science and Law (FAIEEE2B7R) (now known
as Northwest University of Political Science and Law (73t
B %A K E)) through self-study higher education examination
(B5EHBEBE2%5)in the PRC in June 1998. Mr. Zhu
obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Evening College
of Xi’an Technological Institute (F8% I 2 2 5%) (now known
as Xi’an Technological University (FAZ T ¥ A&)) in the
PRC in July 2005. Mr. Zhu was admitted as a PRC lawyer
by the Shaanxi Provincial Department of Justice (FXFE & B
75 BE) in October 2001.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhou Genshu (A#R##), aged 57, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December
2018 and is also the chairman of the audit committee of
the Company and a member of each of the remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhou has over 26 years of experience in the education
industry. Since November 1995, he worked in the School
of Materials Science and Engineering of Xi’an Jiaotong
University (P8 22 228 A B4 11 8 82 T 32 B2 b)) successively
as associate professor, professor and doctorial supervisor
and is mainly responsible for lecturing and material science
research. During such period, he has hosted several
important scientific research projects and published
academic papers on reputable scientific journals.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in foundry
engineering and a master’s degree in foundry engineering
from Tsinghua University CEZEAZ)in July 1986 and
August 1989 respectively. He obtained a doctoral
degree in foundry engineering from Northwestern Poly-
technical University (FA3E T2 K2)in October 1993. He
obtained a post-doctoral certificate in material science
and engineering from National Post-Doctoral Regulatory
Committee (ZEE L% EEZEZB®)in December 1995.
He serves as the committee member and secretary of the
Typical Component Heat Treatment Technology Committee
of the Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society (2= iR
EBES2gHAZTHAEERIITEZEE)since October 2006,
the standing committee member of the Heat Treatment
Branch of Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society (7 Bl 14
T2 EREIEDE)since July 2015 and the chairman
of the Material and Heat Treatment Branch of the Shaanxi
Provincial Mechanical Engineering Society (BR78 2 # i T
REIME ERMEIESDE)since March 2016. He has been
granted several awards including the third prize of Shaanxi
Province Science and Technology Award, the second prize
of Xi’an City Science and Technology Award, the second
prize of Chinese University Science and Technology Award
and the Technology Innovation Award of Heat Treatment
Society.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFRERERERE

Mr. Chen Geng (FfEk), aged 48, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 15 September
2020 and is also a member of each of the audit committee
and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chen has
over 17 years of experience in the education industry. He
has been working in the School of Economics and Business
Administration of Chongqging University (2B A2 4875 8 T
i B IR B2 BR) successively as associate professor, professor
and master tutor since July 2004 and is mainly responsible
for lecturing and financial, accounting and financial market
research. During such period, he has hosted several
scientific research projects and published academic papers
on reputable journals.

Mr. Chen is currently an independent director of Chongqging
Lummy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (stock code: 300006), a
company being listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, an
independent director of Landai Technology Group Corp.,
Ltd. (stock code: 002765), a company being listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, an independent director
of Fuan Pharmaceutical (Group) co.,Ltd. (stock code:
300194), a company being listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, and an independent director of Jiutai Mutual
Fund Co.

Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor ’s degree in economics from
Renmin University of China (FE AR AX&)and a master
's degree in economics from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics (FARE & AZ)in July 1996 and
June 2001 respectively. He obtained a doctor’s degree in
economics from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics (FARFEF & K2)in June 2004 and obtained a
post-doctoral certificate in business administration from
National Post-Doctoral Regulatory Committee (& E1#
THEEEZEE)in March 2009. Mr. Chen obtained the
qualification as Certified Public Valuer and Certified Public
Accountant both granted by the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in September 2001 and July
2004 respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hou Jianli (2##)), aged 58, is one of the founders
of our Group, our Executive Director, the chairman of
our Board, the chief executive officer and the general
manager of our Group. For further details, please refer to
the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this section
above.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Hou Yuxi (/&) , aged 33, is our Executive Director
and the assistant to the chairman of the Group. For further
details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive
Directors” in this section above.

Ms. Zhang Wei (3Rf%), aged 34, is the chief financial
officer of our Group, the secretary of our Board and one of
the joint company secretaries of our Company. Ms. Zhang
is primarily responsible for the accounting and financial
management of our Group and assisting our Board on
corporate governance matters. Ms. Zhang joined our Group
in September 2020 and has been the chief financial officer
of Xi’an Tianrui.

Ms. Zhang has over 7 years of experience in accounting.
From April 2012 to June 2018, Ms. Zhang served as a
project manager at Xigema Certified Public Accountants
(Special Ordinary Partnership) (F#& 35 & 5t B0 S % Fr
(EHEES)). During such period, she was mainly
responsible for the annual audit and internal control audit
work of large-scale state-owned enterprises and listed
companies. From November 2019 to August 2020, Ms.
Zhang served as the chief financial officer of Xi’an Huaren
Health Investment Management Co., Ltd (FBZE#
BEREEEARAT), which principally engages in the
business of equity investment. During such period, she
was mainly responsible for the financial management of the
company.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in management
from Xi'an College of Posts and Telecommunications (7§
Z B EPRT) (now known as Xi’an University of Posts and
Telecommunications (BZE#BEAZ)) in July 2010. Ms.
Zhang has been qualified as a Chinese Certified Public
Accountant since August 2014.

Mr. Xu Yunhua (f &%), aged 44, is our sales director.
He is mainly responsible for sales management of Xi’an
Tianrui. He joined our Group in September 2010 and had
successively worked as sales supervisor and the head
of the sales department of Xi’an Tianrui. He was then
promoted to the sales director of Xi’an Tianrui in February
2019. Mr. Xu is also the director of a subsidiary of the
Company.
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EFRERERERE

Mr. Xu has over 18 years of experience in the sales
industry. From August 2003 to September 2010, he
worked successively as a salesman, the assistant section
head of the sales department and the head of the plastic
production factory of BEHEMBESEXER AT (Baoji
Wanhe Enterprise Co., Ltd*).

Mr. Xu obtained his technical secondary school diploma in
industrial electronic automation from Baoji Industrial School
(now known as Baiji Vocational and Technical College (Z %
B2 T 22 B%) ) in July 1997.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Zhang Wei (5R#%§), aged 34, was appointed as one
of the joint company secretaries of our Company on 28
December 2020. She is also the chief financial officer
of our Group and the secretary of our Board. For her
qualifications and experience, please refer to the paragraph
headed “SENIOR MANAGEMENT” in this section.

Mr. Ip Pui Sum (EH#), aged 62, was appointed as
one of the joint company secretaries of our Company on
9 May 2018. Mr. Ip has been the partner of Sum, Arthur &
Co., Certified Public Accountants since 1999 whose scope
of services include the provision of financial statements
audit, accounting and company secretary services. Mr. Ip
has been appointed as the company secretary of various
companies listed on the Main Board and GEM of the Stock
Exchange including Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Group
(stock code: 322), Luoyang Glass Company Limited (stock
code: 1108), Beijing Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1858), Golden Solar New Energy
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 1121) and
Asiaray Media Group Limited (stock code: 1993) since
January 1996, August 2008, March 2015, April 2017 and
June 2017 respectively and one of the joint company
secretaries of ZACD Group Ltd. (stock code: 8313) since
July 2017.

Mr. Ip obtained a higher diploma in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1982 and
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Henley Management College and Brunel University in May
1997. Mr. Ip is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in
Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

HEREBEREBISFHETEXKER 82003
F8RAE2010F98 RAERETEATE
BEXAERRAFDEHENNHFEE BB EY
BU KBRS GBEE -

HFAEERI97TETANREBEEA T IEER
(R BEHRRERMER) TXERE T
SEDRHFMEK

BEATIME

IR 345 M2020F 123 28R E S
EAERBZHBERBMEZ — BT AE
FrEBVKEERESSWE EHHELER
L& F2EAHEREERBI—Ke

BEihAZLE 62m N2018F580HESE
EAHERARBHNBFERAAMEZ —cEXRE
HI1999FUKRA MK TMEAMITHNEER
N ERFHECEREETFRERSBT T
SR ABIMERT - B1996%F 18 ~2008%F
8H 2015FE38 201 7F 48 &2017E6 8
B EREEDHNEZRAZSREIMER
KRGEMEMmABNARAME  ZELAASE
BEEEZERERLRE (RGBS :322) &
BREBRHOERLE (BRMEMRE:1108) »
IEEmEILIETEEERRMROSBERLAE (K
ARSE 1 1858) B MAERNEIZERER
NE (D ARSE 1121) R EFEEER
BRAT (BMHASE : 1993) » UMK BEH2017
FTRREEZEARGHERERAE (K
MRS 8313) WEE  ABMEZ—>

ERER1982F 11BN ERET RBERE
B R EESHERN1997TES R ERH
HAEENBAS=FEEREERN InE R
ETEBA EL4LRATBNETM A
ERFATIGHA LA TERTTEUREE
B A ERBFHFEESHABE &
ERAMERTRAEHTIREBFTM

I\ L e =
EREEB-



Corporate Governance Report

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE

GOVERNMENT CODE

Our Company has committed to delivering and maintaining
a higher standard of corporate governance to meet
business needs and shareholders’ expectation. Our
Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as the basis of our
Company’s corporate governance practices. The Corporate
Governance Code has been applicable to our Company
with effect from the Listing Date, save for the following
deviation:

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 (re-numbered to C.2.1
from 1 January 2022) of the Corporate Governance Code,
the role of chairman and the chief executive should be
segregated and should not be performed by the same
individual. However, Mr. Hou Jianli currently performs the
roles as the chairman and general manager. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and general
manager in the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within our Group and enables more
efficient overall strategic planning for our Group. The Board
considers that the balance of power and authority will not
be impaired by the present arrangement and this structure
will enable our Company to make and implement decisions
promptly and effectively. After taking into account the
overall circumstances of our Group, the Board will continue
to review and consider whether the duties of the chairman
and general manager should be separated.

Save as disclosed above, our Company will comply with
the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. Our Directors will review our corporate
governance policies and compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code each financial year.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEXERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The
Board has established three Board committees, being the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
(each a “Board Committee” and collectively the “Board
Committees”) , to oversee different areas of the Company’s
affairs. As of the date of this annual report, the composition
of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Hou Jianli (Chairman)
Ms. Hou Yuxi

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Genshu

Mr. Zhu Honggiang

Mr. Chen Geng

Their biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 17 to 22 in the annual report. A list of the
Directors identifying their role and function and whether
they are independent non-executive Directors are available
on the Company’s website.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company for a term of three years unless
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s
notice in writing to the other party.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with our Company for a
term of three years unless terminated by either party giving
not less than one month’s written notice to the other party.
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The relationship of the chairman and general manager
Mr. Hou Jianli and Executive Director Ms. Hou Yuxi is
father and daughter. Other than that, there is no financial,
business or other material/relevant relationships among
members of the Board.

The functions and duties of the Board include but are not
limited to: convening Shareholders’ general meetings and
reporting the Board’s work at the Shareholders’ general
meetings; implementing the resolutions passed at the
Shareholders’ general meetings; determining our business
plans and investment plans; preparing annual budget
proposals and final accounts proposals; preparing plans
for profit distribution and recovery of losses; preparing
plans for the increase or decrease in registered capital; and
exercising other power, functions and duties as conferred
by the Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”). Each of our Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Company, and the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management. The
Board also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report to ensure compliance.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with
reasonable care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the
development of the Company. Every newly appointed
Director receives an induction to ensure that he/she has
a proper understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his duties
and responsibilities as a director under applicable rules and
requirements.

EEXERRS

ITERTHRBHEERANTERATESRE
RMEXLIZEITARLBER KRILEZII EF

R A o

EZENBERBESEBRIRK  BRR
RARERMNKREAREGLEREFTEN I F;
BETRRAGLEBBNREZR HIEXEFH5
B hKkESE, RREEBEDRRRER
B, MRABOIKNBHEEIEE ; HEM
HHBEMRAG TS TRAREEMA
AP FHEMED BERBE -REF
BHEARBTIRBTEH -

EFgTEENE - BRAKEEETQRANE
XEERUKRERKRBEEGHRBRARER XU
REERSREEBBRNBIRFTBEERHE
BRER- BEFETEREEXELARSTAMFEL
I E  URRETSER

ESNRERIRERER

2REFHERREERIBENEE I
EEER - ERLABBUEEHETRS
WBE BRE2ATINERFLEEM -MEE
MEERSEERHABREN  URRFREY
FTABDNEFREEEBERR URDE
BRERRARRETEFERESTNRE
REE-

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2021

25

e



Corporate Governance Report

EEXERRS

The Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enrol in a wide range of professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of Laws of Hong
Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”) or act and corporate
governance practices organised by professional bodies so
that they can continuously update and further improve their
relevant knowledge and skills. In addition, briefings and
updates on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements are
provided to each of the Directors during Board meetings
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. During the year, the
Directors participated in the following trainings:

AR —EBRBEFHRENTXERBRENR
BERALEBRR S REEHER (FBEM
$F622%) (IM2EHFEAL) REXEERERZ
BZEXERERERBE ERFIFRE

MRE—D RS H AR MHE KB B o
REFEER L BESFTERMHARLD
RAKEMEREERERMERNB N
REHFER  UEFREREREAREERYT
CEELABRRENEH NER EFL2AT
BUF 3N

Type of training

Directors EF EEIEE R
Executive Directors HITEFE

Mr. Hou Jianli FEER A,B
Ms. Hou Yuxi =R AB
Independent Non-executive Directors BITIFERTEE

Mr. Zhu Honggiang SRAT A AB
Mr. Zhou Genshu BR AB
Mr. Chen Geng R Bk A.B

A: Reading materials given by the Company relating to the
Company’s businesses and the regular updates on the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements relevant to
the director’s duties and responsibilities

B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to

economy, environment and social issues or director’s duties
and responsibilities
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INDEPENDENCE OF

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the Independent Non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board,
giving adequate control and balances for the Company to
protect the overall interests of the Shareholders and the
Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three Independent
Non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. One of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each Independent Non-executive Director has submitted
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmations, the Company considers
that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
and Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has
its defined and written terms of reference approved by
the Board covering its duties, powers and functions. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are
respectively available on the Company’s website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management
or professional advice if considered necessary.

EEXERRS

BIFRTEFNRILM

BIUFATEENACRTTODEFTSRME
IREBENER  RERABREZTDOELA
REG MRERRKRETATDHERNE -

ABT EHRIEI10(1) K3 10AK XA
BAEZE=RBUERTEST BEESFZ
AN =ZD2Z2— BB LEHHRBEI.10(2)1K
NRE HF— 2 BUFHTESERESE
B EXERT BB EESEENH -

EBUFATEFER EHTRAEI.131F
WEERAFTABRXFEBIMEEIRZ R
BREEIENADT AR/ ERB UL
FHITESEHUBEILAL

EEXZEY

ExgREZEEZEEXR BEEREZE
T RLZEEARFHEEST -REFZEE
ENREKEFEHENFEESERES
EoREEBE - EORBE-BREEE
RUZEERFHEZEEERENREEE
DRE R AR QB AL o

EXZEENERHARERUNETRE
BREAIRLERNSEEEENEERR

ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2021

27

-



28

Corporate Governance Report

EEXERRS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Our Company established the Audit Committee on 18
December 2018 with its written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C.3 (re-numbered to D.3 from 1 January 2022)
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are mainly to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and removal of external auditors;
review the financial statements and material advice in
respect of financial reporting; and oversee internal control
procedures of our Company.

Our Audit Committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Zhou Genshu, Mr. Chen Geng and Mr. Zhu Honggiang.
Mr. Zhou Genshu is the chairman of our Audit Committee.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The Audit Committee has reviewed, among other things,
the financial statements of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 and the year ended 31 December
2021, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, report prepared by the external
auditors covering major findings in the course of the
audit, the risk management and internal control systems
and the overall effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit function and the accounting and financial reporting
matters, and selection and appointment of the external
auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Company established the Remuneration Committee
on 18 December 2018 with its written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph B.1 (re-numbered to E.1 from 1 January 2022)
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management
of our Group; review performance based remuneration;
and ensure none of our Directors determine their own
remuneration.
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EEXERRS

Our Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Zhu Hongagiang, Mr. Zhou Genshu and Ms.
Hou Yuxi. Mr. Zhu Honggiang is the chairman of our
Remuneration Committee.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure relating to the Directors
and senior management of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details
of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements in this annual report.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report. The
remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

Remuneration band (HK$)
i 4E B (B T)

RMFMEESER =M EME BIKAR
EE-BRBEERGRERL T RABE
ERBEMAFNEESTERE-

FR HFHNEEEERT—REFH-
EEEEREREFERFTIRASREER
R B R e R AE o

EFREREEZRFHM

AABEMEBECAERES RS REER
HFMA BRI L ERAREZRAENRER -1
HEC021F12B31HLEE  EEEMNH
BHeEBE N A ERFBRERW E8©

EREEBHNERERENLAER EFRks
hEEBEBRBE —H - RNEZE2021F12831
HIEEE ShEEBNHMNENNT @

Number of individuals

AB

0—1,000,000
1,000,000—1,500,000
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EEXERRS

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Our Company established the Nomination Committee on
18 December 2018 with its written terms of reference in
compliance with paragraph A.5 (re-numbered to B.3 from
1 January 2022) of the Corporate Governance Code set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board on a regular basis;
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members; assess the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors; and make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors.

Our Nomination Committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Hou Jianli, Mr. Zhou Genshu and Mr. Chen
Geng. Mr. Hou Jianli is the chairman of our Nomination
Committee.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
policy for the nomination of Directors, the structure, size
and composition of the Board and assessed independence
of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”). The Nomination Committee will
assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria such
as education background, experience, skill and ability
to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and
responsibilities. The Nomination Committee will monitor the
implementation of the Nomination Policy and report to the
Board when necessary. Also, the Nomination Committee
will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and will discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”). The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity
Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Company’s board of directors. With a view to
achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in the code provision D.3.1 (re-numbered to A.2.1 from
1 January 2022) of the Corporate Governance Code.

The Board developed, reviewed and monitored the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, and the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of Model Code,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each of the current Directors at
the Board and Board committee meetings and the general
meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out in the table below. The Directors
did not authorize any alternate Director to attend the Board
or Board Committee meetings
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EEXERRS

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEBRFERY

Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee Board Meeting
EEM% BREEE HMEEE R&ZEE E5g RREBEFEXE
Mr. Hou Jianli N/A N/A 1/1 4/4 1/1
EENEE ~EA T
Ms. Hou Yuxi N/A 11 N/A 4/4 1/1
EREZ LT ~BRA TEA
Mr. Zhu Honggiang 2/2 11 N/A 4/4 1/1
KA BESE TEA
Mr. Zhou Genshu 2/2 11 1/1 4/4 1/1
BR L
Mr. Chen Geng 2/2 N/A 1/1 4/4 1/1
BR Bk o 4 TER

BOARD MEETINGS

Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held regularly
at least four times each year and shall be convened by
the chairman of the Board of Directors. If a Director is
unable to attend a Board meeting, he may appoint another
Director by a written power of attorney to attend on his
behalf. Such a power of attorney shall specify the scope
of authorization. Directors attending Board meetings on
behalf of other directors shall exercise their powers as
directors within their scope of authorization. If a Director
fails to attend a Board meeting and does not appoint an
attorney to attend, the Director is deemed to have waived
his right to vote at that meeting. Each Director shall have
one vote. Questions arising at any meetings of the Board of
Directors shall be determined by a majority of votes. Where
the numbers of votes cast for and against a resolution
are equal, the chairman shall have the right to cast an
additional vote.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

EXgER

EXESFRERETELHIRERE LA
EEEIRAR - MEFARELRESFTS S
FZOHAUEEEBHAMESAHELRE -&&
RERIARELBE KA HFEFTET TR
NEERNRELERNTEEEHNESD M
EXXREHLRFEFTER TRAZEREK
HE ARFEZTERERNZREZ LR
- BRLEFEEXRRE-RNEFAESE
EERLRENBEHREARSHRRE
HENZEARHERS AETFERSZKR—

===
= ©



Corporate Governance Report

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’
and employees’ securities transactions. Upon specific
enquiries, all Directors and members of the senior
management confirmed that they have complied with the
relevant provisions of the Model Code throughout the
period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

To maintain good corporate governance practices and
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws, the
Company appointed Ms. Zhang Wei (chief financial officer)
and Mr. Ip Pui Sum as the joint company secretaries. Mr. Ip
Pui Sum assists Ms. Zhang Wei in performing her duties as
company secretary of the Company. Ms. Zhang Wei is the
main contact person of the Company. The joint company
secretaries confirmed having received no less than 15
hours’ of professional training.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board is responsible for maintaining effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
the Company’s assets and the interests of Shareholders.
We have put in place a set of internal control and risk
management protocols to address various operational,
financial, legal and market risks identified in relation to
our operations, including but not limited to procurement
and sales management, inventory management, research
and development management, credit risk management,
and various other financial and operational control and
monitoring procedures. Our risk management protocols
and policies set forth procedures to identify, categorize,
analyze and mitigate various risks and the relevant
reporting hierarchy of risks identified in our operations.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company, believing that the internal control system is
effective and adequate.
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EEXERRS

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by KPMG and considered that such services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the external
auditor.

The Group was charged RMB1.8 million and RMB50,000
by KPMG for auditing and non-auditing services
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
non-auditing services mainly consist of scrutineer service.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the year under review.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
and the Board. An annual general meeting of the Company
shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than
an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”).

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

AT GENERAL MEETINGS

EGMs shall also be convened on the requisition of one or
more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Board or a secretary for the purpose of requiring an
EGM to be convened by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the
Company, shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company by mail to 9/FF MW Tower, No. 111 Bonham
Strand, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors
and other stakeholders. These include the annual
general meeting, the annual and interim reports, notices,
announcements and circulars and the Company’s website
at www.trgcns.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Conditionally adopted by a special resolution dated 18
December 2018, the Articles of Association were adopted
with effect from the Listing Date. As at the date of this
report, no change has been made to the Articles of
Association after the Listing Date.

The Articles of Association are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
to prepare accounts of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
Company’s management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this
annual report.
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SUMMARY

This report is the fourth annual Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) report issued by the Group. This
report covers the work in the financial year from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”).

PREPARATION BASIS

The Group prepared the ESG report in accordance with
the ESG Guide (the “ESG Guide”) set out in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules. The ESG report is intended to provide
the environmental performance and social performance of
the Group during the Reporting Period, mainly including the
environmental and social issues related to the sustainable
development of the Group which the stakeholders concern,
so that key stakeholders can have a better understanding
of the Group’s sustainable development concepts,
measures and related performance, etc.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Materiality

The ESG factors were thoughtfully selected through an
internal materiality analysis undertaken by us. The first
step entailed identifying potential material topics, with
feedback garnered from relevant stakeholders. After which,
these feedback were then prioritized with regards to their
environmental and social impact to the Group and its
stakeholders.

Quantification

Statistical standards, methods, assumptions and/or
calculation tools for qualitative key performance indicators
herein and source of conversion factors are all explained in
the respective subsection of the Report.

Consistency

The statistical methodologies applied to the data disclosed
in this ESG report shall be consistent.
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SCOPE AND EXTENT OF REPORT

Unless specially stated, the policies, statements and
data in this report basically cover the Company and its
subsidiaries.

DATA SOURCE AND RELIABILITY ASSURANCE

The data and cases of this report are mainly derived from
the statistics report and related documents of the Group.
There is no false record or misleading statement in this
report and we shall be liable for the authenticity, accuracy
and completeness of the report.

PARTICIPATION AND CONTACT OF STAKEHOLDERS
The Group expects to respond to concerns of different
stakeholders on our performance of environmental
and social responsibilities through the ESG report, and
incorporate the opinions of various stakeholders into the
management of corporate sustainability. If the stakeholders
have any comments on the contents of the Group’s ESG
report, please feel free to send a letter to the Company’s
principal office in Hong Kong to contact the company
secretary of the Company.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL
As confirmed by the management, this report was
approved by the board of directors on 29 March 2022.
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1. KEY ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE PERFORMANCE
OF ESG IN 2021

Environment
RIE

Investment of
over RMB900,000
for environment
improvement
KRABBEIOETH
RIRIERE

Waste water
discharge
indicators

have reached
urban Level

3 discharge
standards

BE K BERIE R &
WE=AREEREE

Greenhouse

gas emission
intensity | 6%
BERBHEREE
Bt | 6%

Solid waste
emission
intensity { 5%
&S B Y HE I E
ERt!5%

2

Employees
8T

39807
accumulated
training hours
RetiZ| 2R E
39807/)\BF

Proportion of
trainees of over
100%

EXPN ¢l
100%

Carrying out 11
internal post
competition

MERBRE115

Promoting 26
employees
BIK266 B T

0 fatal work-
related accident

OETHEREEH

Q

Q

Products

Edm

Development of
381assemblies
3811E 42 p} B 32

Development of
617 new product
(parts)
61718 ¥ Z &
(M)

20 new
projects under
development
20B ¥ IEE M

5 technical
innovations

SIR R T &

0 product recall
OREmAMD
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Social
responsibilities
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Donated 2400
pieces of medical
eye shields to
the pandemic
prevention
headquarter of
the Economic
Development
Zone
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Corporate
honors
EEHEE

“Specialized and
New” small- and
medium-sized
enterprise in
Shaanxi Province
bR 78 A T2
R/

Technological
Innovation
Demonstration
Enterprise in
Xi’an City
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“Shaanxi
Industrial
Premium”
enterprise
ThRPE T 245 7
b2

Member
enterprise in the
hidden champion
cultivation

base Standard
implementation
pilot unit in
municipal
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Municipal &l
Integration
Management
System
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ESG CONCEPT OF THE GROUP

The Group formulated the concept of ESG
development by building the “2+2” two-wheel
driven strategy of “commercial vehicles + passenger
vehicles supply chain”, based on the Group’s core
values of “Integrity, Concentration, Innovation and
Win-win”. Under the guidance of the ESG concept
implemented by the Group through applying the six
modules of the Tianrui Excellent Management System
Project (“TES”), tasks are well done in such aspects
as the “top priority to research and development”,
“quality-oriented”, “supremacy of environment
protection”, “quality services”, “sharing development
with employees”, “giving back to society” and
“performance of social responsibilities”.

To better promote the normalized management of
ESG, implement the ESG strategies and enhance the
ESG related risk control, the Group adopts the three-
level governance structure: the board of directors, the
general manager and ESG working group. The board
of directors is responsible for implementing the ESG
management in a top-down way, the general manager
for directly managing and supervising, and ESG
working group for specific execution of the same.

INTEGRITY: HONESTY AND TRUSTWORTHINESS,

QUALITY-ORIENTED

Integrity: Honesty and Trustworthiness

The Group strictly abides by relevant national laws
and regulations, advocates a corporate culture of
integrity, and attaches importance to its own integrity
establishment. We promote the stable development
of an enterprise featured by ecologically sustainable
growth and strongly object to monopoly, illegal
competition, destroying of market environment,
violation of competition rules and other unfair
competition methods. During the Reporting Period,
we were not involved in any unfair competition or
corruption related lawsuits.

3.1

S EESGER

AEBRUT EERABE+RBEMHEBHES
WEBESNI2+2 1 BBATE B2 TH
E-BEE AN -HRINEEZLEE
B> G CESCGEREBR -BBXRIn=H
EERBAER (TTESEHR)) WAKE
BMKESGEIZRINER  MEMER
K BEAX RBREEL -EBERBE
HETH=ZR LIBEMLT - BITHE
8-

BT B EHEEBESGERILE
> BITESGEE B A 2 A ESGHE R
RiREE AEERN=_KEGERB
EFE MEEDUKESGIE/NE-E
EEB LM T HHESGER  BKIEE
EEENEE ESGILE/NEZRIEH
7o

#WiE HETEEESS
BAE  HE T

AEBBEBRETEKAERERBE B
EHETENEEXLL EREBIREZ
MER - BEMBREZEENQATHRSE
NEMEE TERBERNERAF
BEFE-RMBARARYEH BE2H
BECRBRDIBIRENREF SRR R BER
EREARFHFITR-BEHA R
PAREEEANAEEGFAETEHR
BEESFER R o

ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2021

39

-



40

.

3.1.1 Anti-corruption

We have developed the Anti-Corruption Policy and
Whistle-blowing Policy that explicitly sets out the
whistle-blowing process and procedures and requires
all of our employees and other external interested
persons to abide by the anti-corruption laws and
regulations of each jurisdiction, and advocates
and encourages report the potential illegal acts of
employees, customers, suppliers and other interested
parties. As for the whistle-blowing process, we have
set up a whistle-blowing system and channels to
protect the whistle-blowers from unfair dismissals,
persecution and unnecessary disciplinary actions.

3.1.2 Training on integrity

The anti-corruption strategy of the Group is based
on prevention, communication and training, regularly
advocating anti-corruption policies and regulations to
all the employees and fostering a sense of integrity.
Meanwhile, we conduct irregular training and
knowledge competition for all the employees, regulate
the behavior of employees, maintain an atmosphere of
integrity and dedication, and prevent the occurrence
of intentional fabrication and disclosure of trade
secrets, corruption, misappropriation, embezzlement
and other acts that damage the interests of the
Group. During the Reporting Period, we were not
involved in any corruption related lawsuits.
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3.2 Integrity: Quality-oriented 3.2 HIE - HEAK
3.2.1 Quality concept 321 E5EES

The Group has always been practically strengthening
corporate quality management, formulating and
following the quality policy of “Quality First,
Customer First, Optimizing Management, and
Sustainable Development”. During the Reporting
Period, the building of the six major modules of the
Tianrui Excellent Management System (TES) of the
Group had been completed, including one first-
class file, 76 second-class files and 215 third-class
files. We uphold the basic principle of focusing
customers, vigorously promote the comprehensive
quality management work, and build the 4M
change management mechanism, the layered audit
mechanism and the APU fast reaction mechanism.
During the Reporting Period, under the TES, the
Group conducted the assessment of the skills of
quality engineers and inspectors, improved their skills
and built the quality files for inspectors. With the joint
efforts of all the employees, incoming material quality,
process quality, quality improvement, quick quality
response and other aspects have been substantially
improved.

We strictly abide by laws and regulations such as
the Product Quality Law, the Standardization Law,
the Metrology Law, the Law on the Protection of
Rights and Interests of Consumers. We carry out
business operations in accordance with laws, abide
by contracts, ensure quality and firmly object to the
selling of sub-quality products.
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3.2.2 Control of incoming material quality

During the Reporting Period, we attach importance to
the performance evaluation management of suppliers,
and conduct a comprehensive evaluation from four
dimensions including supply ability, technical skKills,
quality capability and service capability respectively,
to identify 9 suppliers in black list, 34 suppliers
in yellow list, 205 suppliers in green list and 804
suppliers in red list. The suppliers in black list will
be announced and the suppliers in yellow list will
be warned. We have successively knocked out 9
suppliers in black list and yellow list, thus achieving
the resource integration of our suppliers. Under
the guidance of the TES system of the Group, we
strictly control the supplier admission and positioning
and conduct the comprehensive assessment in the
four aspects, namely the on-site audit results of
suppliers, historical product performance, suppliers’
quality system and suppliers’ major customers and
products. Meanwhile, we have gradually included the
outstanding suppliers in the industry in the Group’s
supply chain system by conducting benchmarking
against the benchmarking supply chain system in
the industry. We organize the suppliers of major
materials and key components and parts to carry out
benchmarking in the Group. We make comparison in
accordance with the method of “Three Unifications”
(unified standards, unified methods, and unified tools),
with 335 items unified according to the standards,
593 controlled incoming material SIP inspection
guidebooks received and the incoming material
inspection basis improved. Meanwhile, we visited
factories as “households in hardship” for providing
on-site guidance simultaneously, so as to improve
quality assurance capability of the suppliers and
reduce the non-performing ratio of incoming goods.
During the Reporting Period, the qualified ratio for the
incoming batches of materials of the Group increased
3.62% year on year.
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3.2.3 Process quality control

Combined with the benchmark enterprise operation
and management system, the Group conducts overall
planning, step by step development, item by item
implementation of 7QB for production quality based
on production and operation of the Company. 7QB
includes seven basic quality principles: qualified first
piece, error proof verification, self-inspection, final
inspection, red box, rework under control, quick
feedback. During the Reporting Period, 7QB had been
implemented with apparent effect. Under the guidance
of the TES of the Group, we have built an APU inter-
department multifunctional group led by the quality
department and jointly supported by the technology
and quality department and the manufacturing
department to quickly react and address the process
quality problems and promote the fast improvement of
the process problems. We conducted the 4M change
management. The 4M include the four aspects,
namely, employees, machinery and equipment,
material, operational methods. The manufacturing
department identifies the changing points, inspects
the chaining points during the operation and confirms
the initial article together with the inspector of the
technology and quality department, so as to ensure
that the 4M changes under control, with the quality
improved with apparent effect. We have established a
layered audit mechanism which includes four layers:
the team leader, the workshop director, the director
of the manufacturing department, and the general
manager of the factory, and each layer conducts
inspection item-by-item using the audit statement
at the audit frequency, formulates an action plan for
irregularities and verifies and closes them. During
the Reporting Period, we issued 387 controlled SIP
inspection guidebooks for new projects and 789
process SIP inspection guidebooks, and completed
the process inspection benchmarking. By upholding
the basic principle of focusing customers, we use
scientific methodologies, identify the TOP process,
and analyze and improve after-sales and customer
compliant issues. During the Reporting Period, the
qualification ratio for the batches of user end heavy
trucks of the Group reached 99.52%, and the PPM of
the cars decreased by 64.71% year on year.
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3.2.4 Quick response to quality issues

In order to ensure quick quality response, the Group
has formulated and implemented the “Management
Measures for Handling Customer Complaints” to
clarify post duties and response time (after-sales
service personnel shall arrive at the site within
10 minutes after receiving the feedback from the
clients). Under the guidance of fast response,
we have established an APU inter-department
multifunctional group that has been equipped with
the 8D information-driven process. The lead engineer
responsible for the overall progress of the issues and
all team members performing their respective due
roles use joint efforts to address problems, and the
sponsor verifies the improvement results, thus forming
a closed loop, cementing the process from the
management mechanism to the operating standards
and horizontally avoiding the recurrence of similar
problems. During the Reporting Period, no products
were recalled for safety and health reasons.

3.2.5 Continuous improvement in quality

During the Reporting Period, the Group has
comprehensively promoted continuous improvement,
aiming at enhancing customer satisfaction. The
Group has consolidated the physical property
standards of raw materials and unified the technical
requirements and experimental standards for raw
materials. It has also implemented the improvement
of the mold standardization and achieved the fast
mold replacement to enhance production efficiency.
During the Reporting Period, the slush-moulding
production line of the Group had been officially put
into production, thus supporting our strategy of
transiting to the stage of offering high-end products
and expanding the production lines towards the
development of passenger vehicles. We introduced
the “Rationalized Proposal Mechanism” to create
a good atmosphere of the participation by all the
employees and proactive improvement.
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3.2.6 Quality achievements
During the Reporting Period, the Group has
completed the license renewal approval of IATF16949
Automotive Industry Quality Management System,
obtained the CQC supervision and certification audit
and received the honor of “Excellent Supplier” from

Shaanxi Automobile Group Co., Ltd. (BRFEERREH
[RATE).
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FOCUS: SUPREMACY OF ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION AND GREEN OPERATION

We focus on environmental management and are
committed to cultivating, protecting and improving
the environment. We incorporate the concept of
green operation into the processes of production and
management, and fulfill our corporate responsibilities
through continuous innovation and improvement. We
have set up an environmental improvement team to
save resources, improve the utilization efficiency of
resources and reduce the impact on environment, so
as to promote green integration and build a better
future together.

The Group strictly abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Environmental Protection,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Ambient Noise Pollution, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Wastes, and other laws and regulations. During the
Reporting Period, we did not suffer any material fines
or penalties for violating any environmental laws or
regulations.
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4.1 Save Resources 4.1 HiIHNER

4.1.1 Management of water resource 4.1.1 kEFEEE
The Group’s production and operating activities KEBNEELEETHTITEFTRBR
mainly use tap water. To improve the efficiency of KoBTIRAKEREBRE » H 1M
the use of water resource, we will be committed BRORETHEENRME@ET
to implementing various improvement projects for ZEBMKNEEBE - BREHPRN > AEH
water saving in administration and technological MEKEWT EBFKERL TE
improvement. During the Reporting Period, the total 8.87% °

water consumption of the Group was as follows, and
the water consumption per output value decreased by
8.87% year on year.

2020 2021
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
2E BE
(588 (5E8
AREE AR
Type il mE  WEHEE) e WEHEES)
Total water BREKE) 29,100 76.7 20,619 69.7

consumption (ton)

During the Reporting Period, the Group has completed REPHR > NEBTHREHRKEERE B
the replacement of a total of 50 pieces of daily R EHREMHES0G  EEEXTEE
consumables such as faucets and foot valves, the repair 1R HEETREBIRN MEFREKE
of the main pipelines once, the repair of the branch FRERR -

pipelines once, so as to avoid the risk of water resource

waste in a timely manner.
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4.1.2 Management of energy 41258 FEE
We will actively strengthen the management of KM EmMNARmBERONAEE i H
consumption of electricity, fuel, natural gas and E-XARREMERNEE  BHIE
other resources in all processes to strive to improve BEIHEREFRREHNERERRE-

employees’ awareness of energy conservation and
environmental protection and the utilization efficiency
of resources.

During the Reporting Period, the consumption of REAR AEENTETEERMEIRH
major energy and resources by the Group is as EEROT
follows:
2020 2021
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BnE BE
(588 (5E8
AR AR
Type il me W HFER) me REHES)
Consumption of BEZ (KWH) 9,997,087 26,339.0 9,714,204 32,843
electricity (KWH)
Consumption of fuel (L) EHEL) 120,980 318.7 72,857 246
Consumption of KRG (M3) 292,612 770.9 98,654 334

natural gas (M9

During the Reporting Period, the Group has rationally REHRN AEESEREE /IR BB
deployed power facilities and saved the basic capacity FEEBBRERE -FEEZRBETRER
charges through annual maintenance of transformers, FE O ORVEEFER - BNEABTEE
monthly application for basic capacity charges of

transformers, etc.
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4.1.3 Management of packaging materials

The Group previously used cartons to package
products and tooling bagging protection, leading to
the pain points such as high price, serious loss and
high cost, and the protection on the products was
relatively weak.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has
developed recycling packaging devices such as
storage cages and boarding boxes to replace carton
packaging, so as to meet the needs for diversified
packaging sizes and facilitate storage management
and strengthen product protection.

During the Reporting Period, the consumption of
packaging materials of the Group was as follows:

4.1.3BRHHEE

AEEERAEEOENIEERD
B GEERS BERENREES
ATSmY MEHERBEFERAY
CER

REMR - FEERETAME BIR
MERREEBSANBRERE WBE
ZHRIEBERIEXRNER B AR
EE -BCERMEFAR-

BREHR SEBERYHEEBT LA
B

2020 2021
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BE BE
(5B8 (588
AREE AR
Type R mE  WaHES) mE  IWEHER)
Packaging material (ton) aEEY (T) 208 0.6 142 0.5

During the Reporting Period, we have reduced the
consumption density of packaging materials by
19.77% and saved the cost of packaging materials
of RMB440,000 through the gradual replacement of
cartons with recycling packaging devices. Through
adding protection to tooling tools instead of tooling
bagging, we have saved the cost of packaging
materials of RMB200,000, effectively reduced the cost
waste of carton packaging and tooling bagging and
reduced the environmental pollution.

BREHAR RMAEERRBESAEHR
MHNZETER BRESEYEERE
19.77% BN BEMBEE448 T ;
BEANIEBAEMBEBRALIEE
KOHNBEMHAA208T BX
BMLTHRBEEENIEERNRNER
BEoRETIRIESSR-
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Before the change - carton packaging After the change - storage cages,

BE—4KEEE boarding boxes
BEE-BELE

Before the change - After the change -
with disposable bagging tooling with protective tooling
BE-F—REERIE SEE-THEILR
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4.2 Environmental Management

The Group has consistently improved the process
through technological reform and innovation and
strives to reduce the impact of production and
operation on the environment. The Group has
increased investment in environmental governance,
purchased environmentally friendly equipment,
further reduced the discharge of wastewater and
exhaust gases, and strengthened and optimized
the management and treatment of solid wastes.
During the Reporting Period, the Group spent over
RMB900,000 for environmental governance and
renovation.

4.2.1Wastewater discharge

The Group attaches great importance to emissions
and waste management. In the production process,
water is mainly used in the cooling process. Water
recycled from sealed pipe network is used in the
cooling of the injection molding machine and the
cooling of the mould water cutting. Therefore, we do
not produce large amounts of industrial wastewater
throughout the production process. The wastewater
discharged by the Group is mainly employees’ daily
life wastewater, including toilet drainage and wash
drainage. Such wastewater will be discharged into the
municipal sewage pipe network after being treated
by the treatment facilities such as grease traps and
septic tanks, and finally enter the sewage treatment
plant. The plants are equipped with rainwater pipe
network, through which the rainwater is collected
and flows into the municipal rainwater pipe network.
During the Reporting Period, the Group met the
standards for self-inspection and mandatory sampling
inspection on wastewater.

IRIF - HEREBRERS

42 IRIEEIE

AER BB XM N FE A A6 oE
TERE - BHBREBEEENKERBRER
WEREEZE - AEENMKARRELSER
AN BERRREB E—PEMEEKM
BERBIBE MM EEEREREZY
EENEE - BEHPRN TEBERARE
BOOB TTAMNIRR A EHENGS -

4.2.1 BEKBERK

FEEREERFBYKREHNER &
TEBREF KTERANRSANIEZE
B AR AL A A AR B ok 1) &1 0% AN ER %
AEHERABEERKER At £
BEEBREPLAEGEEREIERRE
Ko AEBMBBKERETERRRET
B & £ & BE K 0 o R B PRHE K~ R Bk
Ko DA b BE K AR PR H Ot~ (B 3t F R 12
REEEERE  FATBSKER
RBEASKEER BEREARK
B O RERATHRKEHE RSB
7o A 55 R UK B AT AR RDAD 58 I M AR
WA EER-
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4.2.2 Exhaust gas emissions

The Group adopts organized emissions on dust
and organic waste gases from different stages of
the production process. The dust generated in the
production process is dedusted by a bag filter, and
a gas collecting hood is set to collect the organic
waste gas generated in the production process, and
then collected and treated by a special exhaust gas
treatment facility by “UV photolysis + activated carbon
adsorption”. After the treatment, dust and organic
waste gas are discharged through a dedicated
exhaust pipe. During the Reporting Period, the Group
met the standards for self-inspection and mandatory
sampling inspection on exhaust gas.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s emissions of
dust and organic waste gas are as follows:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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4.2.2 FFRHBEK

AEBREEBRPAREROMESE
B EMABKE RN T A A5
WM-HEEBRTELENMEBBHMR
PRERETHRERE REEREHSE
EBRETPEENARERETHRE K
EREBEABERREERBHERAIUV
SRR AEMRRI DR ETRE M
ENEREBERCEERBEBERASR
BHBR -BEHRAN *EBERETR
AMR BRI R EER -

WEMR AEESERANENERH
BUWE

Main emissions FEHBRY 2020 2021
Dust (kg) 9 EE(kg) 68.3 66.0
Nitrogen oxide (kg) KEAELE (k) 71.0 53.0
Toluene (kg) B R (kg) 132.0 64.0
Xylene (kg) ZBEX(kg) 151.1 78.0
Non-methane hydrocarbon (kg) JE B R 4B 1K (kQ) 235.2 224.0
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During the Reporting Period, the greenhouse gas
emissions of the Group are as follows:

RERR AEBFRNEEREHE
LI

2020 2021
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BE BE
(58 (BEE8
AR N
Type of greenhouse gas R EREELER] e WHRHES) me  WEHEHES)
CO: (ton) CO2 (T) 65 0.17 57 0.19

The Group insists on continuously improving
production processes and optimizing measures for
pollution prevention. The Group installed a total of
10 environmental protection hosts and 10 exhaust
cylinders on the injection moulding, moulding,
foaming, gumming, powder and boiler, which will be
monitored and maintained regularly to jointly promote
environmental protection.

FEBBRFAHREALEETIZ B
RERER EEABRH REBIERE
HARHD - ZERRH IR BE
FHZERFREHI0ME  BERE10E >
WERER HE -FRE O HEEER
RIfEo
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4.2.3 Treatment of solid waste

The solid waste generated in the production process
of the Group mainly includes domestic garbage,
production solid waste and hazardous solid waste.

Domestic garbage is classified and collected in bags
by garbage bins and then recycled and disposed of
by the qualified sanitation department at the garbage
station.

Production solid waste is mainly the scrap produced
in the production process, such as fiberglass board,
black fabric and leather. After being collected sorted
and packaged, the scrap is temporarily stored in
the temporary storage area for general waste, and
delivered to qualified recycling companies through
recycling & comprehensive utilization or regular
sales. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
average scrap produced monthly decreased by 0.84
tonnes year-on year, due to the effective cost control
measures.

Hazardous solid waste includes oil-water mixed waste
and oily solid waste, and hazardous solid waste
includes oil-water mixed waste and oily solid waste,
and mainly represent hazardous waste, such as waste
oil, waste activated carbon, used lamp and waste
titanium dioxide photocatalyst plates, etc. Waste oils
and fats are regularly entrusted to qualified disposal
suppliers by the government for safe disposal.
Activated carbon, UV photolysis lamps and titanium
dioxide photocatalyst plates are regularly replaced.
To reduce waste, the hazardous wastes generated
during the production process are collected in special
containers with classification marks and temporarily
stored in the temporary storage for hazardous waste,
and are regularly entrusted to qualified disposal
suppliers by the government for safe disposal.
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During the Reporting Period, data of hazardous and

RERRN AEBEENESERYM

non-hazardous waste generated by the Group is as BEEEEYHEOT
follows:
2020 2021
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BE TE
(588 (5E8
AR AR
Type of solid waste [El A8 B W EE R mE  WEHES) wE WEHEES)
Household waste (ton) ESERIR(T) 5.7 0.0149 5.4 0.0183
Production solid waste (ton) 4 2 E EE(T) 978 2.5755 875 2.9583
Hazardous solid waste (ton) 15 [ & EE(T) 3.0 0.0080 3.0 0.0101
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4.2.4 Noise management

The main noise sources of the Group are air
compressors, fans, injection moulding machines,
pulverizers, circulation pumps, cooling towers and
other facilities. The Group selects low-noise device,
rationally plans the layout of the plant area, maintains
the various types of noise equipment indoors or at the
equipment rooms, separates material items with large
noise decibels, or adopts vibration reduction, and at
the same time, puts in place protective facilities to
ensure the safety of employees at work. In addition,
the Group sets greenbelts to reduce noise, thus
reducing the impact on the surrounding environment.

Climate Change

The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
repeated its warnings and called for actions from all
walks of life to slow down the rate of global warming.
At the “Climate Action Summit” organized by the
United Nations in 2019, governments and businesses
across the world undertook to take active actions to
materialize the development goal of “Zero Emission”
by 2050, and further accelerate the transition to the
low carbon economy. In the face of the increasingly
serious climate change, the Group actively took
measures in building its climate resilience.
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4.3.1 Transition Risk and Physical Risks

As the extreme weather is getting worse nowadays,
mitigating climate change has become a global
consensus. In response to climate change,
enterprises will continue to develop emerging
technologies, such as switching to low-carbon
energies, supporting the shifting to low-carbon
economies, which would cause transitional risks
and increase in costs. If changes are made by
governments under the Paris Climate Agreement,
and reduction is made to the extraction of fossil fuel,
the fuel price would be on the rise, which may lead
to increase in the production cost of the Company.
In addition, we may face more frequent and severe
extreme weather conditions, such as floods, drought
and rainstorm. Extreme weather conditions may lead
to disruptions to supply chains and operations.

To mitigate and adapt to climate change, the Group
strove to explore the use of alternative energies or
renewable energies in operations, and endeavored
to reduce emission by taking effective measures and
technical approaches, such as applying recyclable
packaging appliance and optimizing factory facilities.
The Group is committed to improving the rates of
resource utilization in daily operations and reducing
operating costs by efficient management of energies,
water resources, packing materials and wastes.
Meanwhile, we actively discuss on developing long-
term goals for emission reduction.

To adapt to climate change, the Group will
monitor and review the latest development of the
technologies, regulations and policies in relation to
climate change, and enhance the awareness of our
staff on heat stress related diseases.
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4.4 Environmental Achievement

During the Reporting Period, the Group successfully
applied for and obtained the ISO14001 Environmental
Management Certification. In order to actively
respond to the requirements for the environmental
management imposed by national and local laws
and regulations and regulatory authorities, the Group
organized all of its employees to participate in the tree
planting activity themed “Build Our Green Homeland
with Love” who planted hundreds of cherry, moor
besom and other trees to build and share a green
homeland together during the Reporting Period.
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INNOVATION: TECHNOLOGICAL PROGRESS

AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group emphasized
the management thinking of “Strengthening innovation
and R&D”. It adopted the R&D management
systems recognized by benchmarking enterprises,
and enhanced the basic professional ability of
R&D personnel, aroused their working enthusiasm
and stimulated their competitive spirit, by offering
professional and comprehensive trainings, well-
designed incentive programs and “horse racing
mechanism” for talent selection, which fully improved
our R&D capability and innovation level. During the
Reporting Period, we cooperated with benchmarking
enterprises to provide five trainings in our technical
center, with 60 training hours in aggregate.

R&D capacity

it 8% BE 617EMHER (B4) B

IRIF - HEREBRERS

BIFT  RMEDSHENRE

WEHAR - A5 R a8 AR o8 B &
NEERRR HEEREEMEEERE
FOBBEX>AEANEIRE -TEA
DHHB A RZNMEERS AT ER
AR EEMBEAERENEZERE
H-BEAEABN TR B
MBEAEBNRFAS EMEERIET K
13 B9 BF 2 SE D AN BT 7K F o 3R E BRI
AERERREESGF RMWPOH
RN IEINGE > REHE K R60/)
B o

617 new products (parts) developed

20 new projects developed

20@MIEE R &

5 technological innovations

58 £ iy & A

Mould development

RAR% BARERATIE

Accumulatively developed 71 sets of moulds
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5.1

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

Enhancing Customer Experience through
Technological Innovation

In accordance with the planning of “focusing on
the design and development of heavy trucks and
strengthening the design and development of sedans”
under the Group’s “2+2 strategy”, the technical center
introduced internationally advanced management
system and management standards, and is currently
conducting in-depth cooperation with the leading
design companies in the industry. By adhering to
the management concept of “quality and cost are
rooted in design”, and the mission of “providing
customers with satisfactory interior system solutions”,
we are always committed to creating long-term value
for customers. During the Reporting Period, we
developed seven types of vehicle interior products,
involving the fields of interior and exterior decoration
and rearview mirrors of heavy trucks and dashboards
for passenger vehicles, etc. During the Reporting
Period, the Group spent over RMB10 million in
technologies and R&D.

5.1

MRl A & R R AR
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M3000S bumper assembly X5000 slush-moulding dashboard
M3000S 1 [ 15 48 i X50003% 28 & &R ik

X5000 bumper right-left body X5000 dashboard body
X50001R 48 £ 5 4 B8 X50001% R ik 4 B8

HA2HE dashboard upper framework SA2FL dashboard upper framework
HA2HERZRIR LT SAFLERIR ELABERR
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During the Reporting Period, the Group applied
ergonomics to analyze the safety and waste problems
existing in manual feeding and conducted in-depth
research and development and innovation targeting at
relevant problems. Through alteration and innovation
of the automated tri-axial feeding system, we have
strengthened the 5S at production site, lowered the
labor intensity and energy consumption, reduced the
waste of materials and improved the overall quality of our
products.

During the Reporting Period, the Group applied the
modularized type-l wiring method in completing the
alteration and innovation of the semi-automatic ceiling
thermal oil ovens. The running equipment is made of
light structures to strengthen safety guarantee. It has
abolished the repeated manual feeding and reclaiming
process and therefore accelerated the pace of production
and reduced the labor intensity. With the automatic
heating, the Group has improved its product stability.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group realized the WEMR > REBEIRTX50008E BERR
successful production of X5000 slush-molding instrument HINERE S EBRRIBEEREZEBE BE
panels, including instrument panel plastic coating WRERNIGEIERE L 0RME  HHRE
equipment, instrument panel skeleton flame treatment NEBEERESE2EELIFR - EHETH
equipment, foaming equipment, milling equipment, BEREERNEEMRAELE N AR T AE
vibration welding equipment, and other whole-production AEZERNTIEZG ZETIREERS
processes. It has been equipped with the soft instrument iy B8 B o

panel production and development capability, and

has expanded the process lines developing towards

passenger vehicles and supported the strategy of

transitioning to becoming an OEM manufacturer.

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the BREBR AEBTHREBMBENF B
development of semi-automatic foaming carpet trimming HELXERE BFIRUYEBE LK
machines which can transfer manual trimming to fix-axial TE - RKIEERNNERSBEEYEHT
water cutting and realize high-precision semi-automatic o HMETHERBSS\IRE TEERE
cutting based on product track. They have improved the Ms& T ER—BMRE-

58S at production site, improved production efficiency and

strengthened the consistency guarantee of products.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group installed and BREBR AEBBRBREBEARES T
dismantled moulds through hydraulic servers to replace BARBERAEFIBHARE AN T F
the method of manual screw fastening so as to complete BEAEBL- BATLELTEEERENHE
the optimization of injection mould, whereby addressing BB TIBEIREENE-

the time and power consuming problems in installing and

dismantling moulds and improving the injection molding

process and production efficiency.

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the WMEBAN AEETERTEEBEANTN
optimization and alteration of the sealing materials for BIEE - BATHEAREBREFNE R
foaming moulds, and addressed the product overflowing mA R MR T MERE - RNETE
problem in the foam forming process, which in turn EIRIFESSe

reduced the waste of materials and improved the 5S at

production site.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the
alteration of the storage of intermediate bulk containers
for foam materials by using less circulating utensils for
foam materials, improved the environment at the storage
site, strengthened the storage safety for materials, and
reduced the labor intensity without manual material
feeding and unloading.

5.2 Continuous Improvement and Enhancement

The Group implements pragmatic recommendations,
and leads and encourages all employees to identify
opportunities for improvement in work. It forms a
team to review pragmatic recommendations and
follow up their implementation, so as to reduce
work cost, increase work efficiency, ensure product
quality and improve operation conditions. During
the Reporting Period, the Group implemented 293
pragmatic recommendations, generating an actual
income of RMB2,086,300.

WA A& E 5 A 3R K AR 7 R L
BoRLTHANAESRANER MET
FRIEBIRE MR T M2 EFRHEE;
BREATLHER BETAISHRE-

5.2 FEMESHREH
AEEETEHNSELES 3IEMNEH
B2 E T TE I TEPNRNER
ToHEERTIESECESZERTR
ECELCEZESHEN WMmEEET
ERA - RBATLERE -REEREE
M ERER R -REHER > KEEBH
BHAECRE2E  EEERKG
208.638 7T ©
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Summary of excellent pragmatic recommendations in 2021

021 EBERELES
Commencement Actual monthly
No. Project Name Improvement time Completion time income (RMB)
ERAKE
Fi  EAEH HEEY BIARR SR ()
1 Proposal for cost improvement of Reduction in cost 2021-07-19 2021-08-11 52,956.58
a product
EERMEYERE RAERA
2 Optimization and Improvement of Reduction in cost 2021-06-10 2021-07-22 42,275.23
the area of Warehouse 17#
THEERREBLUE AR A&
3 Improvement of the molding cycle of Reduction in cost and 2021-11-05 2021-12-17 26,784.98
a product simplification of process
EERAEBSANE AR
BibmE
4 Infrared energy-saving heating ring Reduction in cost and 2021-05-14 2021-05-16 10,565.67
improvement in efficiency
ASMETREMEAE IR
RENE
5 Improvement of production capacity of Increase in production capacity 2021-06-30 2021-08-13 9,386.00

a product

RERERR
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5.3 Carrying out Industry-universities-research
Cooperation Projects
The Group vigorously carries out industry-university-
research cooperation projects, introduces high-quality
resources from universities and society, and maintains
the advanced research and development capacity.

IRIF - HEREBRERS

53 AREZMEFER

FEBRNHARESEMSFEE5IA
EREAMENEEER REMEFEERD
By S o

Dr. Chu Jianjie, an associate professor of the
School of Mechanical Engineering of Northwestern
Polytechnical University, is mainly engaged in
the research of fields including industrial product
design and development, industrial design
of equipment manufacturing, and ergonomic
evaluation technology. Mr. Chu has been the
deputy director of the Key Laboratory of Industrial
Design and Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of Northwestern
Polytechnical University since 2018 and the deputy
director of the Shaanxi Industrial Design and
Development Center of Northwestern Polytechnical
University. He has won various awards such as the
second prize of the National Teaching Achievement
Award and the third prize of the Shaanxi Science
and Technology Progress Award.

Dr. Chu Jianjie has been the chief expert of the
Group since 2019, focusing on the research of
fields including digital design, product design,
simulation of ergonomic design, and development of
new products.
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Northwestern Polytechnical University is the only
multidisciplinary and research-oriented university in
China that is simultaneously developing education
and research programs in the fields of aeronautics,
astronautics, and marine technology engineering.
It is now affiliated to the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology. It is one of the universities
of the “211 Project”, “985 Project” and “First-
class Universities” (Class A) in China. As one of
the earliest universities in China to develop talents
for modern industrial design, conduct scientific
research and provide design services, Northwestern
Polytechnical University is a vice-chairman of China
Industrial Design Association, a vice president
of Innovation Design Alliance of China and the
Industrial Design Institution of China Mechanical
Engineering Society, and a deputy chairman of
the Teaching Steering Subcommittee of Industrial
Design of the Ministry of Education, and has
high status and good reputation in the domestic
industrial design community.

Northwestern Polytechnical University has been
devoted to the research of fields including digital
design, product design, simulation of ergonomic
design and development of new products. It
has undertaken dozens of major scientific and
technological research projects such as the National
863 Program, the National Science and Technology
Support Plan, the National Natural Science
Foundation, the National Manned Space Project,
and the Basic Research on National Defense.
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The Group carried out industry-university-research
cooperation with the Key Laboratory of Industrial
Design and Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of Northwestern
Polytechnical University, and provided design
services and technical support for developing new
products by leveraging the resources of the Key
Laboratory of Industrial Design and Ergonomics of
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology,
Shaanxi Industrial Design Engineering Laboratory,
Shaanxi Industrial Design and Development Center
and other provincial platforms, focused on the
design of automotive interior parts in the field of
industrial design, and conducted in-depth research
on key common technologies continuously, so as
to maintain the advanced nature of research and
development of key design technologies.
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Xi’an Jiaotong University is a comprehensive
research-oriented national key university directly
under the Ministry of Education in China as part of
the national “Double First-class Universities”, the
“211 Project” and the “985 Project”. It is also one
of the key universities in China during the “Seventh
Five-Year Plan Period” and the “Eighth Five-
Year Plan Period” and is included in the “Everest
Plan”, the “Strengthening Foundation Plan”, the
“2011 Plan”, the “111 Plan”, the “Education and
Cultivation Plan for Excellent Engineers”, the
“Education and Cultivation Plan for Excellent
Doctors” and the “Education and Cultivation Plan
for Excellent Law Talents”. Besides, it is also the
chairman of China Artificial Intelligence Alliance.
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Mr. Sun Xinyu is a professor and doctoral supervisor
of the Industrial Engineering and Operation
Management Department of the Management
College of Xi’an Jiaotong University, senior
programmer, member of the “key laboratory of
process control and efficiency engineering” of the
Ministry of Education, member of the young top
talent support plan of Xi’an Jiaotong University, and
director of the Xi’an Jiaotong University — BAYES
Data Intelligence Joint Lab. His research areas
include e-commerce operation management and
marketing optimization based on big data, supply
chain and logistics management, measurement
and statistical analysis and operation model
optimization. He has close cooperation relationship
with the National Public Credit Information
Center, China UnionPay, China Telecom and other
companies and stable sources of big data, and has
established its own data assets.

The Group collaborated with the Xi’an Jiaotong
University and the Sun Xinyu’s research group to
develop the project of “Planning and Construction
of Smart Factory”, which focused on the overall
planning of the factory’s intelligent production, the
design of a standardized production model, and
the analysis and realization of automatic production
requirements and the digital operation and
simulation optimization of production workshops
and the establishment of digital models, aiming at
building integration of smart factories.
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The purpose of this cooperation is to better
combine the teaching and scientific research of
schools with the practical production of enterprises,
to promote the fulfillment of the talent cultivation
goal of higher education and the technological
progress of the production of enterprises, to
fully leverage the advantages of higher education
schools and enterprises in talent resource, scientific
research and production practice, to promote
the industrialization of the technological results
of schools, to improve the teaching and scientific
research levels of schools, to enhance the ability
of schools to serve the society and to sharpen the
core competitiveness of enterprises.

The Group has conducted a comprehensive
cooperation with Xi’an University of Posts &
Telecommunications in talent cultivation, scientific
research, education and teaching, and industry-
university-research cooperation between school
and enterprise, jointly built an off-campus practice
education base for college students, a talent
cultivation base for enterprises and a base for
conversion of scientific research achievements,
whereby forming a landscape of mutual promotion
and development of professions and industries, and
strived to achieve “school-enterprise cooperation
and industry-school win-win”.
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5.4 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group has established a three-in-one intellectual
property system of patents, trademarks and
copyrights, and has implemented innovation-oriented
and high-quality development.

The Group has a total of 23 patents, including two
invention patents, one design patent and 20 utility
model patents, and one trademark. Invention patents
and design patents are applied to the major products
of the Group and are the core process technology.
The utility model patents are mainly used for the
improvement of production equipment and process
methods to realize the purposes of achieving energy-
saving and emission reduction, improving production
efficiency, mitigating labor intensity, eliminating hidden
safety hazards and reducing labor costs. During
the Reporting Period, we had five new patents, and
applied for three patents pending approval.

The Group mainly protects its intellectual property
rights through online tracking and rights protection
litigation. Besides, when our sales and R&D staff
discover competitive products or marketing materials
that may infringe the intellectual property rights of
the Group, they will immediately notify the legal
department, which will then follow up and conduct the
investigation.

The Group has established an innovation incentive
mechanism to encourage technical R&D personnel
to boldly innovate, design and develop special
equipment with independent intellectual property
rights by utilizing the advanced process technologies
and equipment in the industry, and quickly transform it
into productive forces and put it into production, thus
promoting the automotive and intelligent production
process.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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6. WIN-WIN: MAKING PROGRESS AND 6. H&F :#EFUEHFEREK
BUILDING A BRIGHT FUTURE TOGETHER
6.1 Win-win: Satisfactory Customer Services 6.1 HF . mEEFTLRT

6.1.1 EF IR EEHE

6.1.1 Management system for customer services

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued
to strictly implement the site customer service
management systems, standards and regulations
such as the Guidance on the Management of
Site Customer Emergency and the Regulation on
the Processing and Management of Customer
Information, and strived to provide customers with
quality products and services to meet their diversified
needs.

For after-sales services, we arranged dedicated in-
factory commercial vehicles and passenger vehicles
after-sales service personnel at the customer’s
office, and conducted after-sales interview with
customers through email, WeChat, telephone, face-
to-face interview and other means, with the customer
satisfaction continuously improved. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was honored the title
of “Excellent Supplier with Production Supporting
Services for the Year” from our customer.
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6.1.2 Customer complaints management procedures 6.1.2 XF EETE

We attach great importance to customer demands
and have established procedures under the Regulation
on the Processing and Management of Customer
Information, which divides customer complaints
into two categories, verbal complaints and written
complaints. After receiving complaints from customers,
we will complete the After-Sales Quality Tracking
Record and set up WeChat communication group with
relevant departments to establish an analysis team as
soon as possible. To ensure that customer complaints
are handled in a timely manner, we have established
complete procedures for processing customer
complaint information, as shown below:

Feedback of problem points
i 78 Bh R B

Pre-project problem Mass production projects problem
A HATE B R =E EEEHME
Pre-project team Confirmation of diagnosis by after
Confirmation of diagnosis sale team leader or engineer
IR RN = R & % DI R ¢ T 72 BT 5% 538 =2 B
Pre-project team evaluation Evaluation of rework solutions by
of repair solutions after sale team leader or engineer
AIEAIE B AT IR E A E ERNRITEMTIGHREFTR

l |
2 2 v

Complicated

Simple E Unmanageable
categories categories categories
After-sales on- Technical (External) aid

. . guidance for
site repair - replacement
=5 }'E . ﬁ < L :'E
. ER B wads Gr o) 2
= . T35 iR &

I | |
Vv

Confirmation of effects
MR

\ 4

Closure of problems
& =2 R A

.74  CHINATIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD FhEIXIHSEMEHHEIRAT

RMEBERERFAR BLT(ER
EEREEERE)RE RELKRHK
BoROHEBLEEEMBZME %3
ERERFE KAMAETER(EREER
BIRH SR R) > F — K E S8R &
FIBUMERXRRBERILDN/NAE B R
EEFRENFAME  RMARLT S
NERBBREREERE  WHFAT:

Customer complaints of
the host factory
x B E R

Confirmation of
problem points

i 8 3 i 53

Emergency containment

F& =38 1

Checking and analysis

HED

Development of
NG improvement plans

HE L E 5t 8

Validation of
improvement plans

B E 5T B B SR

Solidification of
improvement measures

& {5 25 & & 1k

Conclusion of lessons
learned
it R ER N

Closure of the problems

i & R A



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the Reporting Period, we included indicators
such as the timeliness of completion of customer
complaint and customer satisfaction in the
Performance Assessment Form, which stipulated that
the feedback and tracking of customer complaints
must be evidenced by corresponding Analysis and
Rectification Report of Problem, and reviewed the
number of customer complaints and timeliness
of completion on a monthly basis. Meanwhile, we
carried out the customer satisfaction survey on an
annual basis according to the Customer Satisfaction
Evaluation Procedure, involving 5 project modules
such as quality, delivery, service, price, and
suggestions for improvement. After the completion
of the survey, we investigated and summarized the
items with low individual scores and complaints in
customers’ messages, and discussed improvement
measures, and finally formed the final Analysis Report
of Customer Satisfaction.

In addition to the management of individual complaint
cases, we also summarized and analyzed customer
complaints every month to identify the source of the
problem, optimized the solution from the source, and
formed the Monthly Customer Complaint Analysis
report, so as to analyze the causes and determine the
responsible person, as well as formulate corrective
measures and track verification results. If quality
problems with potential risk were identified, we would
send a quality alert and follow up and solve it as soon
as possible. During the Reporting Period, the amount
of customer complaint issues of the Group was 176,
decreasing by 49.73% year on year.
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6.1.3 Protection of customer privacy

6.2

It is our responsibility and obligation to protect
customer privacy and security of business
information. We strictly comply with the laws and
regulations in relation to the Confidentiality Agreement
entered into with customers, and strictly protect the
privacy information of customers.

We are also committed to protecting the privacy and
confidentiality of the personal data of our employees,
customers, suppliers, business partners and other
identifiable parties. For the use of information,
we have restricted the level and authorization of
information available to employees, and require
employees to prudently handle customer data in
accordance with the authorization. Employees
may have access to relevant customer data only
when there is a supportable reason, and the use of
customer data is limited to the purposes as specified
in our contract.

Win-win: Partnership with Suppliers

6.2.1 Establishing win-win partnership with suppliers

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

During the Reporting Period, the Group developed
over 30 new high-quality suppliers under the principal
of establishing win-win partnership with supplier. We
committed to introduce domestic renowned high-
quality suppliers with industrial leading position.
In order to guarantee that the product quality
of the Group can be improved continuously, we
organized several technical exchanges and visiting
study activities with domestic renowned material
enterprises.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group had 170 BRERAN AEBEHEEMEHER170
material suppliers, among which 85% of suppliers R>HEHP8s5%EEEDMEUTEARE
were located in the eight provinces as follows: o ARomaT

Distribution of suppliers (Top 8 provinces)

HEE S HER (Fisd)

Heilongjiang
BT
Jilin
=
Liaoning
Xi%i%wg Inner
e Gansu Mongolia
Hi
Qinghai
58
Tibet L hai
mR ' e
! Hubei \
Sichuan | 546 no.7
o Gtlongaing Jiangxi ?
VES 7 8
\ I—[unan e " ’ no.8
Guizhou i Fujian’ . 0
Yunnan
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We maintain close contact with suppliers. During the
Reporting Period, in order to improve the quality of
supplier, we continuously adopted below measures:
unifying standards; conducting performance test
and spot check on the main materials; eliminating
the suppliers appeared in the black list for several
consecutive years based on the performance
documents of suppliers; for suppliers who had quality
problems repeatedly, conducting regular interviews
and training and enhancing the quality awareness
of suppliers. In addition, we have conducted in-
depth exchanges and communication with suppliers
on new technologies and processes for passenger
vehicles and heavy trucks’ interiors, so as to provide
customers with satisfactory products.

We examine in advance and review new suppliers
through the Questionnaire of Suppliers’ Qualification,
the Guidance on Evaluation and Selection of
Potential Suppliers and the Guidance on the Review
of Suppliers of Productive Materials every year.
After the suppliers passing the review, we conduct
comprehensive performance evaluation on the supply
position of suppliers through procedural documents
such as the Procedures for Managing and Controlling
Supplies, the Guidance on Regular Evaluation of
Suppliers of Productive Materials, and check the
suppliers on the red list and black list based on the
evaluation results of suppliers’ performance. We will
provide specific assistance and help to suppliers on
the black list for improvement and eliminate those
who still cannot meet the supply requirements after
such guidance.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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6.2.2Continuing to promote suppliers’ social

responsibilities

While continuously strengthening its own management
of sustainable development, the Group takes the
lead in promoting the ecological management system
for the sustainable development of the entire supply
chain. Suppliers are evaluated from five aspects
according to the Questionnaire of Suppliers’ Social
Responsibilities, namely labor rights, health and
safety, environmental protection, business ethics,
and requirements of management system. For high-
quality suppliers with higher ranking of performance,
we will give support through increasing the share
and developing new projects in the same conditions
in accordance with the “Management Rules for
Motivation of Suppliers”; for suppliers with lower
ranking of performance, especially those who violate
relevant requirements, rectification is required within
a time limit, if failed to do, we will restrict business
cooperation opportunities until the cooperation is
terminated.

Meanwhile, we include “safety and environment
management” and “social responsibility” related
clauses in the Purchase Contract signed with
suppliers, which clearly requires that the products
provided by suppliers must comply with the national
laws, regulations and rules on safety and environment,
as well as meet relevant requirements on protection
of employee’s rights and environmental protection.
The Group pays attention to the operation concept of
green environmental protection, keeps close contact
with suppliers, holds several exchange meeting
with suppliers, conducts professional technical
communication on raw materials and packing
materials, to jointly pursue how to apply the new
environment-friendly materials with greener and better
sustainable development functions in our products.
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6.3 Win-win: Share Development Results with 6.3 &K  HETHZHRE
Employees
6.3.1 Employment overview 6.3.1 EIGHER

The Group pays great attention to the labor rights and
interests of our employees, and strictly complies with
the provisions of the Labor Contract Law of China and
other labor laws and regulations. It formulates other
employment terms on working hours, and holidays, so
as to effectively protect the legitimate and reasonable
rights and interests of our employees. We never
permit the use of any forced labor.

We have a fair and transparent staff recruitment and
employment process, forbid to recruit and use child
labor, conduct background investigation for the newly
recruited employees, put an end to illegal employment
of child labor and the phenomenon of forced labor.
We have a highly transparent recruitment process,
and is committed to providing fair employment
opportunities and creating a respectful work
environment for our employees. The Group advocates
anti-discrimination and formulates relevant policies to
treat others with fairness and dignity. Our recruitment
of employees will be based on a range of diversity,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
In the case of dismissal, the Labor Contract of
employees who do not meet the requirements of the
Labor Law will be terminated according to the Labor
Law and the Company’s rules and regulations.
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As of 31 December 2021, there were 507 employees

in the Group.

Number of employees by gender
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Number of employees by ranking of positions
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Number of employees by age
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Employee turnover N-Pi>S
During the Reporting Period, Employee turnover by WEHR MR FERAR K& E
gender, age group and region as follows: PTHEERKIEE > WTE :

Number of employees by gender Number of employees by age
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Number of employees by ranking of positions Number of employees by region
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The remuneration policy of our Group is based
on employees’ performance, qualifications,
competence and rewards to them with reference to
comparable market level. Remuneration package
typically comprises salaries and other benefits,
discretionary bonuses and retirement benefits scheme
contributions. We have established a scientific and
reasonable salary system with market competitiveness
in accordance with the TES system, and determine
the staff salary scales and levels in accordance with
the ranking of positions and market level based on
the present condition of the Company. Under the
Employee Performance Management Procedures,
the Group has adopted a diversified performance
evaluation mechanism covering the personal KPI
assessment results of employees, the scores
given by higher competent department heads and
the completion percentage of weekly work plan;
it regularly adjusts salary scales and levels and
increases employee compensation and benefits in
accordance with the Management Measure for Salary
Level, etc.; under the principle of “openness, fairness,
impartiality, equality, competition and selection”, the
Group regularly conducts the internal competition
and employment and the professional technological
sequence assessment to select those with
outstanding performance and working hard for taking
important posts. With the management concept
of “co-creation and win-win”, the Group continued
to establish effective staff motivation mechanisms
including the cost reduction motivation plan for all
staff, the sales motivation plan for all staff, the budget
motivation plan, etc., and achieved the sharing of
the development results of the Group with staff.
During the Reporting Period, the Group carried out
11 internal competitive selections with 26 employees
promoted, and three professional technological
sequence assessments with one associate senior
engineer, five first-class engineers and eight senior
engineers assessed, which helped the Group
promote the establishment of the talent team and the
organizational development and construction of the
Group while fully enhancing the sense of achievement
and happiness of its employees.

IRIF - HEREBRERS

AEBNFMHREESHLBE TN IF
KRB -BE ENRMIB A LERKFE
THENRB -FNETBE—REEFE
REMEFN WIBEDA - BHKREBH 8
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BURAETEHRFNINHFHEZR
HREBAUERMMBKE &5 281K
ROPBEEEIHFAFTE KEBE(ELA
WEEBRER)  HINELEAKPIZEZ
ER-LBETETDMBE T EHEIER
EHZ o b BT A S ; KRIE (R
HESEMNELZ)CHRABRHAFERE
T - RABIHERH  ZRETQR
NE-RE-FE - FEEF -EEBINE
B BRCHERNSREMNEXE MR
FIFFE EEFE - EMNESRAEMEH
EAFEHM; AEZETHA AR INERE
B FEEIBEMNE T BEES
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We have been committed to providing diversified and
superior benefits to employees and creating a better
working environment. In addition to statutory benefits,
we have in place a benefit system with diversity.

Diverse benefit system

ZREREABER

Statutory benefits
= E AR T

Activity welfare

IR R

Other welfare
HE &7

Staff welfare

ETEF

6.3.2 Staff training and development

The Group provides a variety of trainings for all
employees to improve their comprehensive skills and
meet their needs of positions. Induction trainings
on regulations at group and department level, job
duties, working skills, safety production and career
development program, etc. familiarize our employees
with the Group as soon as practicable and make
them fit in with their respective positions. For on-
the-job employees, the Group provides targeted
training tailored to their career development and
encourages employees to participate in job-related
training organized by external organizations, whereby
enriching our employees’ professional knowledge and
comprehensive abilities. In addition, the Group invites
excellent industrial professional personnel to provide
high-quality training contents for staffs, enabling the
staffs study advanced professional knowledge and
management philosophy.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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HU—BEURBIRBEHZEEEN
EIRMN AIBEEFNIFERE R
MEREEIZREAERANERZ
EERETZRTEHNEFNER-

Statutory benefits % T 48 /& #l

v

v
v
v

Social insurance and housing fund
ER—%

Statutory holiday

A E B B

High temperature leave

=8 R

Year-end double pay

B+=5

Activity welfare 5% B #5418 )

v
v

Women’s Day

Lokeq-ul

Dragon Boat Festival, Mid-Autumn
Festival, Spring Festival. etc
IR EI s PANER S BEE

Other welfare H & & 7

v

v

Free staff quarters (air conditioner,
heating, wifi)

REETES (TR B wifi)
Meal allowance

ke whh

v Staff anniversary

BEIBFLE

6.3.2 5 T1Z38H %=

rEBRFTEEIRMKEEI MR
SRaRE-MERBUBK BT AR
DN EEEI 2EEEMEEFIR
S EHUBS - TFRE-Z2EEM
BEZRERIZ EEHEIRZRT
AEE BEIFEAU-WRERE
T RENETIBEFZXNH RAR
BEEB AEEHEMNRHEBEEET
BELEERNEIRE RAEXBE
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During the Reporting Period, we established our
internal trainer team and developed more than 10
courses internally, with an aim to extract outstanding
practices and impart them to all of our employees.
We organized 166 group-level online and offline
trainings and 96 department-level trainings, with 507
employees participated and totally 39,807 training

REHA

AEERBRANIMEKMG A

MHFI0FRMARE EEENEBFE

BUTEREEE T

cHH B EE MR L

BTEI16618 ) IFAKEIIGE &
BB T507 A 1B3)I48 B BFE39,807 /)

B o

hours.
The proportion of trainees by gender and the average duration of training
ZEUHRESZIEEGLERTFH2IEE
Male Female
Gender 14 A1) 3 Z
Number of trainees 23 A& 353 151
Headcount LN 356 151
Proportion of trainees 25Mh L 99% 100%
Average training duration (in hours) EHZIIBE (N 90 97
The proportion of trainees by gender and the average duration of training
BE R DZIEEMGLERTHEZIFE
Senior Middle Junior General
management management management staff
Position level & 4R SHREER FHREER VHREERE —RET
Number of trainees 23N AR 11 32 31 430
Headcount “AE 11 32 31 433
Proportion of trainees  23ll{4LE 100% 100% 100% 99%
Average training FH2IIEE (NE)
duration (in hours) 120 100 40 20
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Contract Risk Prevention and Fire Safety Training Project Management Training

Control Port |
Fronting Training

& [F R B 4 i O A1 5 3

HE EEIEIN

Training for Internal Auditors Quality Awareness Training Training for Team Heads
A& BE HERHEIN br4E R
6.3.3 Health and safety of employees 6.335TREMZE

The Group has always attached great importance
to the health and safety of the employees, and
is committed to providing employees with a safe
working environment to avoid occupational hazards.
The Group strictly abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, the Safe Production Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Fire Law of
the People’s Republic of China, and other laws and
regulations.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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The Group requires the newly recruited employees to
carry the entry medical examination report and pays
five social insurances and one housing fund (T B
—3)and commercial insurance for the employees
according to the statutory requirements. In order to
enrich the spare-time life of employees, we establish
the staff room equipped with the facilities including
table tennis, badminton, chess, treadmill and karaoke,
enhancing the staff physical exercise. We attach
importance to employee sports and set up table
tennis, basketball and badminton sports venues and
facilities for employees to exercise. We have placed
safety infrastructures and implemented relevant safety
policies in order to ensure equipment safety and
prevent or minimize exposure to hazardous materials.
During the Reporting Period, we have revised more
than 10 safety management documents, including
the Safe Production Responsibility System ({Z&
£ ZESMEH)), the Hidden Hazards Inspection and
Rectification System (((EEHETEAEF|E)), the
Regulations on the Management of Safety Accidents
(Z2EWEEHRTE)), the Safety Education System
(ZZ2#HBEHE)), etc., providing guidance to
employees in maintaining a safe working environment,
and we have assigned responsibility for maintaining
safe work spaces to each department. We have
established the Safety Management Committee
consisting of representatives from management and
employees. The Safety Management Committee
ensures that all responsible departments conduct
safety training, report accidents and implement
accident prevention procedures. The Group also has
fire prevention facilities and conducts fire drills on a
regular basis. Production employees receive regular
training on equipment operation and occupationa
safety equipment. We have also adopted accident
handling policies, in order to minimize losses and
increase our response time in accident handling.

IRIF - HEREBRERS

AEBHETABRE I EXET ABE
RS BRRAEERAETHMAK
—ThBEREB HZMALHE TREMH
EHzEEIll BEETITHEIFER
NEBRER - RBEEIERERE R
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MEETHEBRR AMAEEEERZ
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22 PHHABEMIEEEEYE-
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EHEXERRBRERBERER
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During the Reporting Period, the Group passed 1SO45001 REHRN > REBRBEBISO45001 L2
Safety and Occupational Health System Certification. BERARE-

PEERRLTEERAEES
| SALEAL AR RN

E

R L
e T
P

During the Reporting Period, the Group arranged its BREAN AEEZHETETHESLE
staff to obtain the occupational sanitation certification FLIE WEBEBEEINISKEFRA2
with two of them holding the qualification proof for B rUrREREEAREEHBERERE
the occupational sanitation training, and invited the el e
certificate holder to conduct occupational health training
in the Group.
N
%(t BT %
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During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted the
annual occupational health examining and organized
130 staff at the positions that would cause occupational
diseases for targeted physical examination according to
the occupational sanitation assessment report.

During the Reporting Period, the Group proactively
responded to the national call for pandemic prevention
and maximized efforts to guarantee the staff’'s health.
To this end, it invited Xi’an Fengcheng Hospital to get
vaccinated against COVID-19 virus.

During the past three years (including the Reporting
Period), the Group did not suffer any major work-
related injuries or fatalities caused by work. We
have complied with all relevant laws, regulations
and administrative regulations in all major aspects
of health and work safety, and have not received
penalties from Chinese regulatory authorities.

IRIF - HEREBRERS

REMAN AEEREREFTEFERA
RIEBEFETBRS  EBIS0UBER
L8 THEITE HIERER

Pyl s

: wa-l.ihm-r:"’::

REMA FAEBLEBERBE R Z R
AMARNREETISRERE KBEALZE
HERASERETIEEN SRR

BE=-F (BERSHERN) FEEX
HERNTIFEAGMEENEAEANT
BUARTEH A ERELETIFLZ2
WPREERSTHEBEBTTRAMEBE
BAERKRTEREERB L AR E PEE
EEFIAVER & o
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6.3.4 Care for Employments 6.3.45 T 1%
The Group is committed to create a harmonious, AEEBRIRAETITEEMHE RE
warm and united working environment for employees, EFHNITEFRBE REIWK B
and cares for every employee from various aspects, F - TERFFEBAF O BARESE—WUE
including basic necessities of life. We not only T-EMAELEET A ZEHM
consider employee’s benefit, but also hope to convey HETHWHMEGEAMMANI A

our caring for employees to their family members.

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the 5B A5 B 5T Ak T AR AR I E A B
customization of new uniforms and reconstructed and TERESCEWHAB AIEXBAEZRNT
opened the dressing rooms, created a civilized and clean EREMAXERE EABIIEESR B
working environment and a humanistic environment, T TS MER -

enhanced the working image of its staff and exhibited

their mental attitude.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group provided BREBRR AEBEREZSKREEN®HHEE
diversified premium holiday activity welfares, created EEERN  Z2EHmARE RERTEF
holiday atmosphere, warranted the welfares to the staff RABTI =GR IREMEEMEEF

and enhanced their sense of happiness. The welfares BRBEEEAL TRESFE BEgH
included “New Year Greetings and Welfares to Warm and g TRAEBME  REB—1 ~ TIRI1BIH
Care for People FiERRBZEREF  BEBIEEAL)”, FoBEBE—2 M MHRAER  EaNX iy
“Most Beautiful Youth in Romantic Women’s Day (&% £ZTEETRBA °

= EE B8 L M EN) 7, “Care for Children’s Growth, Happy
Children’s Day (RAE B & > R&£3875—)", “Dragon Boat
Festival with Traditional Chinese Rice-puddings for Happy
Gathering (BB IR T BT — =) ", “Shadow-pouring Milky
Way at the New Inspirational Middle Autumn Day (§§ 7838
& {EEI X Rk ” and other diversified holiday welfares.

- P L LALL LR T K1 ]

4 1

:_-_._,I,_ -
‘ap RIS SBLA

BMAT RE-R
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During the Reporting Period, the Group hosted rich
and colorful recreational activities to enrich the staff’s
leisure lives and create a positive and vibrant corporate
atmosphere, and conducted the badminton game themed
“Be with You, Passion Blooming”, the learning activity
themed “Study the Party’s One-century History to Stay
True to Our Original Intention and Mission”, the outreach
activity themed “Cohesion for Efficient Action”, etc.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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6.4 Win-win: Actively Fulfilling Social Responsibility
The Group is keen on the public welfare undertakings
to promote the harmonious development of society.
We have participated in a number of public welfare
activities in the fields of charitable donation,
environmental protection and voluntary services, and
actively exerted its influence to provide women and
children in communities with needed explanation.

As a responsible group, we believe that we can
promote the harmonious development of society by
actively fulfilling the social responsibility of improving
people’s livelihood. The management of the Group
encourages all employees to proactively participate
in community activities and hopes to contribute
efforts to improve and help address the issues
affecting the well-being of local residents through
their personal actions. The Group insists on fulfilling
its own social responsibility, closely cooperates with
the government, hospitals, charities, media and other
organizations to actively participate in public welfare
activities.

6.4

HE REBITHEEE
AEBRODRAEEX  EHL T MR
UR-ARERBE RER2mMSER
BERORAERZEAD RS RiBEE
BEREN AHERREERMHATE
ENER-

En—EaEENERE > HMABRE &K
HAUNBEEEETHEEENER
FoleEHENBER - AEBEER
REEEEIRB2REMERED B
HEEBEEERTHIAAENEY
EMHERENREBETEMNDE -
FEBERFBETHEEE BEHF B
REESEHB HESHBEYSFE
BIB2ERAmES-

The Group has actively participated in campus AREBEBRB2EASBLEREBETE &
recruitment activities for college students. During L£HR BAERBI145 - HBEESKREIR

the Reporting Period, we carried out 14 campus TtEERE BB - KRBERSIES
recruitments, signed school-enterprise cooperation HHMXER SERBLBEEERELEE
agreements with surrounding universities, and EITZERS -

conducted many discussions with on the cooperation
between schools and enterprises such as discipline
implementation, joint trainings and employment practices
of college students and special scholarship projects.
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The Group closely cooperates with and mutually
supports the neighboring Jingwei Fire Brigade. During
the Reporting Period, the Group visited the Fire Brigade
for several times and expressed heartfelt appreciation to
them for their firefighting support and guidance.

BERREEN

k —
N e |

During the Reporting Period, with the enhanced control
against the pandemic in Xi’an City, the Group took on
responsibilities and responded quickly to donate 2,400
pieces of medical eye shields to the pandemic prevention
headquarter of the Economic Development Zone.
Besides, several of our staff took initiative to become
volunteers and went deep into the frontline to help fight
against the pandemic.

AERAERBHDABREYSEEM
X -HREHMAAEESXEMBERS
BoHENREXFRBEETFRTRD
BY R o

RERA AZXHRBEENEA R &
BEREE RETH SEHBRENE
IEEMBREAREES 2400 E- 58%
LBIEHHL BERBHEXEE &
ATBE— 5B B 1B FH1E o

REHE TS SRl R AN D

i i W

RRREEREATAARARSN:
fLAAEREANNRENEAN

BEAREEE 0B LEN,
BHEANERLERNETI RN

LS. HEnELARERARNAE.

CEREL i s LT as ]
PUTE R
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During the outbreak of the pandemic, the Group took
the responsibility and reacted quickly by donating
2,400 pieces of medical eye shields to the pandemic
prevention headquarter of the Economic Development
Zone to help fight against the pandemic. We have
received the recognition from the pandemic control
leading group in Shaanxi Province and have also
become the first group of enterprises included in the
“List of Key Enterprises Above Designated Scale with
Resumed Work and Production in the Industry” ({3 £
TEREETEESFRRERE)).

IRIF - HEREBRERS

EEHRBE AEEEREERETH
mEReERBHERERBE2400
ERBRARERS S MBREBEEMRSD
B XERBEREBEHERSNEIE
TOOREAZFH(BLIELXE
TEEEMEELE)-
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APPENDIX: THE CONTENT INDEX FOR THE [fitf : E8HMXHRIBE HEREALAR

GUIDANCE OF ESG REPORT OF HKEX

HiE5IRB RS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

IBRRE EE —REERMRENER RESH

A. Environment

ARE

ASPECT Af: General disclosure Information on 4, Focus: Supremacy of
EMISSIONS (a) the policies; and Environment Protection
BEAT: HiH4 (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant and Green Operation

impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

—RKE

FHERREZREHN RARIHMNHS BEREEERNNELSH

(a) BE; &K
b) BTHETABEX

KPI'A1A

BRENIERAL

KPI A1.2
BREMERAL2

KPI A1.3
BB WISEALS

FENRRARRANNER

The types of emissions and respective emissions
data.

BRMBERRBEREE -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tons) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

B (BE1) ke RA% (BE2) RERBEHRE (U
Wi 8) Rk (MER) ZE MUSESEM §ER
M5t ) o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

FMELAEEENAE CUR:E) R WER) ZE (0
WESESEM BERMKHE) o
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4.2

4.2.2
4.2.2

RN I

Environment
Management
REEE

Exhaust Gas Emissions

BRIM

Treatment of solid
waste

EEERNRE
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“HERERERS

IERR EE -RERERMBANER

Disclosure Section

ASPECT A2: USE OF
RESOURCES
BEA2: EEER

KPI A1.4
BREMIERALY

KPI A1.5
BREMIERALS

KPI A1.6
BB WISEALE

General disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources including energy, water and other

raw materials.

—RRE

production volume, per facility)

MELEEERNEE CIEHE) R (NER)

NEEBE BRRMHE) -

taken to achieve them.

BAMTUNARERRRARNELE

8o

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g.

per unit of

BE (0

Description of emission target(s) set and steps

RARRN S

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous

wastes are handled and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to

achieve them.

HEREBREERESHENNSE RELHTLNA

BERRARNELERMRINSE-

BMERER (BEER KREMEMH) HEEK-

KPI A2.1
BREMIERA2.1

KPI A2.2
BREMIERA2 2

KPI A2.3
BREMIERA2.3

B PR ET 1694

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by

type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of

production volume, per facility).

BERYDNERR/AMBER (NE-
(M?@?Eﬁﬁ%)&zf(muiﬁz§1

i5) o

RIH) B3
=

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per facility).

and steps taken to achieve them.

RHFER-

EREBNEERRARNE

BEKEREE MUCSEEEN BRRAMHE)

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set

ELEBERMAR

KBEEH

4.2.3 Treatment of solid
waste

423 EEBEEVERE

4.2 Environment
Management

4.2 REEE

4.2.3  Treatment of solid
waste

423 EERBEVRE

4.1 Save Resources

41 HHER

4.1.2 Management of Energy

412 HKEREE

4.1.1 Management of Water
Resource

411 KEEREE

4.1 Save Resources

41 HHER
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section
IBERE BE —REERMRENER RESH
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in 4.1.1 Management of Water
BRENIEEA24 sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Resource
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to 411 KEREE

achieve them.
BRXRBRKCRLAIEAMBE URMITILNEK
N BERARIELEEMARNSE

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products 4.1.3  Management of
BRENIEEA2S (in tons) and, if applicable, with reference to Packaging Material
per unit produced. 413 BEMBER
HRRMAEEMENEE CUEHE) R (MBA) 84
EEMGE.
ASPECT A3: General disclosure 4.2 Environment
ENVIRONMENT AND Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment Management
NATURAL RESOURCES  and natural resources. 42 RERERE

BEAS: RERXAER —REE
BEETABRERRABRENERT ENHR

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities 4.2 Environment
BRENERASA on the environment and natural resources and Management
the actions taken to manage them. 42 BREEE
BREEEHHRERANERNEATYERERNE
BERTENTH-
ASPECT A4: CLIMATE General disclosure 4.3 Climate Changes
CHANGES Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues 4.3 ~ REE1E
EBEAL . RIEE( which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
—-REE

AR EHEERTEEHETAELY ENEARBHEBSENER
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section

IERR EE -RERERMBANER

RESH

B. Society
B.#E

EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES
ERRFIER

ASPECT B1:
EMPLOYMENT
BEB1: B

KPI A4.1
BREMIERAL

General disclosure
Information on:
(a) the policies; and

Description of the significant climate-related issues 4.3 Climate Changes
which have impacted, and those which may 43  RIREL
impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.
HEBRRIAEHBETAELR ENEARERRE
B oRERTE

6.3.1  Employment Overview

6.3.1 EREHER

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits.

—RRE

FEFMRER BERER THEH RE TEHE S0 REAURA

5 8 K AR A B9
(a) BIR; R
(b) BFHETABEKX

KPI B1.1

BRENIEEBI A

KPI B1.2
B#&MIERB1.2

FENRRARRRANER

Total number of employees by gender, type of 6.3.1  Employment Overview
employment, age group and region. 6.3.1 EEER
BERCEREER FRANRMEADNEESLEY

o

Employee turnover by gender, age group and 6.3.1  Employment QOverview
region. 6.3.1 EEHR
BUA ERANRMEINNEERRILE
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

IERR BEE -RERERMERMER

Disclosure Section

WESH

ASPECT B2: HEALTH General disclosure
AND SAFETY Information on:
EEB2: BEHE2  (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
—BRE
FURMZRTIERERREESHEBELERAEN.
(a) B%E; R
(b) BFHETABEATZENEMARRRANEN

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred
R EMIEEB2. 1 in each of the past three years including the
reporting year.

BEAZF QRFEREE) BERTITHANARRL

Ko

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
MRENIERB2.2 AIGBAIERS-

KPI B2.3 Describe the occupational health and safety
BRENMIEEB2.3 measures adopted and how they are
implemented and monitored.
WHRANBERREZ RN URARNIRE
Bhike
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6.3.3 Health and Safety of
Employees
633 BIEERN%Z2

6.3.3 Health and Safety of
Employees
633 BIRENZ2

6.3.3 Health and Safety of
Employees
633 BIRENZ2

6.3.3 Health and Safety of
Employees
6.3.3 BIRENZ2



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIF - HEREBRERS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section
IBERE EE —REERMRENER RESH

ASPECT B3: General disclosure 6.3.2  Staff Training and
DEVELOPMENT AND Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging Development
TRAINING duties at work. Description of training activities. 6.3.2 EBIRIE%E

EEB3: FRREIN —REE
FERABRERTIFRENNRRKENTR HLENES -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by 6.3.2  Staff Training and
BRENIEEBS. 1 gender and employee category (e.g., senior Development
management, middle management). 6.3.2 EBIRISEE

BUENRESEN WEREEE TREEES) 8D
BREEED L

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per 6.3.2  Staff Training and
BRENIEEBS.2 employee by gender and employee category. Development
RUNREEERNES BAEBTATINTHE 6.3.2 EBIRIEYE
o
ASPECT B4: LABOUR General disclosure 6.3.1  Employment Overview
STANDARDS Information on: 6.3.1 EEHR

EfEB4: HTER (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—RKE

EERBLETRRHAZIN:

(@) BE &

(b) BFHETABEAZENEEARRRANER

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment 6.3.1  Employment Overview
B3 & WISTEB4 .1 practices to avoid child and forced labour. 6.3.1 EBEHER

WA EREANERAEEEIRRHE T
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such 6.3.1  Employment QOverview

BRENIEEBL.2 practices when discovered. 6.3.1 ERER
WA ERERERNARAEERMERN S R o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - HEREREBS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

IERR BEE -RERERMERMER

Disclosure Section

WESH

Operational Practice
EEBA

ASPECT B5: SUPPLY General disclosure

CHAIN MANAGEMENT Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply chain.

EmEBS5: fiEEER

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

—RRE

EEMRENRERLEARER

KPI B5.1
BB 151RB5.1

KPI B5.2
B EMIEERS.2

KPI B5.3
B RENIE1RB5.3

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BHEHNNHEBHE

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the

practices are being implemented, how they are

implemented and monitored.

HAAEERAGEBNES nHANTABEANMRRE

BUE URBHEEANUTRERN L

Description of practices used to identify

environmental and social risks along the supply

chain, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

HAAEANHERSERD

WESRHERARNE

il URERATRERES %o

6.2.2

6.2.2

Continuing to Promote
the Suppliers’ Social
Responsibilities
REXEDERBHERHR

Establishment of Win-
win Partnership with
Suppliers
BUcLmRNHEESE
HE%

Establishment of Win-
win Partnership with
Suppliers
BUcLERNHEESE
HE%

Continuing to Promote
the Suppliers’ Social
Responsibilities
REXEDERBHERHR
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IRIF - HEREBRERS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

IERR EE -RERERMBANER

Disclosure Section

RESH

ASPECT B6:
PRODUCT
RESPONSIBILITY
EEB6: EmRf

KPI B5.4
BRENIERB5.4

General disclosure
Information on:
(a) the policies; and

Description of practices used to promote

environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how

they are implemented and monitored.

HEEREMEERRESARAREARBRENEN.

UREBRATRERA .

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling

and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and

methods of redress.

—RKE

REARHEERNRBNERER

(a) Hﬁ:&
(b) BTHETARE

KPI B6.1
B & 15 R B6. 1

KPI B6.2
B & 15 1RB6.2

KPI B6.3
BB NI51EB6.3

KPI B6.4
BRENIERB6.4

KPI B6.5
BRENIERB6.5

2 RS BE

FENRRARRRANER

RbhBEEURBR AN

Percentage of total products sold or shipped

subject to recalls for safety and health

reasons.

BENEERERBATRZ 2 AREERMALNRY

BAte

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BERRERRRBENRFHBUAREH S Ao

Description of practices relating to observing and

protecting intellectual property rights.

HERRERRENRERERNER-

Description of quality assurance process and recall

procedures.
HREERTREREREHER-

Description of consumer data protection and

privacy policies, how they are implemented and

monitored.

HEHEEERRERLDERR UREBERT

Rike

TREE

6.2.2

6.2.2

3.2

3.2

5.4

5.4

3.2

3.2

6.1.3

6.1.3

ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2021

Continuing to Promote
the Suppliers’ Social
Responsibilities

REEDUEBELERE

Integrity: Quality-
oriented

HfE EERX

Quick Response to
Quality Issues

EEREER

Customer Complaints
Management
Procedures

nﬁgii )\Lk

Protection of
Intellectual Property
Rights

MBEERRE

Integrity: Quality-
oriented

HiE: HEAK

Protection of Customer
Privacy

ERRMRE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - HEREREBS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section

TEHE -BE —-REBRAEENER BREEH

ASPECT B7: ANTI- General disclosure 3.1 Integrity: Honesty and
CORRUPTION Information on: Trustworthiness
EEB7: RES (a) the policies; and 3.1 HEHETE

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
—-BRE
BRMLEE - BR RERAREN
(a) B&K; &
(b) BTHETABBAZENBBAZRERRANER
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 3.1 Integrity: Honesty and
BRENIERBT.1 practices brought against the issuer or its Trustworthiness

employees during the reporting period and the 3.1 HE HETE

outcomes of the cases.
RERBAANHETANHEEERLUEBEANESHD

RUENBERFLER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- 3.1 Integrity: Honesty and
BRENIEERT .2 blowing procedures, and how they are Trustworthiness
implemented and monitored. 31 HE HETE

HAREERRRRES ARBERTRERS A

KPI B7.3 Description of the anti-corruption training provided 3.1.2  Training on Integrity
BRENIEEBT.S to the directors and staff. 3.1.2 BRI
WENEEREIRENRESE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIF - HEREBRERS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

IERR EE -RERERMBANER

Disclosure Section

RESH

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into

consideration the communities’ interests

ERMHE 2 ARTRELMEHERENEREEB I EZRHENZNE

Community
HE
ASPECT B8: General disclosure
COMMUNITY
INVESTMENT
EEBS: #HEHRE BB
%o
KPI B8.1

BRENERBS.1

KPI B8.2
BRENIERBS.2

Focus areas of contribution (e.qg., education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,

culture, sports).

SIEHEE (MY REFE - FIBX BE X

£ BH) -

Resources contributed (e.g., money or time) to the

focus area.

HBIERMBRER WEHAKH) -

6.4 Win-win: Actively
Fulfilling Social
Responsibility

64 HERBETHEER

6.4 Win-win: Actively
Fulfilling Social
Responsibility

6.4 HF: BBEGTHEEE

6.4 Win-win: Actively
Fulfilling Social
Responsibility

6.4 HF: BBREGTHEEE
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands and its registered office address is
Sertus Chambers, Governors Square, Suite #5-204, 23
Lime Tree Bay Avenue, P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company, and
the Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the research and development, manufacture and sale of
automotive interior decorative components and parts.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business, investment and financial
activities, including a fair review of the business using
financial key performance indicators and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business as well
as environmental policies and performance, as required by
Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance, is shown in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 8 to 16 and in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 36 to 105 of this
annual report.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING

THE COMPANY

The Company is mainly engaged in the provision of
automotive interior decorative components. We are subject
to risks mainly due to the restrictions on the market
prospect brought by the development of the automobile
industry and the relatively higher customer concentration.
Regarding the above risks, the Group has formulated
relevant measures and mechanisms to actively explore new
customers and new products, so as to reduce risks. Details
for other risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and currency risk, and measures to reduce the
risks are set out in note 24 to the financial statements of
this annual report.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of revenue from the Group’s largest
and five largest customers for the year ended 31 December
2021 represented approximately 57.4% (31 December
2020: 46.7%) and 97.0 (31 December 2020: 96.86%),
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue from sales
operations.

The aggregate amount of purchases from the Group’s
largest and five largest suppliers for the year ended 31
December 2021 represented approximately 9.32% (31
December 2020: 15.55%) and 30.51%, respectively (31
December 2020: 37.83%).

So far as is known to our Directors, none of our Directors,
their respective close associates or our Shareholders
who are interested in more than 5% of the issued share
capital of our Company has any interests in the five largest
customers or the five largest suppliers of our Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group endeavours to maintain sustainable
development in the long term, continuously create
value for its employees and customers, and foster good
relationships with its suppliers. The Group understands
that employees are its valuable assets, and the realization
and enhancement of employees’ values will facilitate the
achievement of the Group’s overall goals. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group provided generous
social security benefits to its employees to motivate
them while heightening their sense of belonging. The
Group also understands the importance of maintaining
good relationships with its suppliers and customers to
the overall development of the Group. The Group places
emphasis on supplier selection and encourages fair and
open competition to foster long-term relationships with
quality suppliers on the basis of mutual trust. To maintain
the competitiveness of its brand and products, the Group
abides by the principles of honesty and trustworthiness and
commits itself to consistently provide quality products to
establish a reliable service environment for its customers.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no
significant and material dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.

Directors’ Report
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FTEERRIHER
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 5 of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability
of the environment and is determined to become an
environmentally-friendly corporation that pays close
attention to conserving natural resources. We strive to
minimize our environmental impact by saving electricity and
water and encouraging the recycling of office supplies and
other materials.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND

REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, as far as the
Company is aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report and note 17 to the financial statements in this annual
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the event after the reporting period are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements in this annual report.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in properties, plants and equipment
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note
11 to the financial statements in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution amounted to RMB249.2million.

RESERVES
Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in note 23 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between
meeting shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital
management with a sustainable dividend policy. The
Company’s dividend policy aims to allow shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profit and for the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future development. When
considering the dividend payment, the Board shall take
into account the factors including but not limited to the
Company’s operations and earnings, capital requirements
and surplus, general financial condition, contractual
restrictions, capital expenditure and future development
requirements, shareholders’ interests and other factors that
the Board considers relevant.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report, neither the Company, nor its
subsidiaries have purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Directors’ Report
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EFEHRE

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the directors of the Company,
as of the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules at any time up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the Articles of Association, every Director
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profit of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her
office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officer’s liability coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There were no equity-linked agreements entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December
2021.

CHARITABLE ACTION

During the Reporting Period, with the enhanced control
against the pandemic in Xi’an City, the Group took on
responsibilities and responded quickly to donate 2,400
pieces of medical eye shields to the pandemic prevention
headquarter of the Economic Development Zone. Besides,
several of our staff took initiative to become volunteers
and went deep into the frontline to help fight against the
pandemic.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report
are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Hou Jianli (Chairman)
Ms. Hou Yuxi

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhu Honggiang

Mr. Zhou Genshu

Mr. Chen Geng

Mr. Hou Jianli and Ms.Hou Yuxi shall retire from office by
rotation in accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of
Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual
report are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 17
to 22 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company for a term of three years unless
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s
notice in writing to the other party.

Directors’ Report
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with our Company for a
term of three years unless terminated by either party giving
not less than one month’s written notice to the other party.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes
16.1 and 16.2 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) has
been entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2021.

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 15.2
and 15.3 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company,
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any
Director or an entity connected with him/her or Controlling
Shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year under review.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and five highest
paid individuals of the Company are set out in notes 8
and 9 to the financial statements in this annual report. The
emoluments of the Directors is determined by reference to
the relevant Directors’ experience, responsibility, workload
and the time devoted to our Group.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

None of our Directors and their respective close associates
are interested in any business which competes or is likely
to compete with that of our Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of corporate governance practice adopted by
the Company are set out in the section of “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.

Directors’ Report
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EFEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, the interests or short
positions of each of our Directors and chief executive
of our Company in our Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of our Company and our associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which, were required to be notified
to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions in which any of them was taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(@) Interest in the Company

Name of Director Nature of interest

EFRRESTHRAEBRKRG HEEARSG
REEENEDZRXE

REF®RBH AMHEEREFRTEEN
BAERZBERFTAAREREZE (E&
R(BHRBEERMN) (EBEMNFEE7T1E)
(MEEHFREBE®RA ) BXVE) BRM 48
BMRONEEETHEAREESRBER
PIEXVERE 7R BN B AN E AR T K B
XFrpEm ke (BEREEFRBER
PIB IR SRR EWE (FE AR E v A RO 1E
mEKB) HRBEESFRBERHIE3521%
AR AZRAANEL P R REREST
AN EXRBD KRB ED KA R
mr

(a) REARN#EE
Number of
Shares Percentage of
(Note 1) shareholding

EEHY EEEE RH&B (M) FRaaL

Mr. Hou Jianli Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)

B ETE fo@fm ; SEGEERED (I5E2)

Notes: MysE ©

1. The letter “L” denotes our Directors’ long position (as defined 1. FERILBERMAEENZERMNEE (EER

under Part XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. Mr. Hou Jianli (“Mr. Hou”) is the spouse of Ms. Chen Bierui
(“Ms. Chen”). The entire issued share capital of H&C Group
Holding Limited is beneficially and legally owned as to 60%
and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen respectively. By virtue
of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares held by H&C Group
Holding Limited.

58 5 R R B IR B SEXVER) ©

2. EFERAEE(TELE) BBRAKLZ LT (TRE
+1) BEZ {8 - H&C Group Holding LimitedBy &
HEBETRADIEHELERBRLTERRS
EHEB60%R40%  RIEEHF MHBE KA 2
HE MR TR ARH&C Group Holding
Limited PRI RVAERI S B D B 5 o



(b) Interests in associated corporations

Directors’ Report

EFERE

(b) RAEEE B S

Name of Name of associated Number of Shares Percentage of
Director corporation Nature of interest (Note 1) shareholding
EENRS HEBEER RS BEME R EE (1) RIEE L
Mr. Hou Jianli H&C Group Holding Limited  Beneficial owner; Interest of 100 (L) 100%

spouse (Note 2)

EEFLE  H&C Group Holding Limited Bm#EA A ; BEED (HF2)
Notes: [E
1. The letter “L” denotes the long position (as defined under Part

XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. Mr. Hou Jianli (“Mr. Hou”) is the spouse of Ms. Chen Bierui
(“Ms. Chen”). The entire issued share capital of H&C Group
Holding Limited is beneficially and legally owned as to 60%
and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen respectively. By virtue
of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen is deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares held by H&C Group
Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual
report, none of the Directors or the chief executive of our
Company has any interests or short positions in our shares,
underlying shares or debentures of our Company and
our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions in which any of them was taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were
required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

1. FHILERZERONETR (TEEREBHERE
B & BIZEXVER) o

2. FEEAKLE (MELRE)) BEARLE (MEL
+1) BES {8 - H&C Group Holding Limitedfy &
BEBITRADIHELERRLTERA RS
EHERG60% KR40% IRIBEE S R ERA > &=
LERBEZTHERANRH&C Group Holding
LimitedFr i M EREI LB RRID PR Ex o

FREXREBEIN RAEAFHREAB BELL
BEFHTHAINERAT REMBH LR
(EERBHERPEHFEHBXVE) BIRMD
HEARNMNESFTHEERBEE S KA E K
PIEXVERSE 7R ESDE AN G XN F KBk
PR (B35 1R 15 58 55 K B3 & 1% A1) B9 1% ST AR 4R
EREFARFEENRDIRXE) HRE
&5 R E IR B 55 3521% ZA 58 A &% IR P i B9
EREMARRERETIANEEARATRK
BZPTRY R SR A o
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EFEHRE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this annual report, the persons or
corporations who has an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FTERRNROUEARGFHEROE
mERE

REFHERBH REZFRPEHERHEXV
BE2RFINDWARAERDKREHAREE
SRAEFRAEFEI6HABFHECMATE
B T ALTIEER QB RKD AEE
RPPEENEDTIXEDNT

Name of Number of Shares Percentage of
Shareholder Nature of interest (Note 1) shareholding
RERAE HEEEE KRH&B (M) FiRESL
H&C Group Holding  Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
Limited
BEmEBA
Mr. Hou Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)
BERAE Bof@fm ; REGEE#ED (st 2)
Ms. Chen Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)
R+ fof@fa ; REGEE#D (5t 2)
Notes: M5E -
1. The letter “L” denotes the long position (as defined under Part 1. ZFHILIIERZEROHNETE (EEREH K

XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued share
capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially and
legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms.
Chen is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares
held by H&C Group Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual
report, the directors were not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short position in shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

B & MBI ZEXVER) °

2. EEREABBRLZETHNERE -H&C Group Holding
Limited Y 2 20 B 8517 8% & 9 B HH 13 50 4 M BR
LT ERE R EEBC0%K40% - RIEESHK
HEKRG  ERERBLLTHHERABNHLC
Group Holding LimitedPFr$FpIEE & 8 &RH
BEER

BREXIKBEN REAERAP - EFHF
MBEEAMEMALTIEZBRETRFRMD
BEARNDTHEERBEES P ERMNEXV
BHE2RFINEAME QD KENREE
FREIEFA FEI36FEHFHEL ML
BRREEE KA -



DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2021 or the
period following 31 December 2021 up to the date of this
annual report, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or holding company or any of the subsidiaries of the
Company’s holding company a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company or their respective associates to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors and chief executive, or their spouse and children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right
during such period.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit plan managed by the PRC local government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC, and operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars of
these retirement plans are set out in note 6 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021, which did not
constitute connected transactions under chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, are set out in note 26 of the financial
statements in this annual report.

Directors’ Report
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EFEHRE

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company has received the written confirmation
from each of H&C Group Holding Limited, Mr. Hou
Jianli, Ms. Chen Bierui (the “Covenantors”) in respect
of the compliance with the terms of the non-compete
undertaking (the “Non-compete Undertaking”), entered
into between the Covenantors and the Company as set
out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Non-Competition Undertakings From Our
Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus. Each of the
Covenantors has confirmed and declared that he/she/ it
had strictly complied with the Non-compete Undertaking
without any breach thereof. All the Independent Non-
executive Directors had reviewed the matters relating to the
enforcement of the Non-compete Undertaking and consider
that the terms of the Non-compete Undertaking have been
complied with by each of the Covenantors for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITORS
The Company appointed KPMG as auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

KPMG will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD
Hou Jianli

Chairman

Xi'an, the PRC, 29 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 128 to 220, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

BB EERS
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BER
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&I BT S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that,

in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

MEEFSEH
FREFFTEESRBEHRMANEXRAE B
HEAMGRAaUBRENBEFRAREENS
R-EEZEREARMBFAERGEHHR
KREHAERFETEREN -HMAFTSTHE
EEERHEBNER -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide

a separate opinion on these matters.

B RWRIATAREEHERER

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

2(h)(i) and 2(k).

Refer to Notes 14 and 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes

B R4 S IR RN 5E 147124 (a) & BT 22(h)()F12 (k)BT & 51 ECFE ©

The Key Audit Matter
FAEEHEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BT EBIEM AR R

At 31 December 2021, the Group had a significant
balance of gross trade receivables which amounted
to RMB75,652,000, representing approximately
13.22% of the Group’s total assets at that date,
against which an allowance of RMB2,264,000 for
expected credit losses (ELCs) was recorded.
R2021%F12831H BEENEZRUNHRIEREE
A ARM75,652,0000 1 EEENRZBREER
HEBEA13.22% MirSFEMERBR(ELCs)E®E
ANE#2,264,0007T °

The Group’s trade receivables mainly arose from
heavy truck and passenger vehicle manufacturers.
EEENBZRUABIERBELRERFKAS
BUER o

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance
for trade receivables included the following:

BB RARBEREEEBNSEFEXEHE
MF&EE:

o Obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt
collection and estimate of credit loss
allowances;

e THREIALEEBHEEHES  EHEBEWNIE
EFEEEREGSARMNBEEANSEZENRS
B EERE

° evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating
the credit loss allowance with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e ZRRTEFAEINER FHEEAEBRNER
BREFEEHTEER ;

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD AEIXIHAEANE 4B RAT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BB EERS

FBEESEIE @)

BEERBRERRGEEHRERER

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

2(h)(i) and 2(k).

Refer to Notes 14 and 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes

R S I B R M EE14/124(a) % I 522(h) () F12 (k) B9 & 51 I 5 ©

The Key Audit Matter
B EE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt FREMMARR

Management measures loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL of the trade receivables which
is based on ageing of the receivables and expected
loss rate for each category of trade receivables
grouped according to the shared credit risk
characteristics. The estimated loss rates take into
account the ageing of trade receivable balances, the
repayment history of the Group’s customers, current
market conditions, and forward-looking information.
Such assessment involves significant management
judgement and estimation.
EEERRURRNEDBRBRERBRESS
BREF BUBRANERBRBERERBREER
BREKGRIERNRE U R RARBERR BEBEHR
RO MBEBRBARGHE RPBRAXNES
ARV ERUBRREHRRE EETRNEMTER
BRI TSR RAMATRESE - ERETEIREANE
E g A BR AN {5t o

We identified the ECL allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter because
determining the level of loss allowance is inherently
subjective which requires significant management
judgement.
BMREBRFANTBERERABLAEGIEAHHRSE
SEENREZ BRAEEKENEEAALANT
WMy REKEIREFIE-

° assessing whether items in the trade
receivables ageing report were categorised
in the appropriate ageing bracket by
comparing a sample of individual items
with the underlying goods delivery notes,
sales invoices and other relevant underlying
documentation;

e BEWMEBLEANEEREHENEEE HE
BEMAEMMERI X > TR RRRE RS
FMIEEEEESEMERE DS

° assessing the appropriateness of
management’s estimates of ECL allowance
for trade receivables by examining the
information used by management to derive
such estimates, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data and
evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on latest
financial information of major customers,
current economic conditions and forward-
looking information; and

e BREXEEEAUGERWIRANIERER
BAREFENEN SFNEELRIDHEDN
ERMNTLEEEEBAXEZEEERIERTRHN
AT A RS B ~ 2 A0 AR IR AN A B M BB
TEEAE THEEEGEEENSEY ;
)4

° re-performing the calculation of the loss
allowance as at 31 December 2021 based on
the Group’s credit loss allowance policies.

e REBEEENGEHBREERER EMFAERN
2021F12B31HHBKREH -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FEESEIE @

Timing of revenue recognition

Wi A B 5T s

BEGR S BIREN Z4R M2 & 51 B K ©

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(r).

The Key Audit Matter
Bt EE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt FREMARR

Revenue from sales of automotive interior and
exterior decorative products is recognised when
products are delivered at the customers’ premises,
the customers take possession of and accept the
products, which is taken to be the point in time
when the Group transfers control over the products
to the customers.

EEYRERGHRN EREERBMNEDRS Al
WERT EEERHERNEHNREETZER
NE—ERE R $5E B RIMNm 1 E f 2 WA 5 FE
AR

We identified the timing of revenue recognition
as a key audit matter because revenue is a key
performance indicator of the Group which increases
the risk that the timing of revenue recognition may
be manipulated to meet financial expectations or
targets.
BM#HNBRAERDISEABAREESSZE BRAKA
7 BEEE-ENRRRIFER EMBATERER
EUERY AR B RN AR -

Qur audit procedures to assess the timing of

recognition of revenue included the following:

HTEWRARIFLEEAEANEFERNEEAUATE

15 :

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls in relation to revenue recognition;

e  THRRMLEIEEHEKAEREBORERNI
BRI s B REERUE

° inspecting customer contracts, on a sample
basis, to identify terms and conditions relating
to goods acceptance and assessing the
Group’s revenue recognition policies with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

e HEBRERPNEGHN UHNABEYROTA
R IR R R R AR BRIRIT G st ERIMRE
FE SEENBARERERE ;

° comparing, on a sample basis, specific
revenue transactions recorded before
and after the financial year end date with
underlying documentation, which included
goods acceptance notes, to assess
whether the revenue had been recognised
in accordance with the terms of the sales
contracts and in the appropriate financial
periods;

e REEEARZE HRNURFEELEHAER
BHETWRARZ EERXE (BEEYMEI
B) UFTHBRARSEREBEHESQKERN
BE M EAE R ;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

4

BB EERS

FBEESEIE @)

Timing of revenue recognition

Ui A B 5T s

BEGR S BIREN Z4R M2 & 51 B ©

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(r).

The Key Audit Matter
B EE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt FHEN AR

inspecting underlying documentation for
manual journal entries relating to revenue
which were recorded during the year and
which met other specific risk-based criteria;
and

1% B B AF O B 1S I A AE R e R & HLAt AT TE RLRR
BENFIEst o EEAXH ; &

obtaining external confirmation of, on a
sample basis, transaction amounts for the
year and debtor balances as at the financial
year end directly with customers.
RREARE BERERNZRERNFERZ T
MBEFHFERE ZRBUIRIBGHRENHF
& o

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S

REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

MEMBRRRGBEMKESUINER

EFANHMBENABS - HMENSEHN
FHERANFABEER EFAERGEEHHFRE
R FIB R BB R & o

BRMBGEEMHFRENER Y A REH M
B AT AHZETHEHMENEREIMAT
NHERER -

EEHMABHGEEMBERERNES HANE
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ENRCRGEMBRERINRAMESESE
RAMTHEOBREEEARBEREMUTF
FHEERERRAMNBR -
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35 37 1% BX B ¥R 5

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S

REPORT THEREON (Continued)

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

124  CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD FREIREESERERHERAS
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
35 37 1% BX B ¥R 5

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chu Man Wai.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FEEmR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE

(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) (XA E # (T A EE #y) %I/7T7)

2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B sE AR¥ET T AEBFT
Revenue A 4 295,776 379,555
Cost of sales HE A (225,223) (262,649)
Gross profit EF 4(b) 70,553 116,906
Other income Hh A 5 3,901 6,466
Selling and distribution expenses HE & (9,011) (9,737)
Administrative expenses THMAX (47,128) (41,282)
Impairment losses reversed on B2 WA EE
trade and other receivables BERR 24(a) 31 706
Profit from operations REE 18,346 73,059
Finance costs BF 35 A A 6(a) (9,409) (9,804)
Profit before taxation R AR Al E F 6 8,937 63,255
Income tax Frig iR 7(a) (1,608) (12,381)
Profit attributable to equity ATERRRELFERN
shareholders of the Company it Fl
for the year 7,329 50,874
Earnings per share SKREF
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EARAREE (NRED) 10 0.37 2.54

F136E220E 2 M AMBREN —
ZED o FEAT T AN T L R EELEREF
ZREMNEBE MK E23(C) o

The notes on pages 136 to 220 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for
the year are set out in Note 23(c).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

e mREMEZEH B ER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) (XA & # (T A EE #y) I/7T)

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT AREF T
Profit for the year FREF 7,329 50,874
Other comprehensive income FREMZ2EUIA
for the year (after tax): (I0prIRIE®R) :
ltem that may be reclassified AREEREMDEERGDH
subsequently to profit or loss: BI=] =
- Exchange differences on —MBAKREEEINEEN
translation into presentation bE 2 A= B
currency of the Group (705) (696)
Total comprehensive income AEEEREELEARE
attributable to equity MU A
shareholders of the
Company for the year 6,624 50,178

The notes on pages 136 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.

B e

F136E220B 2B A B HREKN—
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HAEMBRRAR

At 31 December 2021 722021E12H831H

(Expressed in RMB) (LA B #5)T)

2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B sE ARET T AREFT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB RHRE 11 204,921 169,922
Intangible assets mEEE 1,279 479
Prepayments for acquisitions of BEME - BRERREZ
property, plant and equipment TafRIE 15(a) 6,285 9,949
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 21(b) 2,061 1,753
e _______ 214,546 182,108 _
Current assets RENEE
Inventories =8 13 60,224 78,466
Trade and bills receivables B 5 FE U TR I8 K FE U
i 14 166,130 254,962
Prepayments and other receivables FET TIE K H A FE UK
ErE| 15(b) 30,566 12,893
Cash at bank and on hand RITKRFERE 16 100,850 97,484
R TII0 443,805
Current liabilities mEaR
Bank and other loans RITREMERR 17 118,602 88,667
Trade and bills payables B 5 eI RIB K AT
Zig 18 131,862 223,388
Accrued expenses and FEstR X R EMAET
other payables B 19 36,028 28,984
Lease liabilities HEaRE 20 820 1,064
Current taxation BRERTR 18 21(a) 73 3,214
e ___________ 287,385 345,317
Net currentassets = #®AEF®H 70,385 98,488
Total assets less current liabilities EEERTEIAR 284,931 280,591

The notes on pages 136 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FAEMBRRAR

At 31 December 2021 220214128 31H
(Expressed in RMB) (X A & ¥ 51/ 7T)

2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt 5 ARBTTE ARBTT

Non-current liabilities ERBERE

Bank and other loans IRITREMERR 17 15,232 7,349
Lease liabilities HEaRE 20 58 1,048
Deferred income IR FE YT A 22 2,969 2,122

e e _____ OB 18,259 10,519
NET ASSETS BEEFE 266,672 270,072
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B RKHEE 23

Share capital RN 17,522 17,522
Reserves H1E 249,150 252,550
TOTAL EQUITY W 4EER 266,672 270,072

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of ZEEER2022FE3F20HMET T -
directors on 29 March 2022.

Hou Jianli Hou Yuxi

EEF ZREH

Chairman Executive Director
FE HITESE

The notes on pages 136 to 220 form part of these financial $136E220B B AP FH KK —
statements. BB o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SAHEREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA B #5)T)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FARERRAEL
Share Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
k% Riria® Hfffif e ERGfE fRE &R it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS A\EETR AEETR AEETT AEEFR A\EETR A\EETR
(Note 23(b))  (Note 23(d)(i)  (Note 23(d)(i))  (Note 23(d)(iil)  (Note 23(d)(iv)
(Ksos)  (MaEos()i)  (Ksos())  (HsRes(a)Gil)  (Hi&28(d)iv)

Balance at 1 January 2021 1%2021£181A 17,522 106,378 (17,500) 24,605 1,008 137,469 210,072

Changes in equity for ~ E 220215128310
the year ended LEEZEGES .

31 December 2021:
Profit for the year EhiEH - - - - - 7,329 7,329
Other comprehensive EREMZENA

income for the year - - - - (705) - (708)

Total comprehensive ERZEAHA
income for the year - - - - (705) 1,329 6,624

Dividends approved and S E—EEHE

paid in respect of UEANRE

the previous year (H523(c))

(Note 23(c)) - (10,024) - - - - (10,024)
Appropriation o reserve AEEEE - - - 1,179 - (1,179) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, g 0L N O ' N U 11111 S L
Balance at 120215128318

31 December 2021 17,522 96,854 (17,500) 25,784 393 143,619 266,672

The notes on pages 136 to 220 form part of these financial S 136F220B 2 M B AP HFREX W —
statements. BB o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEEEDmEEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8, £2021F 12831 H L FE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA B #5851 T)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KRR ERRERE
Share Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
k= RitaE Efffit HE R ER REEH &5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR NEBTR NRETR ARBTR AEBTR ARETR NEBTR
(Note 23()) ~ (Note 23d)i)  (Note 23(d)l)  (Note 23(d)fi))  (Note 23(d)jiv)

(Hsto30) (&%) (W&t (s (HE23))

Balance at 1 January 2020 #2020£181A 17,522 117,703 (17500) 19,098 1794 91,902 230,719

Changes in equity for the EZ2020£128310

year ended LEEZERED.

31 December 2020:
Profit for the year P& = - - - - 50,874 50,874
Other comprehensive EREM2ENA

income for the year - - - - (696) - (696)

Total comprehensive ERZASHA
income for the year - - - - (696) 50,874 50,178

Dividends approved and S L—EEHE

paid in respect of UEANRE

the previous year (H523(0))

(Note 23(c)) - (10,825) - - - - (10,825)
Appropriation to reserve  HEZEE - - - 5,307 = (5,307) =
_____________________________ S sy - Sar _o____B3 __ [108%)
Balance at 12020512A318

31 December 2020 17522 106,878 (17,500) 24,605 1,098 137,469 210,072

The notes on pages 136 to 220 form part of these financial 25 136E220B 2 M@ A R T —
statements. B e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EFEaRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA B #5)T)

2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Py 5% ARBTTE ARBTT

Operating activities RETEE
Profit before taxation Bk 752 A1 v A 8,937 63,255
Adjustments for: MUTRZEEHAE
Depreciation and amortisation TEE M iH 6(c) 26,439 18,047
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HEME -BEX
property, plant and equipment R E W FRE 5 114 (12)
Finance costs B 75 AR AR 6(a) 9,409 9,804
Interest income ] EUA 5 (357) (243)
Amortisation of deferred income i JE U A 21 22 (243) (225)
Changes in working capital: EEESEH .
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BB (E) 18,242 (17,652)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B S ENTIE K&
bills receivables FEW IR
b () 88,832 (19,018)
Increase in prepayments and T8I I8 e E A
other receivables FE UL =R IE 1 N (15,359) (872)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted SEREIIRITIER
bank deposits B (HE0) 2,562 (11,172)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and BHENRIEBR
bills payables e E4R
GRt) /180 (91,526) 54,982
Decrease in accrued expenses and FEEHRE S M E fih
other payables FE AT R IE R D (3,061) (17,806)
Cash generated from operations &GRS 43,989 79,088
Income tax paid BFER 21(a) (7,371) (12,635)
Net cash generated from RETHFRERE
operating activities X 36,618 66,453

The notes on pages 136 to 220 form part of these financial 5 136ZE220B 2 M sE B KB R K —
statements. 4 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

nv'F Eﬁﬁ;ﬁgﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # F£2021FE 12831 H L EE
(Expressed in RMB) (X A B #% 7T)

2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B sE AR¥EF T AE®BFT
Investing activities KREEE
Payments for purchase of property, EBEYE -BEX
plant and equipment and B PN
intangible assets (49,892) (36,941)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE HREKRE
plant and equipment B2 P8R8 606 188
Government grants received BT 47 BN 1,090 =
Interest received BUH B 357 243
Net cash used in investing KREEFHMARE
activities R EE (47,839) (36,510)
Financing activities RLEES
Proceeds from bank and other loans $R{TRHEME HFFE
EV QL] 16(b) 152,305 200,069
Repayment of bank and other loans {BER{TREMER 16(b) (114,487) (182,139)
Dividend paid BB 16(b) (10,024) (10,825)
Interest paid BAFE 16(b) (9,309) (9,647)
Capital element of lease rentals paid & EL,éfZMT%‘i’_# 16(b) (1,234) (878)
Interest element of lease rentals paid HEE&SEF BEERIE 16(b) (100) (157)
Net cash generated from/(used in) FRAEEBFFE,~
financing activities FREA)RL®H 17,151 (8,577)
Net increase in cash and HERREEEY
cash equivalents EnEEE 5,930 26,366
Cash and cash equivalents at the F#{RERALEEY
beginning of the year 16(a) 56,610 30,246
Effect of foreign exchange SNEEXREHTE
rate changes 2 (2)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRRERREEEY
the end of the year 16(a) 62,538 56,610

The notes on pages 136 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.

F136E220B 2B A B HREKN—

B e

ANNUAL REPORT £k 2021

135



136

Notes to the Financial Statements

R 53R | M s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 5 B5& 5F » ¥ XN B ¥ 517T)

1

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD AEIXIHAEANE 4B RAT

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2017 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time. The shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 15 January 2019. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of automotive
interior and exterior decorative components and
parts.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021 comprise the
Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R 53R | M s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 5 B5& 5F » ¥ XN B ¥ 517T)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD AEIXIHAEANE 4B RAT

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB
to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

° Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark
reform — phase 2

o Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-related
rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period. Impacts of the
adoption of the amended IFRSs are discussed
below:

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark reform —
phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from
(i) accounting for changes in the basis for
determining contractual cash flows of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities
as modifications, and (i) discontinuing hedge
accounting when an interest rate benchmark is
replaced by an alternative benchmark rate as
a result of the reform of interbank offered rates
(“IBOR reform”). The amendments do not have
an impact on these financial statements as the
Group does not have contracts that are indexed
to benchmark interest rates which are subject to
the IBOR reform.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative equity interests, but no adjustments
are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interests retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint venture.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 7 5% B9 & 5) » ¥ LA B ¥ 5/ )

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)), unless
the investment is classified as held-for-sale.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

2(h)(ii)).

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest;

- buildings situated on leasehold properties;
and

S items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (see Note

2(g)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see Note 2(u)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F12831H L FE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & 5 B & Sk » N B 155 7T)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Estimated
useful lives

Plant and buildings 10 — 40 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Moulds 4 - 5 years
Motor vehicles and other 5 -10 years
equipment
Right-of-use assets:
— Land-use-right leased Over the
for own use unexpired
term of lease
— Plant and buildings 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in process until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.
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R 53R | M s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 7 5% B9 & 5) » ¥ LA B ¥ 5/ )

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Estimated
useful lives

Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2 EBEXREHHE®

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

(9)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Notes 2(e) and 2(h)

(if)).

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from
the right-of-use assets in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to
investments in debt securities carried at
amortised cost. Any difference between the
initial fair value and the nominal value of
the deposits is accounted for as additional
lease payments made and is included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate, or
there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a change in the scope of a
lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are rent concessions
that occurred as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in profit
or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.

2 EBEXREHHE®
(9) HEZE @)

(i)

TERBAFN (@)

HIEB A REEERRK
HEMREZ A& EE
HRERNFEEEREND
LEtER|EE > HAEHMT
BrEERRERCEREN
ERE IR EERE
m5l s A EMtEME
EaR-HMEWLZFBRTE
M EBHEER AERME
AREENKREEFEESR
B oy MERABREENKRE
BEERBREZT BIHEBHRE
RiBm AR

EHEHEEEFMEZNR
B (TEERPYREESEHNT
BE) (TFHHEg2F)) wRME
ABUMBEARE - HES
BREENF 2 -HEULLBR
ToEEaGERKLEITRE
TR KRBEBUESTEXA
2RI EEMIE
E—fFH N2 RECOVID-19%
EMEBRBERIFTAE S
MEBRSEANFE16EHEE
FA6BERFT XA & B
RoHAEZEBERT  A&EE
ENBEER#ERE Z > ~FF
HHERTHERTBHRERE
RoWHREERERTRES
EHREEZTEZSPEE
BEaARAEEHRIAE
B EHEE o

ANNUAL REPORT £k 2021

145



146

Notes to the Financial Statements

R 53R | M s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 5 B5& 5F » ¥ XN B ¥ 517T)

BEARTHHEEK @
HEEE @

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

(9)

(i)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with Note 2(r).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
the sub-leases are classified as a finance
lease or as an operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is
a short-term lease to which the Group
applies the exemption described in Note
2(9)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-
lease as an operating lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for ECL on financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, and trade and other
receivables) and contract assets.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for trade
and other receivables and contract assets
are discounted using the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof, where the effect of
discounting is material.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 5 B5& 5F » ¥ XN B ¥ 517T)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held). The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

- failure to make payments on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in
the market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 7 5% B9 & 5) » ¥ LA B ¥ 5/ )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(r)(ii) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

S significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in payments;

S it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

- significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 5 B5& 5F » ¥ XN B ¥ 517T)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in
the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

- prepayments for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EAXZ:HEE @)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (h) EEBEREERE ®@®
(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) BFETEEERE &)
(Continued)
- Calculation of recoverable amount FTEE o] EE
The recoverable amount of an asset EEzkE&ELEH

is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). A portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset (for example,
head office building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit
if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis, or to
the smallest group of cash-generating
units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 7 5% B9 & 5) » ¥ LA B ¥ 5/ )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets

(Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(i) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for
sale in the ordinary course of business, in
the process of production for such sale or
in the form of materials or suppliers to be
consumed in the production process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

154 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD FEIXISENHEERAT

2

BEARTHHEEK @

(h)

(i)

() #&
(i)

SEBERREERE (@)

HithFF 78 5 E B 1E (5

—  HEEEREE
fis B 1F & € 7] W o] & 28
WEEHRBEANHNE
oAEEOAERNBAE
BERE-

{8 &5 18 B9 55 B DR &R
B F R ST R E
BEEMNBERLTMEREE
WEERBESR P
1 [0] BY R B 5 18 1N FE 5B
BEINFEE ABD e

R Efth & AR

]
FEARBEEBBRBRERFIE
HENBEE RELEEBRE
THRELEEBRETTER
BY A7 #} S W L o

2 th > 4T B BR o

B A DAN A F 19 B A A = E
B HDEEMBRBRAE
MIKAERGEEFEEEER
A B K2 3= B IR AR 2 B th Y
o

OERFEANHEERLB
BPZESFEBRETRE
EZEMEAKRBEMRTZ
g st A o



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventories (see Note 2(i)(i)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are those costs that the Group incurs to
obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had
not been obtained e.g. an incremental sales
commission. Incremental costs of obtaining
a contract are capitalised when incurred if
the costs relate to revenue which will be
recognised in a future reporting period and
the costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 5 B5& 5F » ¥ XN B ¥ 517T)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(i)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Costs that relate
directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract
may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other
costs that are incurred only because the
Group entered into the contract. Other
costs of fulfilling a contract, which are not
capitalised as inventories are expensed as
incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses
are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset
exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii)
any costs that relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised.
The accounting policy for revenue
recognition is set out in Note 2(r).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)]

(k)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(r)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(h)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional
(see Note 2(k)).

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 2(r)).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see Note
2(k)).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see
Note 2(j)).
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 7 5% B9 & 5) » ¥ LA B ¥ 5/ )

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are initially
measured at their transaction price. Trade
receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. All
receivables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method and
including allowance for credit losses (see Note

2(n) ().

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in Note 2(h)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
trade and other payables are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost, using an effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs
(see Note 2(u)).

2

BX

(k)

n

(m)

(n)

TR @

B REMEWKRIE &)
TEEAMELD ZEWE SR
TP RERGBFE2- B85 &
ABEBOPZ2ENREZERKE
MEKRTEBENSTRAFTEMNMRK S
A E-FIBERURTEBEBHEEU
ERA LGSR AT R W
BEEEEEBE (RWE2(h)
(i) °

RERRESEY
BeNREFEVERERTEN
MR -FERNREBTNEMEH
RN EHER UREHNS
MBENRE-BERETUE
RUESENNRBE EEE
BLENRRRNR LERBAR
ZEAERIB - ~EBZRMKE
2 (WP Bt R REME
TEEVETEHREREBEAKR
filh

EREMMEREMENRE
BEZRAREREMENMRER
REANREED - BEZENRE
REMEMNREEHZRXBERF
RERBENEIAKR HEERER
FETAEN ABREZSRI
B

tEEE

SAERERAABERR Z MAE
MPHFB-BRERE FEME
EZBBRAMZEUEIFH M AT
R-FEHAXBEBELFAEENREE
PLAE SRR (RWEE2()) -



Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits

(o)

(P)

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 5 B5& 5F » ¥ XN B ¥ 517T)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD AEIXIHAEANE 4B RAT

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided that they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount
of the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which
the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding
those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Revenue and other income (Continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

Sale of automotive interior and exterior
decorative components and parts
Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises, the
customers take possession of and accept
the products, which is taken to be the
point in time when the Group transfers
control over the products to the customers.
If the products are a partial fulfilment of
a contract covering other goods, then
the amount of revenue recognised is
an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods promised
under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see Note 2(h)(i)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iiij Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised
as other income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are recognised as deferred income
and consequently recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the useful
life of the asset.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the
Group initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB, the Group’s reporting currency,
at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®)

(u)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD AEIXIHAEANE 4B RAT

Research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the year in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities
is capitalised if the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs (see Note 2(u)),
where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(v) Related parties

(@)

A person,

or a close member of that

person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i)

(if)

(i)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of the
Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vij a person identified in (a) (i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity);

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group

of which it is a part, provides key

management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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3 BB R Al B

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
Note 24 contains information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value of financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

Impairment losses for non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of a non-current asset may not be
recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with accounting
policy for impairment of non-current assets
as described in Note 2(h)(ii). These assets are
tested for impairment whenever the events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. When such a decline has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs of disposal and
the value in use. In determining the value in
use, expected future cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement
relating to the level of revenue and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the recoverable amount of the assets and could
result in additional impairment charge or reversal
of impairment in future years.
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CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES 3

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit loss allowance for trade receivables
Loss allowance for trade receivables is based
on assumptions about the expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
expected credit loss estimation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in these
assumptions and estimates could materially
affect the result of the assessment and it may be
necessary to make additional impairment charge
to profit or loss.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual values, if any. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives and
residual values, if any, of the property, plant and
equipment regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values, if any,
are based on historical experience with similar
assets after taking into account the anticipated
changes on how such assets are to be deployed
in the future. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.
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4 WARDEBHS

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of automotive interior
and exterior decorative components and parts.
Further details regarding the Group’s principal

activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products is as follows:

(a)

WA
AEBFEREABTRAIEHET
BHERERBFE-FERHEAERE
BEFHNE-TFBRWE4L(b)
REE-

REIZEGRHERAGHNZHBAL
oWE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T AREF T
Revenue from contracts with EERMEREEN
customers within the scope BISFHEEREETR
of IFRS 15 BIIANZWA
Disaggregated by major products: BIEERDE .
— Sales of heavy trucks’ decorative  —3$H%E E A K EE4HF
components and parts ZER 269,196 332,448
- Sales of passenger vehicles’ —iH & SR BB AL
decorative components TR
and parts 26,580 47,107
295,776 379,555

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition
and by geographic markets is disclosed in Notes

4(b)(i) and 4(b)(iii) respectively.
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CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

The Group’s customers with which transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue are
set out below:

ZHBA
ZFAB

Customer A
Customer B

(a)

KA @)
AREBRZTZBRNERIKA
10%MERHIWT :
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
88,643 177,268
169,892 144,378

Details of concentration of credit risk rising from
the Group’s customers are set out in Note 24(a).

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by products.
In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

- Heavy trucks’ decorative components and
parts: this segment includes primarily the
research, development, manufacture and
sale of decorative components and parts to
be installed in heavy trucks.

- Passenger vehicles’ decorative components
and parts: this segment includes primarily
the research, development, manufacture
and sale of decorative components and
parts to be installed in passenger vehicles.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARERSBHRE @)

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHEZ (#)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () DEEE BEEREE

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors
the results attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
and revenue generated by those segments
and direct expenses incurred by those
segments. The measure and revenue used
for reporting segment result is gross profit.
No inter-segment sales have occurred for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020. Assistance provided by one segment
to another, including sharing of assets and
technical know-how, is not measured.

The Group’s other operating expenses,

mAEIMEEREDEZ
BoRER ZEBRS1T
HEEERUTEERE
AERDMWZEIEFEE !

WAERBRZZ2RBRZEDIE
EFHHEERZEDBELEN
BEERY PEETERSD
o 2D WBEB/UEN G
B oH E2021F K20205F12
B1HLIEZEE I #& H1I7
DEHEHEE - —E@O IS
— @D BRENHE (B
HEEEWA KRB #E)
WSS e

FEENHEMEERX (W

including other loss/income, selling and HiEE A HERX
administration expenses and finance costs, THR X R B AE) UK
and assets and liabilities are not measured BEERBEHTS AMEAD

under individual segments. Accordingly,
neither information on segment assets and
liabilities nor information concerning capital
expenditure, interest income and interest
expenses is presented.

MWeALL - EREABDIBE
EREENEN  THEAR
HMEARAZ M E WA KT
ERXNER  ARERY -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R 53R | M s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 5 B5& 5F » ¥ XN B ¥ 517T)

4

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

()

WARDEHRSE @)

(b) DEHFHRSZ (&)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) REEE BEEREE (B
(Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts HE20214F K2020F 128
with customers by the timing of revenue S1HIEFEE R ARTE
recognition, as well as information HHARPEITEHNZHWAR
regarding the Group’s reportable segments MAEERRIGEDBER
as provided to the Group’s most senior mATEEESTHER
executive management for the purposes REZERMAEBRTEZRD
of resource allocation and assessment of EER&EINUWT o
segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 is set out
below.
2021
Heavy Passenger
trucks’ vehicles’
decorative decorative
components components
and parts and parts Total
ERKH FHE
SEE T 2R 4 SEE S IR 14 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T ARETF T
Revenue recognised at 73 — B 5 25
a point in time from i =B =l
external customers 2R ZWA 269,196 26,580 295,776
Reportable segment AE2RDEEF
gross profit 67,852 2,701 70,553

174 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXISENHEERAT



Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8, £2021F 12831 H L FE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k55 & 5% B9 2 5} + ¥ U EE ¥ 51/ 77)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

WARDEHERS (@

(b) AHW|WSE (@)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () DEEE BEREE
(Continued)
2020
Heavy Passenger
trucks’ vehicles’
decorative decorative
components components
and parts and parts Total
ERith =] TR E
SEENZ B BT B 1 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARFT ARBFT
Revenue recognised at 7 & —FRFfH 24
a point in time from 2k BB
external customers BERZWA 332,448 47,107 379,555
Reportable segment AE2RDHBEF
gross profit 113,082 3,824 116,906
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R 53R | M s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 7 5% B9 & 5) » ¥ LA B ¥ 5/ )

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WAERSBHRE @)

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHFHRSZ (&)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment (i) B2 EBEm ZHIR
profit or loss
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Total reportable segment 2RO IBEFIAEEE
gross profit 70,553 116,906
Other income EHaug A 3,901 6,466
Selling and distribution HEER
expenses (9,011) (9,737)
Administrative expenses THHEX (47,128) (41,282)
Impairment losses reversed on B 5 EW RG] EE
trade and other receivables 518 31 706
Finance costs B 75 A (9,409) (9,804)
Consolidated profit IRE R AR T
before taxation 8,937 63,255
(iii) Geographic information (i) HIFEFY

The Group’s revenue is substantially
generated from the sales of automotive
interior and exterior decorative components
and parts in the PRC. The Group’s
business is substantially conducted in the
PRC. Accordingly, no segment analysis
based on geographical locations of the
customers and assets is provided.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8, £2021F 12831 H L FE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & 5 B & Sk » N B 155 7T)

OTHER INCOME 5 HfkA
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETF T
Government grants (including BT #E B (B &M 5222
amortisation of deferred income R4 SIE U s B 28 BH)
in Note 22) 2,716 2,926
Net gain on sales of medical goggles fHERFEEHBER
and scrap materials BER Z U R KB 561 3,215
Interest income A B A 357 243
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEYE - -BERRKREZ
plant and equipment (BR) /W= P58 (114) 12
Net foreign exchange gains PE 50 L 75 7% X8 381 70
3,901 6,466

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

6 FRIRATEF

PR ATREF DR BEA) UT &

BREH

(a) Finance costs (a) BAFEEZ
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Interests on bank and other loans BITREMETAE 9,309 9,647
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEFAE 100 157
9,409 9,804

No borrowing costs have been capitalised during
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB

Nil).

ARBEZT) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R 53R | M s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021 F 12831 B L FE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 7 5% B9 & 5) » ¥ LA B ¥ 5/ )

6

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 MWRaEHd @
(b) Staff costs* (b) ETIRi7*
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T AREBETFIT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHEHMER 47,662 49,725
Contributions to defined contribution 5 E £ FGER Rt EIHR
retirement plan 3,024 408
50,686 50,133

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong)
participate in the defined contribution retirement
benefit plan managed by the local government
authority, whereby the subsidiaries are required
to contribute to the scheme at a rate of 16%
of the employees’ basic salaries. Employees
of the subsidiaries are entitled to retirement
benefits, calculated based on a percentage of
the average salaries level in the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong), from the above-mentioned
retirement plan at their normal retirement age.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
subsidiaries established in the PRC have been
granted certain exemption on the contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans by the
local government authority as a result of the
COVID-19 impact for the period from February
2020 to December 2020.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

AREBRFE (FEESFB) KL
HHEBABNEEZ2IEAE K
FF 26 P9 & 2B 89 5 E Mt 7R K & A
R ZEWB AR BEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Staff costs* (Continued)

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”) 30,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no further material obligation for
payment of other retirement benefits beyond the

above contributions.

Other items

B #3 A i F (@)

(b) B IR (@)
AEEBRBEEBEREIMEATB S
HENAERESBREREKE
BZEERIAHMEATBEE
(TafEEstE)) -mBEETE H
BUETXAEETERRBRAKE
goRERBEEHE BERERE
EXBERESHEBEWAZS%HE
FEER S AEBKAZ LR
#30,0008 7T (MBmw)) o st8 2
HAENFERE

Br Lt RS AN & B I ST AT
HtBRAEBANHEMEREE-

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARMEFIT
Amortisation® iy 192 65
Depreciation charge* (Note 11) EZ H (MFsE11)
— owned property, plant and —BEME-BEX
equipment B1E 25,472 17,207
- right-of-use assets —fFREEE 775 775
26,439 18,047
Auditors’ remuneration 1Z B EMBN &
— audit service —FEHERY 1,800 1,800
Research and development costs Bt % BY 4 20,139 18,162
Cost of inventories* (Note 13(b)) FEmA" (BEE13(b)) 225,223 262,649

s Cost of inventories includes RMB46,749,000
(2020: RMB45,475,000) relating to staff costs, and
depreciation and amortisation expenses, which
amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in Note
6(b) for each of these types of expenses.

E FERABEEREIMA ITE
R BRI Z B9 AR 1546,749,00070
(2020% : AR #45,475,0007T) °
ERSETHALNBITREZR
BHAESIERME6Db)Z &SRB
B o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B4 75 2R R M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8, £2021F12831HIEEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 7 5% B9 & 5) » ¥ LA B ¥ 5/ )

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 #KZAHEZXRANFRER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) SHETRANKIEE
profit or loss represents:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Current taxation (Note 21(a)): BNHEAFRIE (MizE21(a)) -
Provision for the year ___________Fm#fE 1916 12,254
Deferred taxation (Note 21(b)): IEERIE (MisE21(b)) -
- Origination and reversal of —ENEBNELER
temporary differences 5[] (723) 127
— Effect on deferred tax balances —B1B1HERREEH)
at 1 January resulting from HIRERRERZEN
a change in tax rate 2 (M sE(iv) ~ 21(b))
(Notes (iv) and 21(b)) 415 -
i _________808) 127__
1,608 12,381

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8, £2021F 12831 H L FE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k55 & 5% B9 2 5} + ¥ U EE ¥ 51/ 77)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 #8BEZXRANFRER @
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between actual tax expense (b) REAREABZERRIERZH

and accounting profit at applicable tax rates: FiiEM ZHER -
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AEEFT
Profit before taxation B8 Bl & A 8,937 63,255
Expected tax on profit RERNREREERE
before taxation, calculated at BMZRESHEZ
the rates applicable to profits FRMATREF 2 FEHA
in the jurisdictions concerned FRIE (M 5E() ~ (i) Bz (iii))
(Notes (i), (i) and (iii)) 2,592 16,176
Tax effect of non-deductible items AHNRIERZRIE
T 415 512
Tax effect on preferential tax rate BERXMELE
(Notes (iv) and (v)) (B EE(Gv) ~ (V) 493 (4,697)
Tax effect on bonus deduction of HEREE R A Z 05K
research and development ZHRIBERE
costs (Note (vi) (B 2% (vi)) (4,148) (2,156)
Tax effect of unused tax losses R RMEDIRIEFTR
not recognised BEENTIRNGEEDN
T 491 -
Withholding tax on distributed DERFNRNEE
earnings 1,350 -
Effect on deferred tax balances at B1B1HERREEH)
1 January resulting from a change HIRERERRERN
in tax rate (Notes (iv) and 21(b)) & (MF5E(v) > 21(b)) 415 -
Others Hth - 2,546
Actual tax expense ERRIEMX 1,608 12,381

ANNUAL REPORT £k 2021



182

Notes to the Financial Statements

R 53R | M s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8 E2021F12H331H L FE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 7 5% B9 & 5) » ¥ LA B ¥ 5/ )
FABEERANFRER @

7

INCOME TAX

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Reconciliation between actual tax expense
and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(Continued)
Notes:

(b)

(i)

(il

(iv)

(vi)

The Company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and the subsidiary of the Group incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) are not
subject to any income tax pursuant to the rules
and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

The subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Hong
Kong is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
of 16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: 16.5%). The entity did not have assessable
profits which is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB Nil).

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) are subject to PRC
Corporate Income Tax rate at 25% for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 25%).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC obtained approvals from the tax bureaux
in 2021 that they are entitled to tax benefits
applicable to entities under the Third Phase of the
Western Region Development Plan of the PRC,
and enjoy a preferential PRC Corporate Income
Tax rate of 15% for the calendar years from 2021
to 2030.

The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law allows
enterprises to apply for certificate of “High and
New Technology Enterprise” (“HNTE”) which
entitles the qualified companies to a preferential
income tax rate of 15%, subject to fulfilment of
the recognition criteria. Xi’an Tianrui Automotive
Interiors Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Tianrui”), a subsidiary
of the Group, is qualified as a HNTE and the
qualification is valid for three years from 2019 to
2021.

According to the relevant tax rules in the PRC,
qualified research and development costs, are
allowed for bonus deduction for income tax
purpose, i.e. an additional 100% (2020: 75%) of
such expenses could be deemed as deductible
expenses.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

7

(b)

REBREAEZERRERSZ A
gstEAZHAR (@

T

(i)

(ii

(i)

(vi)

THEFEFMMIZ AR KA
EERNEBRZAE T RBEYE
) sEMAIIZ B AR BERE
H & B B R B9ER KRB
ERFFHR

HE2021F12831BLEEE &
EEREBFMAILZBAR
BE16.5% 2 MEMMBE AR BR
(20204F : 16.5%) °c B E20214F
1283 1HILEE 2SN DMEE
E BT BFERNERRE
(2020%F : ARHEZ L) ©

B E2021F12831H L FE > A&
BN PR (REEEE) IS
NE)BIE25% Z RGP
Fri5782 (20204 : 25%) °

AEBETFEFEMILZHE AR
R2021FREFEEETEREN
G EREZZFEANPEAEIEKA
HEEE R T2 ER AN
PR W 2021 FE E2030FEBFE
ER15% 2 BERBEEEMERR

%o

(PEITCEFRERE) ASFRER
HlemEmeE (it
¥E)F2 MESEERTPETR
SEEFREREI5% AT S
DIZE-AER—HHNBARAR
KIHAEANMERRARE (FAZX
M) NESHMEMEEER  BA
FIERBE20190FEE2021FE A=
FEHR -

RIFPEBRMBRUIREE &8
A Bl BEFT S B 0 Z st iK
0> BN ERZB9EEIM00% (2020
£ 175%) A RIERIRINREL o



DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

8 EEM=

BEBEEBATMKRAEII(NERAF
(KBEFMNZEH) RAB2HMWE

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information WEEHMUOT .
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2021
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in-kind bonuses contributions Total
fig
BHR Rkt
ik ENEH RiEEL i @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AEETT AEETT AEETT AEETFT AEETT
Executive directors gz
Mr Hou Jianli BENLE 180 - 89 51 320
Ms Hou Yuxi ERELL 180 - 86 11 21
Independent non-executive directors B FHITES
Mr Zhu Honggiang PNILy it 80 - - - 80
Mr Zhou Genshu BRELE 80 - - - 80
Mr Chen Geng BhLE 80 - - - 80
600 - 175 62 837
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B4 75 2R R M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8, £2021F12831HIEEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 7 5% B9 & 5) » ¥ LA B ¥ 5/ )

8 EEME @

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

2020
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in-kind bonuses  contributions Total
e
BHR BirstE
2k BMRA BT 3 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT AEETT AREFT AEETT ANEEFT
Executive directors HTEs
Mr Hou Jianli ERALE 180 - 40 18 238
Ms Chen Bierui BRI
(resigned on 12 June 2020} (202065 12HE) 75 - 2 - 77
Mr Zhao Shijie BUELE
(resigned on 28 December 2020) (20205128280 BHT) 150 - 5 16 171
Ms Hou Yuxi EREYL
(appointed on 12 June 2020) (202065120 %) 105 - 17 2 224
Independent non-executive directors B FHITES
Mr Zhu Honggiang PNIE:- b 80 - - - 80
Mr Zhou Genshu BRERE 80 - - - 80
Mr Shin Yick Fabian iy
(resigned on 15 September 2020) (2020 9B 15HEHE) 53 - - - 53
Mr Chen Geng BHLE
(appointed on 15 September 2020) (2020598 15H ) 23 = = = 23
746 - 164 36 946

184  CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD FEIXI#SENHARAT



Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8, £2021F 12831 H L FE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & 5 B & Sk » N B 155 7T)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2020: three) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments

in respect of the other three (2020: two) individuals

are as follows:

RE#MAL
ExEeEFALTRINAMB (2020
FZR)ESF HMW=FBHRERN
MeaEs - REBELHBHE  HeF =%
(20204 : M%) AL B # BN 48 88 40
B

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T AREFT

Salaries and other emoluments e REMB 2 953 397
Retirement scheme contributions BOKETE =R 112 25
1,065 422

The emoluments of the individuals who are not
directors and who are amongst the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are within the following band:

THT (T8 &
1,000,000 7t

Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) Nil to
HK$1,000,000

FEBRLLRSHFALTPRLEIIFESEH
ALBFMARUTEERN !

2021 2020
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A¥ AE

3 2
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B4 75 2R R M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8, £2021F12831HIEEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 7 5% B9 & 5) » ¥ LA B ¥ 5/ )

BREF

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share
The basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2021 is calculated based on
the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB7,329,000 (2020:
RMB50,874,000) and the weighted average of
2,000,000,000 (2020: 2,000,000,000) ordinary
shares.

The calculation of the weighted average number
of ordinary shares are as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1218217 ER

10

(a)

SERELREA
HE2021F12B31BLEEER
BEXBMNIRERAABDIEBERESR
REEMEEFA ARKT?,329,000
JC(2020%F : AR %50,874,000
o) REBETEBERNME TS
#(2,000,000,0008% (20204 :
2,000,000,000)8%) st EEH o

EEROMEFHHFEDOT

2021 2020

2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000

Weighted average number of ordinary 128318 & &N

shares at 31 December S

2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000

(b) Diluted earnings per share
There were no dilutive potential shares
outstanding during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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11

(a)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME-BERRE
Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BEEEHIE
Land-use-right Motor vehicles
Plant and leased for ~ Machinery and and other ~ Construction in
buildings 0Wn Use equipment Moulds equipment progress Total
RN
FRRET  tHERE  BERRE BE MEREMZRE TEIR EE)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTn  AREBfn  ABEBTn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn

Cost; k.
At 1 January 2020 R200E1E1R 67,807 9,486 2,821 54,235 1,622 2413 184,434
Additions HE - - 11,202 30,544 2,99 14,269 59,097
Transfer inffout) g)/ (&) 1,88 s s s s (1884 S
Disposals tE - - (53) = (157) = (695)
At 31 December 2020 120206128318 69,741 9,486 53,578 84,779 10,497 14,798 242,836
Accumulated depreciation: FithE:
At January 2020 2000151 8310 (20§ (14,934 7.0 (37%9) - (55,451)
Crarge fr the yeer ERgH ) %) 14369 0950 (1,199 - (1798
Written back on disposals HERER - - 409 - 110 - 519
At 31 December 2020 R00E81E (11,576) (412 (18,859) (97,154 (4884) - 1914
Carrying amount: KR
At 31 December 2020 12020128318 58,168 9,074 34,687 47,625 5,573 14,798 169,922
Cost: k.
At 1 January 2021 lakarzl 69,741 9,486 53,575 84,779 10,457 14,798 242,836
Additions HE 190 - 8,722 44,306 1,084 7,595 61,897
Transfer in{out] g)/ (&) 2,461 - 8,029 4312 917 (15,779) -
Disposals i3 - - (140) (1,706) (871) - (2723)
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 12,392 9,486 10,186 131,751 11,581 6,614 302,010
Accumulated depreciation: gitHE:
At 1 Janvary 2001 R0 (11,576 Wy esE N (4584 - (12914
Crarge fr the year ERSH (2299 (206) 65 (1625 (1515) - (26,247
Written back on disposals HERER - - 9 1,285 9 - 2,072
At 31 December 2021 R01E1RYE (13874) (618) (24,765) (52,152) (5,680) - (67,089)
Canying amount; Bad:
At 31 December 2021 12021128318 58,518 8,868 45,421 79,599 5,901 6,614 204,921

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8, £2021F 12831 H L FE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k55 & 5% B9 2 5} + ¥ U EE ¥ 51/ 77)
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R 53R | M s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8 E2021F12H331H L FE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 7 5% B9 & 5) » ¥ LA B ¥ 5/ )

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 11 Y2 -BERHRE @

(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FERHEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use REMEBEERNE D Z2EFERESE
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: ERBDFEITUOT :
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ARBT T

Land-use-right leased for own use FEIEE Bt AR 8,868 9,074
Plant and buildings B T 1,328 1,897
10,196 10,971
The analysis of expense items in relation to BREEERNEEEEANEX
leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BEESWWOT :
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Depreciation charge of HIEMEERRE D
right-of-use assets by class of NEREEEINE
underlying asset: e
Land-use-right leased for own use FREBR By - AR 206 206
Plant and buildings B R iEF 569 569
775 775
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) HE&EF R
(FFzE6(a)) 100 157
Expense relating to short-term leases fEHiHE R EME S
and other leases RN X 16 42
Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities EMEEaEMNESHES T
are set out in Note 20. B E2REME200
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12

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B &t B5& S » ¥ N B 651 T)

12 KRB RARNKE
UTERBEETEFEFTERBXE B
ENEENNBRARFB - FRIESER
B ENRODENREER-

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Name of subsidiaries
WEBARAHE

Baoji Qinrui Automotive
Interiors Co., Ltd.

BRRBRERBERAT

Xi'an Tianrui Automotive
Interiors Co., Ltd.
BEREAERGEERAT"

Baoji Ruitong Automotive
Interiors Co., Ltd.

ERRBRERBERAT

Xi'an Chuangzhiyun
Technology Co., Ltd.

AZAZENRARAT

Baoji Chengderuitai Supply
Co., Ltd.

BRARERUREERAT
Ryford Holding Limited™
Ryford Holding Limited™
Tianrui International

Holdings Limited™
AnERERERAT

Percentage of ownership interest

FIEREE A
Place and date of Particulars of The Group’s
establishment/ registered/issued and  effective Held by the Held by a
incorporation/operation paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activities
s,/ i/ BEfR 558 £08 KWELE
REERAS HRERHE BRER KA BE IELH
The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100% Manufacture and sale of automotive
24 July 2019 interior and exterior decorative
components and parts
e AR 20,000,007 100% - 100% AEAMEHEDHHERHE
2019578248
The PRC RMB100,000,000 100% - 100% Manufacture and sale of automotive
22 May 2009 interior and exterior decorative
components and parts
e AE%100,000,0007 100% - 100% AEAMEHERHHERHE
2009%58228
The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100% Manufacture and sale of automotive
24 September 2020 interior and exterior decorative
components and parts
e AR 20,000,007 100% - 100% AEAMEHERHHERHE
202059824
The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - 100% The network and information security
18 June 2021 software development and Information
system integration services
e AR 1,000,000 100% - 100% PEEEERD BABRES
2021568 18H
The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - 100% General transportation services
23 Jung 2021
HE AR %1,000,0007 100% - 100% —RERRS
202156234
The BVI United States Dollars 100% 100% - Investment holding
5 May 2017 (USD") 100, 100
shares of USD 1 each
ZBRUEE ZTI00RERAE 100% 100% - REEZR
201785850 Sl
Hong Kong 1,000 shares 100% - 100% Investment holding
13 June 2017
&% 1,000 & {9 100% - 100% %EER
2017E6A13H
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12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 EAM]E NEIRE (@)
The English translation of the name is for identification EREAFLBAPN  EXE(EEHH
only. The official name of the entity is in Chinese. This E'J ZERBRPEEZMAIEBEERE-
entity is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
in the PRC.
**  These companies are limited liability companies * RELADATEPEIRNEFMAIINER
incorporated outside of the PRC. NS
13 INVENTORIES 13 #&8
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) EZEHMBERRRTINEEGREUT
financial position comprise: £I8 .
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Raw materials and consumables FEM R % 5 5 m 12,908 13,930
Work in progress T8 5 7,966 9,374
Finished goods X &R 39,350 55,162
60,224 78,466
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BEEZPABHEILFAGEERERN
recognised as an expense and included in the FESEAWWT :
consolidated statement of profit or loss is as
follows:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Carrying amount of inventories sold B HEEFEMNREE 225,223 262,649
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14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 14 BEEBRWNFEREKEE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B 5 FEU IS (R E 18 H#) 73,388 131,660
Bills receivables FE IS ZE 4% 92,742 123,302
166,130 254,962

All of the trade and bills receivables, net of loss
allowance for doubtful debts (if any), are expected to
be recovered within one year.

(@) Ageing analysis
At the end of reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on
the invoice date (or date of revenue recognition,
if earlier) and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

PREEZ BB RERERER (KR
BREEE (MA)) Bt —EARWRE -

(a) BRECDH
RBEMRENEFEZLEN (FHWA
BRAH (HRE)) RNKBEERE
BB 5 R IE & B W R AR
BofmT

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Less than 3 months 38 B LA 126,820 216,239
3 to 6 months 3@ B E6E R 23,556 36,338
6 to 12 months 6B R ZE121@ 8 11,516 2,385
more than 1 year 1FE U E 4,238 =

166,130 254,962

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables
are set out in Note 24(a).

ERAEEFEERRKREZ B
RERBRRBEELENEERR
WE—-DHBHENMEE24(a) 0
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BSERKARIERERERE @

14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Transfer of financial assets

The Group receives short-term bank acceptance
notes from its customers as a method of
settlement of goods sold. These notes entitle
the Group to receive the full face values from
the issuing banks upon the maturities of these
notes, which generally range from 3 to 6 months
from the dates of issuance.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had
discounted certain of the bank acceptance notes
and endorsed certain of the bank acceptance
notes to its suppliers and other creditors for
settlement of the Group’s trade and other
payables on a full recourse basis. Upon the
above discounting or endorsement, the Group
has derecognised the bills receivables in their
entirety. These derecognised bank acceptance
notes have maturity dates of less than six
months from the end of the reporting period.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of these
notes and has discharged its obligation of the
payables to its suppliers and other creditors.
The Group assessed that the discounted and
endorsed bank acceptance notes were issued
by highly-rated issuing banks, the credit risks
were relatively insignificant and the Group
was not exposed to the relative interest risk.
At 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum
exposure to loss and undiscounted cash outflow
should the issuing banks fail to settle the bills
on maturity dates amounted to RMB47,093,000
(2020: RMB29,932,000).

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD AEIXIHAEANE 4B RAT

14

(b)

HETmMEE
AEBBHZT R WEERIET A
TEEFFSEERRN —EEE
BE-RERBERTAEEEF
URZEREIHEKRIAZIR
THE2EEE 2SR E KA
MEHBESHHAIELE E6E
H o

R2021FE12B31H  xEBRKE
FTHROAREZET TR I
mMEMEEREMEEASESSE
FTHROTARTEZ URTE2ER
BEEEEAERANE ZENR
BRhEMEBEMRIE - FU LR
BRI BER AEEBEE2ITR
ERABERERE ZEEWK L
BMEBENETAREZMNIHHA
REWPREFARBAEA o AR
BEERA LAEEACHEBEZE
EENFEENEBAIDER M
B3k a B B 1T HHER KAt
BERANNREE e KEBTE
EMREEREHERTEAREEZH
B ANBEERTET EER
Sl o N =S v ST
BEFI = @ [ o 732021 F12 831
H>WRERTHIEHKRES
BEERCAAEENRABLR
AERBERAHERBRIEEAS A
E#47,093,0005T (20204 : A
R #29,932,0007T) °
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15 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 FAEfTRRIE R HthEWKRIE
(a) Prepayments for acquisitions of property, (a) BEVE -BRERREWFEMCTIE
plant and equipment
The amount at 31 December 2021 represents R2021F12B31HMW K IBEIE K&
prepayments for the Group’s contracted UGN EEEAEREBENTE
procurement of moulds and machinery. IRRIE ©
(b) Prepayments and other receivables (b) FE(FHRIEREMEE WIS
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Advances to staff EI=NEEN 1,002 852
Others Hth 832 1,253
Financial assets measured at BEBIER A ED
__amortised cost _____ ®mWEE 1834 . 2,105
Prepaid income tax TR P 2,314 =
Prepayments for purchase of REREMENTENRIE
raw materials 22,677 8,796
Other miscellaneous prepayments HMBIBENR 2,536 1,027
Value-added tax to be deducted FIRNIEER 1,205 965
28,732 10,788
30,566 12,893
All of the above prepayments and other B E2021F12831H > Lt B
receivables as at 31 December 2021 are BT I K H fih FE WL R IB FE 5 R
expected to be recovered or recognised as —FRWE -EREREZTRE
expenses within one year. BERED-
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16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16 $R{ITERFHEIRESURHEHMBREES RS

CASH FLOW INFORMATION B
(a) Cash at bank and on hand comprise: (a) BITKFEHREEE:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT AEBFT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERE 62,538 56,610
Restricted bank deposits (Note (i) ZRREIIRIT IR (B k() 38,312 40,874
Cash at bank and on hand in the AR e MBI RERE
consolidated statement of ROTRFERE
financial position 100,850 97,484
Less: restricted bank deposits B ZBREIRITER
(Note () (BHEE()) (38,312) (40,874)
Cash and cash equivalents in the REEaRERERN
consolidated cash flow statement BERIBEEEY 62,538 56,610
The Group’s operation in the PRC (excluding FEBEBRARE (FEBKRI) KEW
Hong Kong) conducted its business in RMB. E¥EBUARBRERE ARBWIE
RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the JEHRRBREE FEEEHF
remittance of funds out of the PRC (excluding (F ARSI B3 B BN IR
Hong Kong) is subject to the exchange 4 BE BR 1 ©

restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Note: PEEE -
() At the end of the reporting period, bank deposits (i) REBRERRBITERRIBIRES R
are pledged as guarantees for bank acceptance EBRBTZRTAREZNIER

bills issued by the Group.
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16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021F 12831 H L FEE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & 5 B & Sk » N B 155 7T)

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising
from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
assets and liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows
from financing activities.

B (4

16 ﬁEﬁ&?EEIEELX&EMfEE}ﬁE

(b) nﬂﬁ%%éiﬂ’]ﬁé&%ﬁﬂ’] £ Ef

TERFLFEEREZIMFTE
ERBENES GFFEERIF
REB8H -MEZHAETERD
RERBEARKRERERN K
EENGERENERTDES
METHRESREAENER

Liabilities
B8R
Bank and Dividend Interest Lease
other loans payables payable liabilities Total
FR
&R FEfSARA Ef#E HE&R s
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  ARETRE ARETR ARETRE ARETR
(Note17) (Note20)
(Mzk17) (Ki3k20)
Afdanary 2021 ROAFAE o6 ______- T S sl 96128
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEREHEEE
Proceeds from bank and other loans BIREMERFENE 152,305 - - - 152,305
Repayment of bank and other loans BERTRAMER (114,487) - - - (114,487)
Capital element of lease rentals paid HEEBEREENE - - - (1,234) (1,234)
Interest element of lease rentals paid HESERERENE - - - (100) (100)
Interest paid BFIE - - (9,309) - (9,309)
Dividends paid BARE - (10,024) - - (10,024)
Totelchanges fiom fnencing cash fows__ BEREHELERE g8 (fogey (9309 (1834 17161
Other changes: s,
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) BHmA (36() - - 9,309 100 9,409
Dividends declared during the year ERERNEE (H323(0)
(Note 23(c)) - 10,024 - - 10,024
Totlother changes ______RMxmE®E S 1004 ____¢ o9 _____ W __ 19438
At 31 December 2021 120215125318 133,834 - - 878 134,712
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16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16 H{TRFHERESUREMEESHRE
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) = 2NE )

(b) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising (b) RMEITBHEENEEREENED
from financing activities (Continued)

Liabilities
£l

Included in

accrued

expenses

Bank and and other Interest Lease
other loans payables payable liabilities Total
BTk

BEER Fet Al FEfHIS HESR st

RVBIOOO ~ RMBO00  RMBIOO0  RMB'000  RMB000
AERTR  ARBTR  ARETr  ARBTR  ARETR

(Note17) (Note19) (Note20)
(Brsx17) (Fr319) (320
Atfdanay200  RONFAE 8086 ____ L SR 200 ___ 9,117 _
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BERSHELE
Proceeds from bank and other loans BITREMERFMETE 200,069 - - - 200,069
Repayment of bank and other loans RERTREMES (182,139) - - - (182,139)
Capital element of lease rentals paid HEEREREENE - - - 878) 878)
Interest element of lease rentals paid HEaENEEETE = = S (157) (157)
Interest paid BRFE - - (9,647) 5 (9,647)
Dividends paid BIRE S (10,825) S S (10,825)
Totel changes fiom fnencing cash fows_ BEREHELERE %0 ___ (oges) ____@oa ___ (108 ____BSTT_
Other changes: s
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) BB A (56(a)) - - 9,647 157 9,804
Dividends declared during the year ENERMEE (HE23(c))

(Note 23(c) - 10,825 - - 10,825
Other changes* Aftr S (14,701) S S (14,701)
Toelotherchanges _________ Rfmu®E L R ST ____ S ____ S8 _
At 31 December 2020 120204128318 9,016 - - 2112 98,128
* The amounts represented the payable in relation * =HEERMIREMNENRIE B

to the bills discounting offset by bills receivables FENEREEMARREZ ([T,

on maturity rather than by cash.
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16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16 #{TRFHERESUREMREESHRE

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) = NC )
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) ERMAERES MU
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T AEBFT
Within operating cash flows REBREREN
— Lease rentals paid relating to short- —EAfEHAFAE R EXERESE
term leases and leases of low- ERERFMANENHAE
value-assets e 16 42
17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS 17 RITRHEMER
(a) The Group’s short-term bank and other loans (a) xEETHBITREMEREE
comprise:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AREF T
Bank loans: IRITER
- Secured by trade and bills —HAEEESEW
receivables of the Group TIE K e E
(Note 17(d)) I (MFEE17(d) 25,090 16,585
— Secured by property, plant and —HAREEYE
equipment of the Group [ 5 e 5% 8 36 4
(Note 17(d)) (FFsx17(d)) 20,000 20,000
- Secured by trade and bills —HAEEESEW
receivables and property, TIE K FE W 3~
plant and equipment of the Group ME BB RRE
(Note 17(d)) I (MFEE17(d) - 3,500
- Guaranteed by a third party —F=HER - 5,000
- Unsecured and unguaranteed —EHEX 40,000 33,000
85,090 78,085
Add: current portion of long-term il : REFIRIT R EM
bank and other loans ERWEIERER
(Note 17(b)) (FFzE17(b)) 33,512 10,582
118,602 88,667
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17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued) 17 RITRHEMER
(b) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans (b) *EERHARITREMERESE :
comprise:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Other loans: HMER !
- Secured by property, plant and —HAEEYE-
equipment of the Group [ 5 e 5% 4 4
(Note 17(d)) (fftzE17(d)) 48,744 17,931
48,744 17,931
Less: current portion of long-term B REIRIT R EAM
bank and other loans ERWBIEAE
(Note 17(a)) (FF5E17(a)) (33,512) (10,582)
15,232 7,349
(¢) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans (c) ~5EEEEERARTREMER
are repayable as follows: mF
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT AEBFT
Within 1 year or on demand 1E AR E K 33,512 10,582
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FEBER2ER 15,232 6,899
After 2 years but within 5 years 2EFEBEIRFERN - 450

48,744 17,931
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17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans

17 $R1T
(d)

REMER (@)
AEBRMNETHETREMERAD

are secured by the following assets of the EEMNUTEEMEER
Group:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
Carrying value of secured assets: EREENKREE
Property, plant and equipment Y R E B sk B 112,144 84,576
Trade and bills receivables B3 EWHRIB X
FE U =15 25,090 30,625
137,234 115,201

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are
subject to the fulfilment of covenants commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants, the loans would become repayable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details
of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in Note 24(b). At 31 December 2021,
none of the covenants relating to the bank and
other loans had been breached (2020: None).

18 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

(e)

AEBETROAEMEREE
ERHATMEENRNBELHESE
B ILNRFE - MAERERZ
FOAZEERRBRAALEKRE
B AEBTHERAEBTZE
LENBER- BEHEEAEERRBE
TRAREBZE—THEBRNK
524(b)° 72021 E 128318 » #
BENBRBTRAEAMERNZ
# (20204 : £) o

18 BEFRNRERENRE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T AEBFT

Trade payables B BN 64,287 141,640
Bills payable ENES 67,575 81,748
131,862 223,388

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

FTEESBAIMEREBENRERRN
—FAREENRBEREE-
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18 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued) 18 BESRMNREREMREE @
At the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis of PREPRENEEZEDHNEZEN
trade and bills payables, based on the invoice date, is RERENEENRE2TUT !
as follows:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ARBT T

Less than 3 months 3ME B UA 59,433 117,293
3 to 6 months 31E B =61@ 2 54,784 99,238
6 to 12 months 618 8 =128 3 15,670 6,169
Over 1 year 1EM E 1,975 688

131,862 223,388

19 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 it X RHME(HIE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTE ARBTT

Payables for staff related costs BT HEBZAE[IE 1,885 2,638
Payables for acquisitions of property, BEYWE -BEX

plant and equipment R E A 26,581 17,249
Payables for other taxes HMMMRIBENRIE 2,498 5,008
Deposits fRe8 & 600 717
Others Hth 4,464 3,372

36,028 28,984

All of the accrued expenses and other payables FrERsTHEIREMEMREREGTR
are expected to be settled within one year or are —FRNEEAEEREER

repayable on demand.
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20 HE&RE

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of
the current and previous reporting periods to IFRS 16:

AEBRHEEERTIREPRRER
BREABRARRBEZEBRRY R
HEANF16KAHMNRFSNEHA
LI

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥EF T AREFT

Within 1 year 1ER 820 1,064

After 1 year but within 2 years 1EBER2ER 58 989

After 2 years but within 5 years 2EBERIER - 59
e _____ 8 1,048 _

878 2,112

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Movements of current taxation in the
consolidated statement of financial position

are set out below:

REZEMBRRAROFAER

(a) MHEEMBRARNEAREELS
;IWMTF

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT AEBFT

At the beginning of the year REA) 3,214 3,595

Provision for the year (Note 7(a)) FNEE MEE7@) 1,916 12,254

Income tax paid BEfIFTE (7,371) (12,635)
Prepaid income tax reclassified to ENMEREDESR

prepayments SEENES O] 2,314 =

At the end of the year REXR 73 3,214
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21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets recognised:
The components of deferred tax assets
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the movements during the
year are as follows:

REaMBRARNAER @

(b) BIEREEEREMT :
FEEEAHMERRENRS
BYMRIE IR B AR AL E D R B B
mF

Government
grants and
subsequent  Credit loss Impact of
amortisation allowance Accruals IFRS 16 Tax losses Total
ER 5
REEL
B #HER REFR F163%
Hipls fRiE &R iof23 RIEHH At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETR AREFR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETx
At 1 January 2020 202051518 542 751 456 131 - 1,880
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated ~ (BiABERNR) /
statement of profit or loss (Note 7(a)) SAGEBRRE () (34) (306) 32 181 S (127)
At 31 December 2020 and #2020512831A %
1 January 2021 20211518 508 445 488 312 - 1,753
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated ~ (BABERNB) /
statement of profit or loss (Note 7(a)) SAGEBRRE (1) 128 (5) (232) (75) 907 723
Effect on deferred tax balances resulting  MEEE SRR ELHRN
from a change in tax rate (Note 7(a)) 2 (W) (190) (100) - (125) - (415)
At 31 December 2021 202141273318 446 340 256 112 907 2,061
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 8, £2021F 12831 H L FE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & 5 B & Sk » N B 155 7T)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Taxable temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the subsidiaries of the
Group established in the PRC amounted to
RMB139,990,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB156,337,000), where deferred tax liabilities
in respect of the PRC Withholding Tax that would
be payable on the distributions of these profits,
have not been recognised as the Company
controls the dividend policy of the subsidiaries
and it has been determined that it is probable
that such profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

DEFERRED INCOME

21 RRGMBRRARNMAER (@

(c) HMARBIBHELERIBEER
R2021F12A31HAERTREH
RIIMNKBARMNKRDIRKENE
MNERREREEEAARE
139,990,0007T (2020F : AR
156,337,0007t) " EFBmM=ZSE
mADIRKBTRERBEBONRERN
FEIERBEEESAER BEER
KA EH KB AB RN REBE
BEEREZEHANTRERER
HERE DK

22 IRIEU A

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

At the beginning of the year JiNE==2]] 2,122 2,347
Additions B 1,090
Credited to the consolidated PN =R EaEd

statement of profit or loss (243) (225)
At the end of the year REXR 2,969 2,122

Deferred income represents government grants
received in connection with the construction of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. The grants
are being amortised over the useful lives of the related
assets. Amortisation of deferred income is included in
“other income” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

BEEWAENEZAERNE -KE K
BRENE BT B BN BRI B E
BRI EREHREE - EEWARERN
mEBmANTHMBEA IR AR
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5 5 & 5% 85 & 5F

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(@) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Details of the changes of the Company’s
individual components of equity between the

s BN R ZT)

23 BEFX-fEBERRE
(a) HEBINES
FEBRGAEGSHBONEN A
FREHFNHREN GG S
RN

EARBERDBONRENEER
BREFHFHEHRIWOT :

beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Share Exchange retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
N  (mER)/ N
k& iR ERE REEH L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note23(b))  (Note23(a]())  (Note23(d)(iv])
(&230)  (Wsk2s()i)  (WEE2s(al(v)
At 1 January 2020 1*2020£181A 17,522 17,703 6,155 (3,089) 138,311
Changes in equity for the year ~ EF2020%12B31A L
ended 31 December 2020: FERGED.
Loss for the year EnER - - - (2,083 (2,089)
Other comprehensive ERAMEARA
income for the year S S (3,973) S (3,973)
Totel comprenenshve ncome_____ FMEEBMA R QU 1/ IO 21 I (6.056)_
Final dividends declared ERERLES T
and paid (Note 23(c) (Hr3k23(c) - (10,825) - - (10,825)
- (10,825) - - (10,825)
At 31 December 2020 and 120205128318 &
1 January 2021 2021£181A 17,622 106,878 2,182 (5,152) 121,430
Changes in equity for the year ~ EF2021£12B31A L
ended 31 December 2021: EERGED.
Profit for the year KERE - - - 8,196 8,196
Other comprehensive ERAMEARA
income for the year - - (1,708) - (1,708)
o comprehenstie noome | FARERMA SR ol L. 196 6488 _
Final dividends declared BRIXNNESRE
and paid (Note 23(c) (Hr3k23(c) - (10,024) - - (10,024)
_______________________________________ O L N S o
Balance at 31 December 2021 1*2021512A31A 17,522 96,854 474 3,044 117,894

204 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD FREIXESEREHEIRAT



Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8, £2021F 12831 H L FE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k55 & 5% B9 2 5} + ¥ U EE ¥ 51/ 77)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 BA--#EKRREE @

(Continued)
(b) Share capital (b) BZ
2021 2020
No. of No. of
shares shares
Kin#E R#E
'000 RMB’000 '000 RMB’000
T ARETR T AREFT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SREEIET
HK$0.01 each MEBEK 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
2021 2020
No. of No. of
Shares RMB’000 Shares RMB’000

Ordinary shares, issued and fully  BEIRETHEER

paid:
At 1 January P1E1H
At 31 December #12A318

Rh#E AEBFR

2,000,000,000 17,522
2,000,000,000 17,522

ki #E ARBT

2,000,000,000 17,522
2,000,000,000 17,522
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EBEX - -#EHREE @

(Continued)
(c) Dividends (c)
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the year

Final dividend proposed after RSB EZEERT
the end of the reporting period KRESKRIZERE
of HK$NIl per ordinary share BT (20204
(2020: HK$0.6 cents per S E@R0.6781)
ordinary share)

[ 3=)
() FEAEZELDE# KRR
®rE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AERBT T

= 10,024

= 10,024

The final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the
previous financial year, approved and
paid/payable during the year

Final dividend in respect of RERHIEL ST,
the previous financial year, FERH E—BEE
approved and paid/payable FERE
during the year

RESHAREZNRBARERN
BEMAEARERIRER

(i) FRERHBEILSETEIEF
BRE—HREEEZEMEIR

AEmRREIRE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

10,024 10,825
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EBEX -#HEHREE @

(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands as
amended, consolidated or supplemented
from time to time.

Other reserve

The other reserve at 1 January 2017
represented the paid-in capital of a PRC
subsidiary of the Group, namely Xi’an
Tianrui.

In 2017, Xi’an Tianrui reduced its paid-
up in capital from RMB100,000,000 to
RMB50,000,000. The reduction of capital
was used to set-off the amounts due from
the controlling shareholders.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation completed
on 14 November 2017, the Company
became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group
and accordingly, the paid-in capital of
the PRC subsidiary of the Group was
eliminated against the consideration of
RMB67,500,000 when preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws
and regulations, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to
transfer 10% of its net profit each year
to the statutory reserve until the reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distributions to equity holders.
This reserve can be utilised in setting off
accumulated losses or increase capital
of the subsidiary and is non-distributable
other than in liquidation.

(d) FEENEEREN

()

(i)

(iii)

BRi7EE
BRNEBRZEBIETE
BT GEUBTHNESE
EBRTE (BB RE-

Bt
R2017F1B1BENHEMERE
EAEE-—RTEKNE QS
(ML X NERRKRE -

R2017HF ALZXRINE R
&A@ AR®100,000,000
THEARE®S50,000,000
Lo R AR D BRI
& U R RS BR BR FR 1B o

BIER2017F11B14H R
A ELM KAB KA KNE
EREBETSABZERR
B A AEE A E K E
NENEBEABEEIRELK
EVFREFEABLALEA
R #67,500,0007T i #Y o

AT
REBEBRPBERERRER
A& B E R I BY B A
BABERNEZEREEEH
MAIM10% BEEHEED
EMEARE0% M & H
BRARAERFEADIK
AIfEH - ™ AR IEE
MEARDNRSEENIEE
BRBEEIINFETDIKC
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EBEX - -#EHREE @
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
the companies comprising the Group into
the Group’s presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(s).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(d)

(e)

FRENEEREN @

(iv)] EZEE
ERHEECESRFMARK
EEZATNHBERRHRLE
MAEBEREEELE 2
BINEEB ZEEREK
Ho(S)TEZ BT R BE o

BEXxER

FEBEEEAZTEZENER
EAEEEHAREFACEEE
KE EMEBARRERER
TR KR HAMF AR E
REERRBUBRMERME -

AEBITHEHNERAKREERSA
FARBUBEBRSRERRKRIE
MTHEFBEZRSEEKER
RENEIARRNERNEZRE
EBEEETE > LKREER
MNEEHERRBFHARE-

ARBHEEAMNBLRBAHEESR
RICINRIEMBIE RRE ©

FAEBETAEEFBEETEER
E-RPpE - FMEXEKEERER-

FEEERNZSTRABRAETER
BREHZEARNYBERRE
BERRKREMNHEINMT -
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and bills receivables is limited
because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit standings,
for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At 31 December 2021, 46.7% (2020:
46.8%) of the total trade and bills receivables,
was due from the Group’s largest debtor, and
88.4% (2020: 88.2%) of the total trade and
bills receivables was due from the Group’s five
largest debtors, respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

24 BHRABEEREMIAAAE

(a)

EE R
FEERREHFIAEBTENE
EMERFEBAZTHHFEEN
B -AEBENEERBREIEXR
BEZREMBRREBEREGNE
E-XEBEMRMAZHNREBREE R
ReSBYURBREENEE
ERER RARHFHIAREAEAR
BERERNRTKRERMEE
MRIEME  AEEIREERARK
BAE o

FEBTRHRBEAEEEEE
ERBHEMNHEMER-

FEEERENEERBRIESS
ERAWERBRAAEE MIEER
EEREFRENTE AL EX
EhEERBREITENAETTR
BRELFNERRAREELE P
2021FE12HB31H B ERZHE
BEWEZHEEE 246.7% ((2020
F46.8%) %88.4 % (20204 :
88.2%) DR AEKAEEE KE
BARAKRBEHAZRE-

FEBHNEREEBRE—ETHE
WARREEREETHEREE&F
HoRETEETRERBES
B HA ™R I8 2 5C B K IR B AR B9
BETCURERIERNARSE
F R 2= R E E P 7 BV AR IR
BEAERNER -BZEBKHER
S ZEHHBI0EIOHANF - &
EE-—RAWRENEZEREES -
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(Continued)

(a)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 HMFEEKREEREMIAEAAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%&)
Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERARK (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) ESEWIE (8
The Group measures loss allowances for trade AEBREZBENRAFEHRFHNE
receivables and contract assets at an amount BEEFEBEZ2SETEEZEI
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using MEREGENEEBEER B
a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical SHELGRBEEERGTERY-
credit loss experience does not indicate HREAEBRREFEEEBELSRIT
significantly different loss patterns for different BmBETIARASBZRBREELE
customer segments, the loss allowance based INBERBEREEEZERE BEILAER
on past due status is not further distinguished BREMtERELABERRE
between the Group’s different customer bases. — P ENXAEBRREBNE L H
g o
The following table provides information about TRIEMHEBAAERN2021F K
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs 2020F12H31HEBRNEERR
for trade receivables at 31 December 2021 and REZREBURENTEREEEGEE
2020: ZEHK
2021
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHARSIE X AR E BEiEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT AR®TT
Ageing analysis of B S RRIE
trade receivables: EREQ 34T ©
Less than 3 months 3MEAMUR 0.5% 48,300 (242)
3 to 6 months 3E6M@A 3% 9,872 (296)
6 to 12 months 6E12{8H 5% 12,122 (606)
Over 1 year 1EL 100% 649 (649)
70,943 (1,793)
Individual assessment & Bl zF1& 10% 4,709 (471)
Total st 75,652 (2,264)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD AEIXIHAEANE 4B RAT
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MERABREEREMIRARE

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(&)

(a) EERRKE &

Trade receivables (Continued) EZEINIE (&)
2020
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TERARSIE = AR E(E BIEER
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT
Ageing analysis of B 5 EWRIE
trade receivables: IRES 4R ©
Less than 3 months 3@ B U 0.5% 94,640 (473)
3 to 6 months 3E6MEA 3% 36,194 (1,086)
6 to 12 months 6E12{@H 5% 2,511 (126)
Over 1 year 1EL 100% 610 (610)
Total st 133,955 (2,295)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past recent years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

FHEEXDENRBELENE
REBERFAESL - &FEMX
LR R U EE SR B E

By A%

BRA-BRIAREEEER

HEWRERAFRANEERR
MEZZHENEER
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24 HEEKEERERTIAEAAE

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Movements in the loss allowance account in
respect of trade receivables during the year are
as follows:

(&)

(a)

EERE (@

E 5 EWHIE (8)
FRNEMEBESBERENBER
HERVEFHBEROT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARBTT

Balance at 1 January P18 1B &% 2,295 3,001

Impairment losses reversed AKEEFIRBERSR

for the year (31) (706)

Balance at 31 December R12831 B 48R 2,264 2,295
Liquidity risk (b) RENEZ R

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

FAEBNBRREEHNERABE
TERRETEERZENB R
BRAEBEFZANR T
BOUARIBZETHMEBREE
MPAGERERE  UmEHE
HERERHABHESHER
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BHERBEEREMIAQARE

(&)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest dates the
Group can be required to pay:

24

(b)

RBEERRE (8
TRIITEEBENIFFTEERE
BERREMARORFESOEHRA
R DIREEBIORBREERER
ne (BRERITOMNXFAENIE
MR HWLOEREE > BIIERE
HARNERANERHE) REEEBEA
XYMENREHREH

2021
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
HESES bk i
More than
Within 1 year but
1 year or less than Carrying
on demand 2 years Total amount
1ERH 7 BR1EE
X Yix:3 @t REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®ETRT ARETRT ARETR AR®ETR
Bank and other loans FITREMER 125,073 16,224 141,297 133,834
Lease liabilities HEER 862 64 926 878
Trade and bills BREHEMATEN
payables measured BRBAMER
at amortised cost BIRE 131,862 - 131,862 131,862
Accrued expenses BEBEMATEN
and other payables Batfxk
measured at Rt RIR
amortised cost 33,530 - 33,530 33,530
291,327 16,288 307,615 300,104
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 BHBEEAMEEREZRMIAAAME
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ()
(Continued) (b) WEEZRERE (&
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

2020

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
STHRBERRER N

More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 year but

1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount

1ERTERE  BBRIEE BBR2ER
D [y ke DR5E st REE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARBTn ARETR

Bank and other loans BITREMER 92,054 7,363 454 99,871 96,016
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,098 1,098 64 2,260 2,112
BEFERAEN
Trade and bills payables measured ~ Z 5 & ZIERK
at amortised cost ERER 223,388 - - 223,388 223,388

Accrued expenses and other BEER A EN
payables measured at amortised ~ FEFT ISz R A fth
cost eI IR 23,976 = = 23,976 23,976

340,616 8,461 518 349,495 345,492
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VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively.

The following table details the interest rate

MERABREEREMIRARE

(&)

(c) FEE
AEBENANXEARETEZRBEE

F“TOF“J‘FJE/#@U%UT&IE
MEZEW  SHXEBDHARE
TREMEXRABRAAENERA
B2 o

TRIHFAEBNRSIRNAE

profile of the Group’s total borrowings at the end BEMEXBEEFE

of the reporting period:

2021 2020
Effective Effective
interest rate Amounts interest rate Amounts
BRH=E &8 BRHE +5
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
ARETR AEETT
Fixed rate borrowings ElES R
- Leass liabilities -HEaR 8.10% 878 8.10% 2,112
- Bank loans -RITER 5.50% - 8.75% 85,000  4.05% - 9.05% 78,085
- Other loans -HEtE; 6.22% - 7.96% 48,744 6.75% - 7.76% 17,931
Total borrowings Bt 134,712 98,128
Fixed rate borrowings as a EENEEEHAEEN
percentage of total borrowings Ealss 100% 100%
(d) Currency risk (d) E¥RERE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through receivables and cash balances that
are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transactions relate.
The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily
RMB. At the end of the reporting period, the
related risk of the Group is not material.

K%lﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁz T EBE E E K
ELA?I\%(EHE@ BBz EBZ

NEEEBLSNZE) JIEZE S
EH&TAIE&EE% M ER o 5| B IR
ERzZEBTE/ARE - NRK
SR AEENERARILAR
BXe
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement
Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

25 COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2021 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as follows:

24

25

MERAREEREMIRARE

(&)

(e) ARnEFE
FTEAIAESRNZHLRAAE

7R £ B ¥ A 3 8 AR AN B BR BN
SHTENEmERER20215F
F2020F 1231 HH A & I &
BEARER-

A
R2021F12A31HAELG ST HEREKH
REBENRENMNERRKENDT

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETR

Commitments in respect of purchase of ERIEEY ¥ -ME K&

property, plant and equipment SRR IE
- Contracted for —B5T&

16,015 26,516
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 EABEMAXS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in BRAGEVBERETEAMBOAKRED
these consolidated financial statements, the Group RN AEBRRERSTIUTEEA
entered into below related party transactions during R5e
the year.
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEEASHM
Remuneration for key management personnel FrEBRFEEEBEAEBFHNEED
of the Group, including amounts paid to the NARRBEEHRIE (NS
Company’s directors as disclosed in Note 8 Fiip ) RENETR=SFHMNES
and certain of the highest paid employees as TIE (G UM EEOFTIRER) W F ¢
disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AEEFT
Short-term employee benefits ZHiEE @] 1,728 1,307
Post-employment benefits BKRBER 174 61
1,902 1,368

(b)

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(see Note 6(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

None of the above related party transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2021 falls
under the definition of connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b)

HMARENTE T4 R AR (W
56(b)) °

ERMEXRZ 2 EHRINZERMN
HE2021F12A31HIEFE Lt
AT ZEESN A EHREE

TAAEFMREMERZ A FERM
BREHNEEET -
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27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 27 ARE@mZHBERRIR
POSITION
2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5% AR®TF T ARETFIT
Non-current assets ERFEE
Investment in a subsidiary ~ KMEBABZKRE 2o 67,456 67,456
Current assets REHEE
Amount due from a subsidiary  FEW—REIMBAS 2
B 50,081 52,270
Cash at bank and on hand IRITKRFHEHIES 357 1,704
Net currentassets ~ w#EEF&E 000 50,438 53,974
NET ASSETS BEEFEH 117,894 121,430
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B RKGEE 23
Share capital RN 17,522 17,522
Reserves HE 100,372 103,908
TOTAL EQUITY W 4EEE 117,894 121,430

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 29 March 2022.

Hou Jianli
=ERN
Chairman

ZE

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

EEYN2022FE3H20H L E M IR

I8 o

Hou Yuxi
=RE
Executive Director
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28 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END 28 #R&HIEIEEERFIE

29

30

OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a) Impacts of COVID-19 pandemic
By the end of 31 December 2021, the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic and the outbreaks in some
provinces in the PRC has brought uncertainties
in the Group’s operating environment and has
certainly impacted the Group’s operations and
financial position. The Group has been closely
monitoring the impact of the developments
on the Group’s business and has put in place
contingency measures. In view of the epidemic-
driven economic downturn, the Group assessed
the situation and adhered to the principles
of reducing costs and enhancing operational
efficiency.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
holding company of the Company at 31 December
2021 to be H&C Group Holding Limited, which is
incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling
party of the Company at 31 December 2021 to be Mr
Hou Jianli and Ms Chen Bierui. H&C Group Holding
Limited does not produce financial statements
available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments and a
new standard, IFRS 17, /nsurance contracts, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2021 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

29

30

(a) MEBESKFEMXBEENEZE

B E2021F12831 0 FHEWNH
BAERmEEmMXERE (TNCPZE
151 RARITMR AR DEDIE
ENRBBREAERNEEIRIET
KTABEEE THAEENKL
EHBERREET —EFEoXK
EE-—BEZUBEEBEREHA
EEEFNEE TERINEZ
B - ERNETBERKE 7K
EERERED BREBRAEY
)=l

ERRREERS

KRB EERA > K2021F12831
BARBWNBEEESSFARRBEX
B EMAIIAH&C Group Holding
Limited° 722021512831 H AR &
REESHBFAERANEERBEAR L
+ e H&C Group Holding Limitedil #
RETHERRBEARER-

B8 F2021F12831HILFEBCHE
HERREMIETA  FTER K
REMNTETE

HEAMBRKRTIE A HE g%
AMEEEEBEMSEMBT A —EMT
EEEHEA BERMBREGELNS
175% R &4 (22021412831
HIEFEEREN BHREZTBR
KAPEM) - HBETIAEARER
HEREE o
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30

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 30

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED ﬁﬂEl i R EI'J1f %Izt S ZE B B
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR RENARETZE

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework
MR EEREIR BT BB IEF 2 1e0

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use
BIFR & st RSB0 2 BE] » ¥ BB R K 1 —#E B F 2 T ig kB

Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BIPR G st EREITREE] IR SA—BITEA Z K

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
H2018F E2020F B Hi 2 B PR Bt #5 R &5 ZE BI B FF 2 oI

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
B%ng 4%5|J%1 ?ﬁz{gﬁjf 2 /7%‘7,5 fgﬁ%f S //u@ 79_//5///15/7

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

B gt ER 1R RERYBREENEB LS
B5TIEE 2 K E

B2 ZIES]

Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates
Mg st ERE8R 2 IEE] > B 1B5FHIEZE

Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred taxrelated to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction
BEst R FEI12R 2B HE—X G ELHNEEN GG ELERE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

EAEE-

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

7 & H IE £ 57 il &%

JASEPAN
o =]

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT5 Bz E
MR E

stHEAR £ 2K

1 January 2022
2022%F181H

1 January 2022

2022F1H1H

1 January 2022
2022%1HA1H

1 January 2022
2022%F1H1H

1 January 2023
2023%F1HA1H

1 January 2023

2023F1H1H

1 January 2023

2023%F181H

1 January 2023

2023%F181H

FEITARERE
ﬁﬁHHF‘aﬁFﬁEiZ%ﬁ%OZA?‘%ltﬁﬁﬁ
WAREBERHEAEY

M BB REN
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